EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Peter G. Strelow, Managing Director
92660

650
650 Newport Center Drive, Newport Beach, CA 92660, USA

03 6212 8316

PIMCO
PIMCO Bermuda Trust - PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income
30 3,272
30 3,609
3,000
2020 31

109.06 120.30

1/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
PIMCO Bermuda Trust - PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income
PIMCO
2020 31
Maples Trustee Services (Bermuda) Limited
Pacific Investment Management Company LLC PIMCO

30 3,272

30 3,609

3,000

2020 31
109.06 120.30

2/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.55 0.5

100
100
10,000

2020 2021 31

http://ww.pb.mufg. jp/

2020

http://www.pb.mufg.jp/

12

3/388



10

11

12

Investment Management Company LLC
2015 18

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Pacific

5,000

4/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
2020 31

2006

5,000 1972 Exchange
Control Act 1972 BMA
BMA BMA
BMA
BMA

BMA

2003 12

2006

2017 29

5/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2001
1971
2003 12
2005
2005 29
2005
2006 20
2006 22
2008 11 18
2010 30
2015
2015 10 14
2015 10 29
2017 14 2017 29

2018 15

6/388



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FEE R
k L:r'l'/{i:_—--?‘i ]""'_?E]"‘[[
Tyl
PIMCOS s b o Sy » B Bientd s of S i
b SR
ﬁﬁﬂa;’ﬂ-ﬁht {RIEEEN i

AT Lol AR AL
THRVAL b Bz —
Tt —

(ST A D SRS 1 VBT,
7 7 ¥ VRS )

R +

AAFTRZ FFAT 4
F— =K (245 a—4)

Y17y K

Gk SEAR VB L 417 9 Hiflko

k. iE 2 B AR
- B RS
v R EE
e SiTiSE —

BAizBiTAEESH

“HUF JEAH RS L—
P Bl
(UiT s A s L
HiEiziir A2 Eir ko
BRAE  TEE L ooHUR S

RF¥. 77 FOZITRE)

TERR RS (AT 508

3 ig |

R 3T

WRRWEE(LIT &t

FIOy T IR
Y T o rism—

(7 7 o FEEmE a8 Reps.
T Foedturss, WERYREs,
iR S Lo i e i
(ofr &)

HRERT T ICEN

HRERR T IE T

i o B e e B e SN | B
(BT AT DR o L

(7 7 2 Foodh R R (T 585

#  FEEDHBIMHIE, SIS L EEEENSH L oMTE RS,

2020

71388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2003 12
Pacific Investment
Management Company LLC 2006 22
2017 14
2017 29
2006 22
2010 30
2017 29
2006 22
Maples Trustee Services
Bermuda Limited
2017
14
2017
29

8/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
ooooodoooiooooooodod

2006 22
Brown Brothers Harriman & 2010 11 23
Co.
2017 29
2006 22
2011 30
2017 29
2006 22
Brown Brothers Harriman
Luxembourg S.C.A.
2015 18
2015 18
2017 29

9/388



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1971 1994
2000
2020
606,851,577.58 661 8,323
850,000 150,000
48,875.82
850,000 150,000
250,000 1,250,000
2016 175,840,532.12
2017 176,759,578.09
2018 192,872,867.64
2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
1971
2020
95.4

4.6

10/388



1969
BMA

BMA

BMA

BMA

BMA

1969

BMA

2007

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIS

institutional funds

standard funds

2020

1969
BMA
BMA
BMA
BMA
BMA
BMA
1998 BMA
A B
BMA
administered funds
1981

11/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
1978

35

BMA
BMA BMA
BMA

27

BMA

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

12/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 31

EDINET

EDINET

26 198

BMA

BMA 1969

BMA

2007 CIS

13/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

A
B
BMA
institutional funds administered funds
standard funds
BMA
BMA
LLC

BMA

BMA
BMA ERICA

BMA

14/388



BMA

BMA
BMA
BMA

BMA

BMA
BMA
BMA
BMA

BMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

BMA

BMA
12
BMA

BMA

BMA BMA

BMA

14

BMA

BMA

15/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

LIBOR

LIBOR

LIBOR

65

UCITS EU

16/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

S&P S&P

17/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

RIB
35

CMO

SMBS

SMBS 10
PO 10

10 PO

18/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ABS
ABS
ABS
ABS
ABS ABS
ABS
ABS
ABS ABS
ABS
CBO CLO
CDO CBO
CLO CBO
CLO
CDO
CBO CLO CDO

CBO CLO CDO

19/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CBO CLO CDO
CBO CLO CDO
CBO CLO CDO
CBO CLO CDO
CBO CLO CDO
CBO CLO CDO 144A
CBO CLO CDO

CBO CLO CDO

20/388



EDINETOOOO

O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

W FEEENREBINFRE—S—IR/CONT

KEMEGFHBEEART BAEFEII—-D—

® BFFRE—Y—J MR AXEMSFHBICEVTERN. tHRICRSTSRM (8.5 176KF)L (¥19253EM)) &
aLFET.

® TDIHFAAABORBMHIIZAL. KENLEHDERNESUET.
SIS RERTEEE (201 9E6RREIIE)

*LH7
GERILOMSRELE, B8k, 201961 2BEEREOWMO L & —L—R{1RRIL=108 675MIC LU ET.)

HERE—S'—JHDIEY

o K HFREELH I RITELRFRILT 2 EUNCHOBLENOEEO— Y EBRICRITS NS M
TT.

¢ (IE0—OENFNISO0—VICHTATHLVESLIC, RS0 - P aEOZLLA TN
FY.

o A HEIRETLHNRETIEE0— VR BEO0—-VEFEORENBRGEUFICH TR0
FIST R 3-8

e ERIOEE0—H T 72 ELIEBSICEWVWTHE FRRE—F— IO WS DWW TIE KB
RMEELHPEENICRILET>TVET,

HFRE—7—JR0L#HED
(A X—2E)

ST (ROE
I ¥ l ¥ l—]
L HBRREEAY EERE-S-JW BAR
T T T
O—4EH Fr=— AW FRIRER

- >SS SIS SSPSBBRRE =P

4 JscssscTsscsSESssssaTs S
(2= = SRAs

*EMOSRIRICE0 - ORR)S SURGETINSSBUET. B ARG L TORGIGOT FEOS MRS E)EY
HERE—-S—IRDUAT
* BRE—Y—JVMREF KEMERSOERAEE T A KEREERICEFIVAIERLET,

o HFFRE—S"—IMF. ERIKEICL>TEEO—VOERS—-ANELTILH ABROREEE
TOs@&HBUET.

21/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LIBOR

22/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Baa S&P
BBB

24/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

RIB

25/388



20

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QFII
ROFII

QFI1  RQFII

28/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

QFIN RQFII

QFI1  RQFII

29/388



cilsm
PBOC
CIBM
CIBM
CIBM
CIBM
SCH

CIBM

CIBM

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2016
No.3 [2016]
CIBM

PBOC
CIBM

ccbc

CCDC SCH

30/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IT

31/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10

10

32/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UCITS EU

33/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CFTC
SEC 0TC
CFTC

SEC CFTC

2010 21

0TC
0TC
01C SEC CFTC
oTC
CFTC SEC

35/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0TC
CFTC SEC

CFTC

REIT
REIT REIT 1986
REIT REIT REIT
CLN
CLN CLN
CLN CLN

CLN
CLN
CLN

CLN

36/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

37/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15

1933
144A

100

38/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

39/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

40/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

41/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

n EESHRIYERR

PIMCOMiEIE
/T TawT « AURARAUR » FRIAU - AT — - TILTIL— (B [PIMCOI) 2197 14EIC
BTN, IRIE. SRR AR EBAN FUF VYOS FICT. DEUV- S8 EREFRTLTVET,
o B AEONSERRAEE T RETAAHELTASNTSY . BEN 91TIBKRIL ($92085kM)*
(MFEEHBRIESHET. DHERAEFGLTVET.
w201 9EE 28 B0

CERILOMMaNE, BE L. 201951 2AFBIHEDWMO 9 —L—k (1 #2IL=108.675M) Ic LUET.)

O PIMCOIRAKBEZIZLS, OVF/ 2o BE D VAR=IL. YR Z— OV EB8F 2l mEL
TTO-NILICEY R AZEBMUTVETD .,

PIMCO®MER (Cxd 2HEHS D EFT

FHRESABTR—Jr—R M FRIEHOR
FEE——T A9 FIP LA el AT — B
20125, 20134, 20154 [E4@%] 20106, 201145, 201 36, 20144

[ O—/ LRSS (o 2] 20084F, 201 36, 201 56
Awards
205

Tha Momingstar Fissd-Income Fund Maragee of the Yeor mward [Jerome Schoaider and Team, PBMCO short Term {2015k Dan lviscyn and Alfrad Murata, PIMCO
I'muqzﬂisk,hlﬂl{mﬂ mmawmmcmmmmm ULS.] is based on the sirergth of the iranager, parlormancs, Str T
- shewordship.  Momingstr Awaords 20158, Momingstor, Inc. All Rights Reserwed, Awarded 1o Serome Schneider and Team for LS. Fiad-incoms Furd Monager of the
‘0o,

8R0S OB RS EESOHE IR ERBT IO TESVEE A
LR EAPEEA L O—BER OREE L0 TEY. BROARS R REE - BTl T 500 TEEUEE A

PIMCODE—5—TERICONWT

B L\aEEh &V Ao EIEEED PIMCODE—4—iliB RO E
HKEHTTISA L-O0—/HEEBTICFA ELEPEEETS7080LE
PIMCOZMEHSICHMEYT dEATASRED S CL hlBF TR
ERIOEEDFAERHELET BEOREY 77 L VR g —
S L-O—2MEIC VWS, BREF—LICEZHE #1537 AL (B 5.85Em)
FEMRBOBHEEDSC, BN ERE(CF3 L-S2ilE

B5ET, EHBREOUR I AT LIC

S RMEELICL A J &R
SHUIAHTRED BRESLAILTERPARRS

WREEELT— ISR

-4 TR RS (FRB) IS
FBE-Y-JAET)TOT
NEBHSD SLDTR—Tr—D14t
BWHE -EREREFERS (NAIC)IC
£B#920,000E—4" -390
DS

# 201951 2AFEMEOIEETH). EWE N ATk LU ET .

TR EATRASROER

PIMCO

PIMCO

42/388



EDINETOOOO
O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)

ooOooo0o0oo0oo0oooooog
PIMCO Secular Forum

Cyclical Forum

PIMCO

PIMCO

TR

METOEX

e PIMCOMEH O AUFHIEICLST—HBLTSY. [BlVERAICE IOV /CRsieE| [hTPs'o
VEEBERRLT Y IEEORS] [RELEUAEE | FHRHELET,

oI —ERETASREATARBICBIIBMAEDECA /AA AN - AZwTF+—THRAYREED
B EEEL, RSHOR— 72U - ¥32—Jv—0HiE. %, SSICERNRABRODTNFND
WEEINERVWTR—rI2UF O 7T+ T BRAETVETD.,

PIMCOY3—h « 9—L « =43 « 4 VA LOER{FH

¢ PIMCODE—"— Ul EBIETE. HNRTE—/—JMZSCERGIHF AR /T HEREEZY
PIETBRB70RLEDIR—RT2US - IRIAVS - F—LDEROPOELGUET,

o DR —h D20 - TRIAVS - F—LICNA VAT - RRIAVS - F—LPILD vk - PFURS -
FLBEERBIOEMUCEAERNE T A LT RBNICERSBAEBBLET.

#0205 1 HREREOEETE). TR NSTEE I EUEY.

43/388



PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

44/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

19 19

Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer

System

45/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

23 25
50

10

10

10

50

50

15

2011 UCITS
UCITS
35
2014 UCITS

OECD

46/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UCITS EU

47/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

48/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

49/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DoS

50/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0TC

oTC

51/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

52/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

53/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2008 2009

SEC

LIBOR
LIBOR ICE
LIBOR
2021 LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR

54/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LIBOR

55/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

56/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

57/388



30

EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

144A

58/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

59/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

REIT

REIT REIT
REIT
REIT 1986

61/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

REIT
REIT REIT
REIT

REIT REIT

62/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

63/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

FASB 1ASB
GAAP
FASB 48 IFRS
IAS 12

PIMCO

PIMCO ¢ U 22 2 G BE /R R (T
|

1
[

- (TR IR i i g T - [ A ook
A &P
+ BB Sy E5| * REBEEIE R A b
e ]|
s QT AT R {5 e « Wy A [
A i —
— B R e B e 3 T Rl
iAol AR

64/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO
2020

UCITS EU

UCITS EU

65/388



EDINETOOOO
O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

TFRET I3, 77 EOERU A ETBRLC I hDRED— 2L T TR S L.

< 27 7 FOSRRMEER > < 7Y REORBNEAEI S LD >
1 D& iREEHE - SMEERIONE ERBEROLE

20156 28~ 20206 1 BOSEMICHITE TP/ EDET S LR EOT T TEEILIEMICE |25 MBS (E ARG O TE0E

LROHCSEINR DS JRAE G (B RARSC. FHRE NHE, 77 /EFOEI ARSI R MO R RNERET ST

R (EBAFHOMBERLLBOTT (TRL. IFUFIZI01 56 ~N=R) LOMTHRUEBDTY. COT ST, T7 2 FE %

105298 [CBMEMELIC -8, 201 6B LB DE MR 2R L FEROSARERNICHENTE3LICEMLTBIET.

S1F201 56 10A 280U RO A0S BI0R 1 DX SRR E

BHENERA.

CERILZZA)

(*{g}g E?D% E0BHEH(7 X FR20168108) 20208 1R
10.6H—SEIRER DS ERRES EE) P . . _|olx@ omm «mvE|
0.4l =S EnESIEN 80 -

al.
108} 40 b & 348 apa
100+ 20 a1 153 1a.2
ag PP ] I A :-,.g:s._ (34
:E' : : ? ﬁ R R - -
201542F 2018%2F =2017#2E =2018EZF 2019820 Ir/F EEE RAEE EAEE ETER FOEW FAER

(1—07F32)

[:L]--I:I %& 2015628 (77 FREDTGE 10H)~202051H
1o f g0k [oBH < Tl ool |
100 [=ls]

=k=1 3 40 =
i e =
B7H (%) R ol . ki )
96| m mim ) *0

: A0

8.5 ; : .
20TS%2K 2018%AM 2017%2H 20188RH 2019%2H
AZ52)

2016F2R (7 FIR20 162108 ~20204E1H
10,368 86 -
10,200} a0k [cBXdl ol Bl
10,100 &0
: 418
10,000 i) e N1 E - S
2.800 20 152 18.2
2,800 o = . S . s
=14 Il ] ] Ag = B
:-;g‘;' = R (k) ; . ) _‘Eg B -zel'u a%s  2gE 12— e
'201S¥2F E0ISE2R 2017%2F PO0IBEZH 2019%2R FryF BE  RlES ERXDE BER GIEE FRER
WA WS Bloomberg LPE A UENESSHOT — S R BT -RELSENERR e
"E'EEHE‘H1D§J"UEHEMM L]l ] %ﬁ;‘rEﬁd»..J?Jlﬂf\ﬂﬂ!ﬁw“ti‘iﬁufhtﬁhf‘tlﬂ}?:‘# FEREL. PP AT [ e s OO 4L AT

BLACH, HERMER | i SRR GRS R | DS UREE e R
DrEDANRER S HARL, L 26 RSt B e MR O S/ RA T T EAILT, EOMERENHLR 60T, (BEHSwE T
LS AN RO EFEESELET,)
. EJ;&"I_}!DEM!H L AFROEEEHET TRECNTEL. ARICAERRSN TSRS L. LT AR ANRRLEES, FR-aRESREEs
1]
- ENGRRD S ADERMAT (B RN L. SARE 01N S TEORROBENLLT. EORBFERLLLBOTT. (BRHHEORSIET
. E‘:i:é;}n:;lﬁﬂ?mﬁﬁﬂ?%?\tﬂifﬁﬂﬁﬁmm.MSﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁim?ﬁfﬁFﬂﬂMmmf. ENSOEE - B - BVESSTINLTHE
+ I, AR D S AGET CHAT BN TIEBIET A,
RANGARTSAERT R

Bih - TOPI(REAH)
FADA - FISLEREABEN <O P2
FWDA - PR MR

B BEGH—?WIHEHE:!:MH

SWEE - FTSEH REGER R HE, fa-1T)

!illl:ﬂ[-‘i- -~ FTSEMREMBEEERERPEL—2)

uz:s&mmsmn.. Bloomberg LP. CRBBELTLET,

TOFG (SRS . s WS SIS (S (L] T (OM T sy S (A5 [SL v e, DEntE v, fETO B, EE s, IR S ERCM T &7~

HH L, S TR RS P AL T L E T B, ??JFI; OB SRR T S (AR . AL A N SO T MR RS e, e PR
FoEET AL SRR CHLT S, SEERLERA,
FTSEERREB:ﬁFﬁmﬁ<E$ Fjre— L), FTSE{E MR e (B < B, Fl— ) B S UF TSER WS R (M0 — NS T 5~ T DML, London
Stock Exc Group pleErtI EOUEFNedT iL— 2 EICBELET, SMHME. FTSE nternational Limited. FTSE Fieed Income LLCERIEFNSM
BEEHBC L TR nru&r London Stock Exchange Group pét:ﬂﬁf{-ﬂ:lwu-?‘ﬁlra FEOREE EEELUBERrSE LSV SRR D
WL EACHLT S~ D REEALED AL

LlEOEEREE. B CETAEOEBTED. BRONAERERIIFLERET 20T EENE A

66/388



EDINETOOOO
O0000000oO0o0oooobooo0o0000odoonognoodnogna(EeLsoss)

Oooooooooooobooooooad

0.55 0.5

HISADRBEREICHLT. &0 3 A0OBRSEH"ISENT 5 FECOMHME = (1)
OEEHERUICEAD, TP/ ROBEELVERENETD.

<PEh>
¥ B
0.5%FH
. b 0.325% 0.275% 0.65%
s 0.35% 0.30% 0.05% 0.70%
0.40% 0.35% 0.80%
35%ULE 0.45% 0.40% 0.90%
* BISAICONT, LI FEBELET.

HEIIZZR L T17 3 FF/FEEH (EEEE)
I—0OJ 32 | B RGBSR
MZSZ  BFETEBEI—ILEEMET (BN

T BEOEFEWSE. I EORE 7P REEEENSI T /R ERENE SORMESREMESLT E
ROBWERERRLTSERLLAENET,

(LEEoSEERrEHTREVESICR. BRI B T B EERERLSBSNSUET.)

CIF R AMB P AEERHTINOT—CATRERCN T SR M. TOMEEPETHRN.
M. 2R ERERANECOVTE. BESAEEHNSZTILET.

67/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 10 31 271
70 13
12
68
59

68/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
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PIMCO
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2020

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

15.315

2038 15

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
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2019 10

25,424 89.21

208 0.73

2,120 7.44

2,306 8.09

85 0.30

71 0.25

13 0.05

6 0.02

14 0.05

30,219 106.03

1,719 6.03
28,500

3,108 100.00
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30
2019 10
(¢ ) )

Ginnie Mae 2.86588 2067 20 8,515,668 8,297,631 8,401,625 29.48]

Freddie Mac 2.62125 2037 11 15 3,660,992 3,635,056 3,685,824] 12.93]

BX Commercial Mortgage Trust 2.66350 2035 11 15 2,120,252 2,120,252 2,120,271 7.44

Merril Lynch Pierce Fenner &

Snith 1.85000 2019 11 1,600,000 1,600,000 1,600, 000f 5.6

Fannie Mae 4.50000 2039 11 1,212,846 1,124,239 1,237,328]  4.34]

Ginnie Mae 4.50000 2047 20 958,867 927,692 969,891  3.40)

Fannie Mae 4.50000 2039 931,114 863,542 945,862 3.32

Fannie Mae 4.00000 2048 926,118 888,663 931,902  3.27]

Freddie Mac 4.00000 2049 932,372 894,624 931,887  3.27]
10 |Ginnie Mae 5.09562 2066 20 882,509 783,260 865,320  3.04]
11 |Ginnie Mae, TBA 3.00000 2048 12 714,656 700,000 720,290  2.53]
12 |BNP Paribas Bank 1.82000 2019 11 600,000 600,000 600,000 2.1
13 |Ginnie Mae 4.00000 2048 20 478,459 458,815 480,507)  1.69
14 |Freddie Mac 4.00000 2047 455,956 437,519 459,964 1.6
15 |Freddie Mac 5.34000 2037 391,940 362,772 394,860 1.39
16 |Fannie Mae 4.00000 2047 12 382,392 366,927 385,567 1.39
17 |Ginnie Mae 5.21075 2066 20 383,892 343,143 378,249 1.33]
18 |Ginnie Mae, TBA 4.50000 2049 12 313,922 300,000 313,945  1.10]
19 |Freddie Mac 4.00000 2047 12 296,594 284,600 299,039 1.05)
20 |Ginnie Mae 4.50000 2048 20 269,721 260,451 272,035  0.95)
21 |Fannie Mae 4.50000 2045 230,694 213,806 235,921]  0.83]
22 |Fannie Mae 4.00000 2047 10 228,032 218,811 229,961] 0.8
23 |Ginnie Mae 4.50000 2046 11 20 222,118 214,904 224,938  0.79
24 |Ginnie Mae 4.00000 2047 10 20 217,276 214,765 224,224 0.79
25 |Fannie Mae, TBA 5.00000 2048 12 213,750 200,000 214,078  0.75
26 |Fannie Mae 4.50000 2045 208,956 193,665 213,698  0.75)
27 |U.S. Treasury Notes 2.75000 2023 30 199,688 200,000 208,328 0.73
28 |Ginnie Mae, TBA 4.00000 2049 12 15 207,477 200,000 207,891 0.73
29 |Freddie Mac 5.19000 2037 155,347 143,798 154,491 0.54]
30 |Fannie Mae 4.92725 2035 25 436,182 1,241,912 153,504 0.54]

2019 10

2019 10
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2020

2016 10 10,934,662.85 1,192,534 10.24 1,117
2017 10 5,552,622.63 605,569 10.26 1,119
2018 10 2,339,399.12 255,135 10.37 1,131
2019 10 2,415,551.77 263,440 10.61 1,157
2019 2,331,653.90 254,290 10.44 1,139
2,322,984.78 253,345 10.41 1,135

2,332,076.49 254,336 10.45 1,140

2,334,546.86 254,606 10.46 1,141

2,271,602.22 247,741 10.50 1,145

2,275,592.72 248,176 10.52 1,147

2,282,555.26 248,935 10.55 1,151

2,408,124.84 262,630 10.57 1,153

10 2,415,618.57 263,447 10.61 1,157

11 2,014,057.81 219,653 10.61 1,157

12 2,020,179.85 220,321 10.65 1,161

2020 2,021,227.31 220,435 10.65 1,161
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2016 10 537,432.16 64,653 10.07 1,211
2017 10 385,970.32 46,432 9.88 1,189
2018 10 380,374.47 45,759 9.74 1,172
2019 10 377,871.29 45,458 9.68 1,165
2019 379,225.20 45,621 9.71 1,168
376,937.77 45,346 9.65 1,161

377,598.95 45,425 9.67 1,163

376,935.87 45,345 9.65 1,161

377,578.67 45,423 9.67 1,163

377,344.92 45,395 9.66 1,162

377,560.16 45,420 9.67 1,163

377,666.42 45,433 9.67 1,163

10 377,881.72 45,459 9.68 1,165

11 377,513.82 45,415 9.67 1,163

12 377,730.35 45,441 9.67 1,163

2020 348,885.86 41,971 9.66 1,162
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2016 10 13,973,514,725 10,118
7,233,859,229 9,989

2017 10
3,099,529, 665 9,871

2018 10
2,386,586,502 9,824

2019 10
2019 2,580,541,153 9,845
2,554,470,050 9,790
2,509,111,703 9,808
2,495,066,730 9,791
2,489,958,710 9,809
2,484,719,026 9,805
2,457,254,472 9,812
2,384,779,166 9,816
10 2,386,652,055 9,824
11 2,385,003,859 9,817
12 2,385,806,793 9,820
2020 2,202,155,377 9,808
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1,692,503.070 624,292.860 1,068,210.210
2015 10 29
1,692,503.070 624,292.860 1,068,210.210
2016 10
73,819.919 601,082.280 540,947.849
2016 11
73,819.919 601,082.280 540,947.849
2017 10
96.530 315,452.626 225,591.753
2017 11
96.530 315,452.626 225,591.753
2018 10
11,385.492 9,224.877 227,752.368
2018 11
11,385.492 9,224.877 227,752.368
2019 10
53,375.294 0.000 53,375.294
2015 10 29
53,375.294 0.000 53,375.294
2016 10
0.000 14,324.802 39,050.492
2016 11
0.000 14,324.802 39,050.492
2017 10
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2017 11
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2018 10
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2018 11
0.000 0.000 39,050.492
2019 10
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1,807,009.751

425,916.898

1,381,092.853

2015 10 29
1,807,009.751 425,916.898 1,381,092.853
2016 10
119,621.154 776,564 .932 724,149.075
2016 11
119,621.154 776,564.932 724,149.075
2017 10
502.643 410,656.119 313,995.599
2017 11
502.643 410,656.119 313,995.599
2018 10
0.000 71,051.229 242,944.370
2018 11
0.000 71,051.229 242,944.370

2019 10
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USA
USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank Secrecy
Act

CSSF 08 387 CSSF 10 476
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NYSE

60

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
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NOCP
BMA
BMA
2010 30 100
10 31 2016 10 31
5,000 1972 Exchange

Control Act 1972 BMA
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131

109.06
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2019 10 31
PINCO
2019 10 31
30,233 3,297
0 0
0 0
166 18
1 0
42 5
0 0
1 0
0 0
TBA 20,067 2,189
0 0
82 9
50,592 5,518
0 0
8,636 942
7 1
287 31
0 0
TBA 13,095 1,428
0 0
0 0
24 3
7 1
1 0
5 1
0 0
30 3
22,092 2,409
28,500 3,108
31,785 3,466
0 0
0 0
8,615 940
(21) @)

2,200 240
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422 46
3,586 391
22,077 2,408
2,415 263

39

33

243

228
10.80 1,178
9.68 1,165
109.21 11,910

11,807
90.87 9,910

9,824
10.61 1,157

103/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

2019 10 31

3,355 366
3,355 366
1 0

191 O 21
70 8

9 1

1 0

59 6

8 1

0 0

12 1

1 0

311 34
12 1
675 74
2,680 292
(4,459) (486)
0 0
(561) (61)
165 18
) €))
(4,862) (530)
4,041 441
0 0
@ )

9 1

0 0
3,963 432
(899) (98)
1,781 194

@ 2018 11 2019 27
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2019 10 31
2,680 292
(4,862) (530)
3,963 432
1,781 194
(1,348)(D (147)
(1,348) (147)
(131,076) (14,295)
(130,643) (14,248)
159,143 17,356
28,500 3,108

27
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PINCO
2019 10 31

11.04 1,204
@ 0.35 38
(0.59) (64)
(0.24) (26)
0.00 0
10.80 1,178

®) .17)

© (0.62)
422 46

0.73

0.63

3.23

@
(b)

©)
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities [cont)
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Statements of Dperations (Cont)
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGAMIZATION

Each Fund discussed in this repoet (each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds®), which also indudes eadh dass of units of that Fund (each a "Class™ and collectively,
thee " Classes™), is @ series st of PIMCO Bermuda Trust 0 (the “Trust™), an open-ended wnit ust established under the Lawes of Benmisda as a midti-senies tst
plarsiant 10 a trust Geed executed by Windhester Global Trust Company Urnited on December 1, 2003 (a5 amended from time to e, the "Trust Deed ™). Effective 35
of the dose of business (Eastern trme) on Sephenbeer 22, 2006, Winchester Global Trust Company Urrated retred and was dacharged a5 trustes of the Tiudt and Brown
Brothers Hamiman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited was appointed 25 new rustes of the Trust for the cwners of units of Se Funds (the "Unitholders™) Effective as of
the diose of braness (Eastem time) on September 2%, 2017, Brown Brothers Harnman Trust Companny {Cayman) Limited refired and was discharged a5 trustee of the
Trust and Maples Trustes Serdces (Bermuda) LUimited was appointed as new mustee of the Trust As wsed in this repoet, all references. to the "Trustee” shall mean the
person ten SEMANG &5 BISTEE 10 the Trust. Padfic knesiment HMJ_DEI‘I'I?E[C':IHDMT LLC{"PIMCO", the “Mana _IZ?I'- of B " lrvesiment Adviser™) & the sponsar of
and was responsible fior struduring the Trest

The Trust it sbjedt o regulation and supendsion as provided Tor in the rvestment Funds Act 2006 and related nules refating to standard hnds

The termns of the Trust Déed confer upon the Trustes, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, to establish further funds in addition to the Funds
currently in operation 45 of the date of this report

The Funds presented in this report.ang lished betow

Frand ifered @
FIMET) Barmuda Blask Loan Fusd A Oferad only fo hund s with @ Tund of Funds” structera, 25 defned on the rubes of the Investment Trust
PIMCT) Bamuds Bask Loan Fusd B Azzoceybon, Japse, of in any othar junzlicion
FIMCY) Barmuda Bamk Losn Fusd C
FIMCD Barmuda Bask Loan Fusd [

PIMCT) Bamauda Income Fund D

FhALT) Barmmuda Income Fund E

FRACT) Barmaida Low Duragon lnooma Fusd

FIMCT Emerging Bond Incomaa Fund I

PIMLT) Emerging Bond Incoms Fund Bl

FIMCT) Barmuda Bask Loan husd (M)

PIMCT) Barmuda Emeging Markets Bond Fund (M)
FIMCTD Bammuda Blobal Aggreqats Ex-Japsn Bond Fund )
FIMCT) Barmuda Incoma Fund (0

FIMCD Barmuda L5 High Yeeld Fund (M)

PIMCT) Bamuda U5 High Yiedd Fusd 1| (W

FIMLCT) Emergang Bond Income Fond (M)

FINICT) Barmuda Emanging Markets Eond Fund
FIMCTD) Bammuda Globel Aggragate Ex-Japen {fen-Hedged) Boad Fund
FIMCT) Barmuda Globel Aggragete Ex-Japen Bond Fund
FIMED Bamuda Incoma Fund A®

PIMLT) Bamuds Mortgage Dpporhedbes Fund

PRACO LS. High Yild [Yen-Hadged) Fuad 11
FCOLS Hugh Tiad Fusdll

FIMCOULS. High Yiad Serateqy Fund

FICDH LS. High Yidd 5 reategy Fund ||

FIMACY) Wiarld Hiagh Incoma™*

| FibACD Shert-Tem Mecrigage Incomea

0 hare] oyt othat Funds to Siie &5 anh underhyng e mant vwehidie lor such Fonds

'Hﬁ;ﬂiuﬁuﬁm ol cthar imves o

DEfened bo Japanese and otfer imvestors. Uit of the EUR, JPY and LS classes are oferad o rata]
imeastors in Japas by way of publsc offerng through & dismibuber in Jepsn, asd may be ofened to
i imvastors ot the descraton of the Manager Units of the EUR, JP'Y and IS0 (lasoas wil be
rizsiichad bo only those measiors who ara apmosad by the Manage

FIMACT) Eemrgeny Band (Yien-Hax gaed] [fdom e und
FRACD Emergang Bond [ncome Fund

PIMCD LS. High Yield (Yen-Hedged] Fund
FIMAC UL S Hagh Yiald Fusd

Offaed oly b Rind of Turds typd Japanisa imastment tusts o gadezad wndir the L concerning
Tt es bt Tieu st aind Insemrstmean &t Company of Japan [ Japanesa Imiestment Trusts”™] which wall affa
thesr mits bo the publicm Japen sither by way of public offermg o private placement and whch ae
managind by FIMCED Japan Lid o other samd i lieonsad svaisimant Tust manepemanl compasias and
subject to fue ules of B Investment Trests Associaton, Japan

* D TP e R Dl o PO (1Sl IS Pl O £l N S S R L D T W (ST R PO (1 i Tt o R O RS e i i

= (e o ol R A e ity s e gt BT &

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOLINTING POLICIES

The fodlowing &5 3 summary of significant accounting poficies congstently foflowed by the Tnust in the preparation of its finandial statements in conformity with
acoounting prncples generally aatepied in the United Statet of Amenca (U5 GAAPT). Eadh Fund is treated & an investment company under the reparting
requirements of US GAAP The preparation of inandal statements in accordance with U S, GAAP requites management te make esimates and assumptions that
affiect the reported amounts of assers and BabiBties and dsdosure of contingent assets and liabilides an te date of the finandal stasements and the reported amounts
of ineases and deeases in net smsets from operations during the reporting period. Acheal results coubd differ from those estimates
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{a} Undeilying Fands The Trustee and Manager may zpply 2 o a portion of
the assets of ) FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, FIMCO Bermisda Bank
Loan Fund B, FIMCO Berruda Bank Eoan Fund C and PIMCO Besmuda Bank
Loan Fund D (i) FIMCO Wodd High Income; (i) FIMCO Berruda Global
Angregate Ex-fapan (Yen-Hedged) Bond Fund and PIMCO Bermuda Global
Aggregate Ex-lapan Bond Find; () FIMCO Bermuda income Fund A, FIMCO
Bemmuda Income Fund D and PIMCD Berrmuda income Fund E; (W) PFIMCD US
High Yiebd (e -Hedged) Fund, PIMCO LS. High Yidd Fund, PIMCO US

High Yietd Strateqy Fund, and MO0 LS, High Yield Strategy Fund 11 (vi)
PIMCO LS, Hegh Yield {Yen-Hedged) Fund il and PIMOO U5, Hgh Yield Fund
1i; dvii) PIMCO Emerging Bond (Yen-Hedged) income Fund, PIMCD Emengng
Bond income Fund, PIMCO Emerging Bond income Fund I, and PIMCO
Ermeenging Bond Incorre: Fund 1l {(each referned to heréin a5 a "Rund of Funds™
of "Acquiring Fund”, which nvests in other Funds) o the respective credit of
(i) PIMCO Berrmuda Bank Loan Fund (M); @) FIMCO Barmuda Emeérging
Markets Bond Fund (M (i) PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan
Bond Fund (W ) FIMCO Beirnuda Inccene Fursd (M0 () PIMCO Barmuda
15, High Yield Fured (M); &) PIMCO Bermuda U5 High Yiehd Fund 11 (M
(i) FINECO) Emierging Bond incorme Fund (M) (each retesmed i henéin a3 an
“Underhing Fund™ or ~Acouired Fund™). Amy assets so applied will be held in
sych Acouired Fund & if received directly Where assets are 0 applied, the
Acguired Fund will record the issee of units to the relevant Acquiring Fund at
Uhie Fssue price pef unitof such units and wall repurdhase such urets at the
repurchase price per unit of such urits at the Bime of repurchase. Accondingly,
the abiliny of the Acquiring Fund to advieve its imvesiment objective will
depend upon the atslity of the appicable Acquired Fund to achieve its
bmves ment objective. There can be no assurance that the imesment obgective
of the Acquired Fund will be achisved

]

Ratios thown in the Anandal Highlights do nat include expenses of the
Aoguined Funds See Nobe 9, Fees and Expenses, for further information
regardng fund fees

(b} Secwities Transactions and lovestment Income So0uiined ansachons
are recorded a5 of the rade date for finamEal reporting purposes. Sequnities
purchased o sold cn 2 whien-sised of delayved-gelivery bass may be

settled beyvond a standard setement period for the seamity after the rade
date, Realized gains and losses from securities sold are recorded on the
identified gost basis. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date,
except centain dvidends fom forson seounities whene te ex-diidend date
iy have passed, which are redorded 44 s00n a5 a Fund is infomed of the
ex-dividend date Interest income, adusted for the accretion of decounts and
amortization of premiums, i recorded on the acoudl basis from cettlement
date, with the exception of sequrities with a fonward starting eflecive date,
b interest inoome is reconded on the accnual basds from effective date For
convertible securites, premiums atnbutable 1o the comerson feature ane not
amortized. Estimated tax liabilities on certain foreign seqmities are recorded
on an scoual basis and are reflected as components of inberest income or et
change in unredized apprecanion (deprecanion) on imesTments o the
Statements of Operations, 35 apgropriate. Tax Nabeities realized a5 & result of
such ssinity sales ane refleded a5 a companent of net realized gain (os) an
Bvestments on the Statements of Operations. Papdown gains and fosses on
mmortgage-refated and other azset-badved securities, if amy, ane reconded as
components of interest income on the Statements of Operations

Dbt obfigaticans may be placed on non-acaual status and related interest
o iy be redeced by ceasing cusrent aocruals and wiiting off intenest
recedvable when the collection of all or a portion of interest has become
doubtiul based on corsistenty applied procedures. A debt obligagien is
removed from non-aooual stalus when the issuer resumes. inferest payments
of when callectabil ity of interest is probable

i) Cash and Fereign Camency The financal statements of each Fund are
presented using the cumency of the Lrimary econdimed ermanondrent in whidh i
operates (the "hunctional cumency™) The RsncBonal currendy for the Rmds is
the LS dallar, excepd for the FIMCO Bermoda income Rend E, whedh 18 the
lapanete yen

The market values of foreign securities, qumency hicdings. and other assets
and Babilities are translated into eadn Fund's funcional cumency Dased on the
currenl exchangs ratel each budiness day. Purchates and sales of secugities
and imcome and expense items dencminated in foreign amendes, if amy, are
trandated into each Fund's respective hunclional curmency at the exchange
rate in effect on the ransadien date. The Funds do not separately report the
effects of chamges in foreign exchange rates from changes in markel prices on
seduities hetd Sudh chamges are induded in net realized and net dianges in
i el zed Gain of boss. from envestments on the Statements of Operations.
Thie Funds may irvest in foresgn asmendy denominated sequriies and may
engpge in foreign curmency wansactions efther on a spod (cash) basis at the
rate prevading in the currendy exchange market at the time or theough 2
forward foreign cumency contract. Realized foseign exchange gains of bosses
ansng from sales of spot foredgn umendes, cumendy gans of losses realized
bebwesn the trade and setfement dates on securifies ransactions and the
difference between the recorded amounts of dvidends, interest, and foseign
withfolding tzes and the furctional curmency equivalent of the amounts
actually recened or paid ane indwded in net realized gan of loss an fonegn
CUFTENCY IFaRSBotons of the STaTEmEn of Operatans. Net unrealized foregn
exchange gains and losses aming fom changes in foreign exchange rates on
foreign denomenated assets and lizbiities ather than investments in seqanities
hield at he end of te repoting penod are indudsd in net change in
uneeali2ed apgrecation of deprecaton o hfi'l_::l'l umency aisels and
lihilities on the Staterments of Operaticns

Thie Met Asset Valoe (THAVT) and tatal retumns of certain Funds (or Classes
thereof, a5 applicabds) are presented in the arrency for which the NAY is
reported (thie “HAY cumrency™ ) as detaled in eadh Fund's Offering
Bemarandum (the Crffering Memarandum™). For e purposes of the
pretentation of the NAY and the wtal return in the NAY curency, the
begnning and ending NAVS are comverted wsing the period beginming and
endng exchange raes, respectively, and dstributions e comverted using the
exnchange rate 3t the Gme of the distribution. See the folowing table for the
MAY axrency and funcional qimency of each respective Fund

Ay Functional
Fand/Class: Camirey s

FIMCL Barmuda Bandk Loss Fund (M) 1.3 dolly U5 dellar
FMCD Bermiuda Bandk Lo Fund &

»  FRSH U5 delly U3 dollar

«  JUPY Japanes e UE dellsr

- JEm Japanen e U5 doflar

»  YLUP Japanen yae 35 detar

s sy Jispanes yen U5 dollar
FIMED B Bank Loan Fund 8

L] ] Auvsralion dollr | UG dollar

s YAUE J g e S deollar

[ ¥ [BRL) Japanes yan S, doflar

o ¥IMW| Japania e U5 dollar

a  YIRUE Jaggrnenias U5 dollar

- ¥ [TAY) Japmems v U5 dellar
FIMCD Barmiuda Band Loss Fund G

& YICAED Jispanen e LS dollsr
FIMED Barmudia Bank Loaa Fund 0

- T Waildl Japanis e 115 dellar
FIMCE Bermuds Emargng Markes Bond Fund M) U5 dolly U3 deollar
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; NAY Fenetianal MNAY Funeticnsl
Fundflazs. Currersy Carrprey Fund/Clase Curency Currmney
FIMCO Barmada Ematgng Marbets Bond Fusd | FIMLD Ermargeng Boed Incneme Fend ] |
LI g Japanesa yan 5. dofw = JEUR Japwemeyen | LS dollar
s bt LIPY Hedged) Japaneia yin U5 dellat o JiGBR Japanss yan i U5 dollar
FIMCD Bairmuds Gobal Aggiegats Ex-Japa [Yen- - Jushm Japmea v LS dollsr
| Hadgadl Bond Fund e e FIMCO Shart Torm Morsgage Incame
|_PAMCD Bairmuds Gioksl Agipegase Ex-Japwn Bond Fund | Jiparwsayen | U5 dobs « R Eurn US. dllr
i FIMCO Bemade Gobal Agoregese Bx-Japen Bored Furd P U5 doet »  lreciuEm® U5 dellr 1% dollar
| 5 JFY J s e WS dollar
| FIKACD Batrrunds o Fend (W) WS dollar U5 dollat - JLIPY, Hedged) g o U5 dollar
1 FIMCD Berrrusds Incoms Fond & . =] k.5 delly U35 dellar
= FUM Japanesa yon U5 doflw FIRLD L5 Hogh Yield [ Yess-Hadeed) Fusd Jaspnencas i LS dollar
- F s U5, doller U5 dodw FIMCO U5 High Yeld | Yen-Hadged) Fund B Japane v U3 doflar
s JUFN Japania yen L5 dofa FIMECD U5 High Yiedd Fund Japanign e 115 doflar
- ) QG Japarees yen 1 5. dedlst PAMECD U 5 High Yied Fund 1l Jupwesnwen | LS dollar
= KRS U35 doder UG dobat _FIMCO U5 High Yield Sramgy Fund E———
= WUFM Jespanesayen U5 doflw = JUFN Japaness v U4 dollar
*  HiUsh Jepeness yen UL5. dafar s JUPY, Hedgedd Japmemyen | UG dollar
- PUPY Jspmnisma yen W5 dols - Jism U5 doliw 1S dellar
s  QOUPD Japares s yon 5. dolks = ¥ LUP Jipni e U3 dellar
« RO Japansts vn WS dola ® ¥ UPY. Hedgad) g v 15 dollar
= SUPY lapanesa yen U'5: dolat FIMCO L5 High Yield Sraspy Fond |
= TUF Japanes o yen U5 dola s YlAUD Japanen yae U5 dellar
- 1 sy US dolle L5 dobs - ¥ [BRL Japmnomn WS dellar
- W el U5 doller 5. doliat - F IMAN) Japania yan U5 dollar
e XDFY Japaresa n U5, dor s Y[AY Japinisa yas 15 dellsr
. ANED U3 doler 5. dofas FIMCT Wierkd High ot 1.5 dolw | U5 dollar
= TUPY Japenssa yen LS. dollas
= ¥HSD SIS 0 115, el * Mhis Class was ligueidlned dhning the rapar ting perod
- I UPY Japarass yn U5 dole
FIMCD Barmuds Incoms Fend 0 {d] Multiclass Operatiens Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
= ifiordd) Japaresa yn i 5 dolia rights 1o the assets of the Fund egual 1o that of other Classes of the same
LN (] Jspantse yen L5 dolw Furd, sxcept for (peafic aoters and gains and losses desionated bo & Class
_FIMCD Bavrmusds Income Fond E E =[S ] relating to currency hedging operations. Inoome, non-Class spedfc epenses,
Ll B2 1606 LIPT Japansa yen Jigratene yen and non-Class spedfic reabzed and unreakzed capital QaEns and bosses. ane
e B EE S Japanesa yen Japanese yen #ocated to eadh Class of units based on the refative net assets of eadh Class
*  BJ IEELUPY Jepentss yen Japatae yan of the respective Fund Class speafic expentes ourmently mcude
o B EEMER Japanesa yen Japaria yen management, advisory, administratve and distribation fees, where applicable
= 3 IBLE LPT
= g ] :2.2:;;.-‘-_ J? E:E j;m ::: h]_‘llhﬂl_uin Pelicy The following table shows _'.I'e anticipated 'reu:'.l.-e_nv::.'
FINCD Bamada Lows D asion bgome Fund of -,m‘:nh_,-n-:ms for r-.'s:!'. Fund []?mt‘ur-'_m_s from each I_ur:-'J may be dedared
PR ™ U5 dotar .=.:1-'.Jms.lrll:ure:1n Unithofders onfy upon _I"ue authorization of the Manager,
FIMCD Botmmuda Mes matn SRR whidh authorization may be withheld at the Manager®s distreSion
= JUER Japanesa yn 5. dofat
s Us0 U5 dollse s PRECD Besrrorda Bk Loan Fund A
| PIMCO Bermude U5 Hagh Yosld fund M) U5 dole U5 doiar P Bermeeda Bank Low Fund B
| FAMCD Besrmuds U1 5 Migh Yasd Fund I () apiares s v L5 dolle PRCO Barmegde Bk Lown Fund C
; PIMCD Ermesging Bond [YierHedgee] Income Fund deprrasayen | U5 doba PRI Basrriod Bk Lo Fund 0
FIMCD Emaigng Band Incama Fod Jsparima yen 5 dols ;
| FIMCD Ermeiggng Band ks Furd (M) U5, dolar U5 dobar m‘iﬂ Ee.irr:ﬂa]‘:rmm finda
| IO Frmeigpng Bond Inoems Fend 1 = FIii-Sl,'II
- ] Japaresa yon L5, dollw s JUPA
= JiBAL Jsparta yon W5 dola . JoE
- JICADY Japarss ymn U5 dofas 5 H LY
= JOOR Japanssa yen U5, dola . HEED
- J ANR} Jopareda yin LS dolat 5 % (T
= JIKRW Japaresa yon WS dolla . XU
e JM Japaresain 15, do . XSO
= JfuB Japanes e yn U5 dollar . YU
L = (AT Jsparssn yen 15 dolar T
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Doclared ard Paid Monthly: Cart |

- Y sl
FAMIEL) Biermisds lnentrs Fund O
FIMCD Bermuda Mer age Dpporumses Fend
FAMCE Ermergesg Bosd [Yen-Hedgad) noome Fund
FAKICE Emenging Bond Income Fund
FHCT Emerging Bond Income Fignd B
P Emangieq Bosd Incoms Fand B
FAMCO ShorTerm Morgags fecoma Fund

U 1
FIMCO L5 High Yield [en-Hedged) Fund
FIRCOU 5 Hagh Tield Fond
FIMEO U S Hagh Yiekd Seestegy Furd
FIMCOU.S Hagh Yield Seewmay Fund il
PIMCD Wfor i Magh leciome
Declared and Paid Duartarly
FAMICE) Blarmidy bncorme Fund A

L] 18 ]

FALECD) Bermudy Income Fend E (prvaded shart the dasdand yield shall be no hagher than
5% per annum ower ary oo year rolieeg penod)

Dselared und Paid Semianrmlly:
FAMKCE] Barmasda e Fend &
= FUF
s R
FARICT) St -Form Morgags incoma
= EUA
. APY
= | UPY, Hedged)
L

uger doss not axpect to declane dirribetions with resgect to those
Fu-uii {er Classss tharaad, il spplicabla), nu‘t m—i, inits discretion, daclana and
distribwticns to the Unichalders st

HF-D;I:IB.enmSa Bask Lo Funed AM )

FABICO Bermuda Emengeng burkes Bond Fand M)

FIMCO Bermuda Erengng Makes Bond Fond il

FIMLD Bermuda (Bshal Sggregare Ex-depan [ Ten-Hedped) Band Fond
FIMICO Bermuda Gabal Aggregam Exdagan Bond Fund

FIMCD Bermudy Gabal Agqgregais Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M)

FARICL] Blermisds lncome Fund A

. (&il}a]
- TP
L] 15 s
. Wiso
. L UFY
FIRICE] Bermasda Income Fund 665

FIMICE) Bermuda Lo Duration kcome Fusd

FAMICE) Bermad U5 High Yoeld Fund (M)

FIMCO Bermuda 115 High Yield Fund Il (W)

FIMALL] Ematgeng Bosd Ingomes Fund (W)

FIMICO U 5 High ‘ield [¥en-Hedged) Fund B
PIMCOU 5 Hagh Yield Fund 11

* The Clacs v lqusdated during the meposing panod

*° Ay der usens with sespeet 1o Daes U 0050 Units ol the Fond well be declansd in
accordarce wesh  levier agresment baovween the Manager and the imessare in such Qs
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Distribtions, i any, will gensrally be made from the relevant Fund's (or
Class's, if appecable) nel imvestment income. In addition, the LEETER T i
authoeize the payment of net realized capital gains available for dretribution
Addnonal deinbubons miny be dedared a3 the Manager deems Approphate
Destributions paidwith respect to.amy Fund for Class thereof, i applicable)
will reduce the WAV of sach Fund for Class thereof, if applicable) Af the
disretion of the Unitholders, cash distributions froem & Fund (or Class thensod
il applicable) ray eher be reimvected in sadinonat wnits of & Fund i Class
thereof, it applicable) or pad 10 2 Unitholder in cash. Cash payments wil be
paid in the WAV asmengy of the Fund, Each Fund {or Class thereof, if
appiacable) many dedlang fur thisr desiriba Uoens 1T conSdensd necessay in onder
fo maintain a reasonabie level of distributions. for a Fund (or Class thereof, if
applicabie). In the event that thene is nadeguate netincome and met realized
capital gaims to pay a distribetion of 3 Fund (or Class thereof if appicatie)
required bey the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
cormsisting of & portion of the capital of such Fund {or Class thereod, if
applcable). Dwiributions not colieded within dx years fom their due date

will Lapse and will accnue 1o the benelt of the relevant Fund for (lass thereof,

it applicable)

[} News Acceunting Pronouncaments In March 2016, the Finandal
Accounting Standards Board (" FASE™) isswed an Accounting Standards
Update (TASUT), ASU 2016405, which provides quidanice related to the
impact of deriative confract novations on certan relaticnships under
Accounting Standsnds Codfication Togic (TASCT) 815, The ASU is effective
for annual periods beginning after Decernber 15, 2007, and intedm periods
within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018 The Fends have
adopied the ASUL The implementation of the A%0U did not have an impact on
any Fund's finandal statements

I August 2006, the FASE issued an ASL, ASLEZ0TE-15, which amends A5C
130 1 danify guidance on the dasaficaion of certain cash receipts and cash
paryrients on the Statement of Cash Hows The ASU s effective for annwal
penads begirming after Decembeer 15, 2018, andintenim periods beginning
after December 15, 2019 The Funds have adopied the ASL The
implemintaton of the ASU did not hade an impact on any Fund's finandal
SLFIETRNTE

I August 2018, the FASE issued an ASLL ASU 2D18-13, which amends ASC
2320 to modity the disd cbure requirements on fair value measurements. The
ASL i effective for snnual pericds beginning after December 15, 2019, and
Inbefim peficd within thote annusl pediods . The: irplemiencatsan of the ASU
remimes of modifies certalin disclosure requirements. AL Bis tme,
managerment has elected o early adopl the ASU and the changes are
incorporated in the finandal statements

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AMD FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

i) Investment Valuatien Pelicies The price of a Fund's units 15 based on
the Fund’s NAY The NAV of 3 Fund, or each of its Jlasses, a5 applicabde, &
aebermined by iflﬂﬂl;l Thie ROLE wale o P Cholo Inwestenenis snd ofher
asels attributabie to that Fund or Class, less any labikties, by the total
nurmtwer of urels cutstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Diay (a5 desaibed in the curment Offering Memorandum of the Trusp),

Fund units are ordinarly valued a5 of the dose of regular trading on the New
York Stock Exchange ("NYSE Chose™). information that becomes known to
the Funds of thisir agents after the feme 55 of whach MAV has been caloulsted
an 3 particular day will not generally be used 10 retroactively adpust the prige
of 4 secusity of the WAV determined earier that day. Each Fund feterves the
right to change the time as of whach its NAV & caadated if the Fund doses
earlier
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For purpases of caloulating a MAY, portiolio sensities and other assets for
whech market quotes are resdily availsble are valued at marketvalue Market
wal i is gener ally detemmmined on the basis of offical dodng prices or the lag
repofied sales pnces, of if no sabes are feparted, based on quobes oblasned
froem established market makers or peices (induding evaluated prices) supplied
by the Funids’ approved priding senices, quotation reporting systems and
other thind-pary sources (logether, ™ Pridng Serices™) The Fends wil
nerrally s pricing data for domestic equity securies received shorty after
the NYSE Close and do nof normally take into account trading dearances or
setthements that take place after the NYSE Close, f market value pricing is
used, a foreign (non-L 5 ) equity seouity raded on a foreign exchange of on
made than ome exchange is typically valyed using peicing nfomnation from the
exchange considened by the Manager 1o be the pimany exchange. A foreign
(non-U S ) equity searity will be walued as of the dose of trading on the
forsiagn ecchange, or the NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close oocurs belore the end
of trading on the foreign exthange. Domestic and foreign {(ton-Lt 5 ) fixed
Encoene seanies, non-enchange raded dervatves, and equity opions are
norrmally valued on the baus of quotes obtained from brokers and dealiers or
Pricing Serdces ugng data reflecsng the earier dosing of the princpal
markets for those securities. Prices cbained from Fricing Sendces may be
based on, among other things, information provided by market makers o
estimates of market values obtained from vield data relating to investments or
Securities wath amila chavaqenstics. Certan fived mcome Seoenities
purchased on 2 delayed-delivery basis are marked to market daily until
setthement at the forward sastlement date. Exdhange-raded options, except
equily options, fulures and apticers on futures, are valued at the settfement
price determined by the relevant exchange. Swap agreements are valued on
e Bsasis of bid quotes obeamned from brokers and deders or markel-hased
prices supplied by Fridng Services or other pridng sources. A Fund's

mves ments in open-end management investment companies, other than
exchange-traded funds ("ETF:"), are valied at the Mavs of such investments
Open-end manragement mestment companies may imdude sffiliated funds

11 & foreagn {on-115 ) equty scuity’s value has matenaly changed atter the
dose of the securiby’s primary exchange or prindpal market but before the
NYSE Close, the security may be valwed at far value based on procedures
established and approved by the Manager. Forsign (non-L1S ) equity
secufities that do mot trade when the NYSEis open are aiso valued a1 fair
walie. With respect 10 foreign fnom-U1 5 ) equity securiies, 3 Fund may
determine the lair value of investments bassd on information provided by
Fricing %ervices and other third-party vendors, which may recommend &zir
walue or sdustments with reference to afer securities, indices or assets. In
consdering whether fair walaation is required and in determining fair

walues, 3 Fund may, armong othes things, consider significant events dvhich
may be congidered o indude changes in the value of US. securities o
sexurities indices) that oocur after the dose of the relevant market and before
the KYSE Close. A Fund may utilize modling focls provided by third-party
wendors to determing fair vatues of foreign (non-U1L5 ) sequrities. Fof these
purpcses, any movement in the applicable reference index or Enstrument

(" zer0 trigger ™) between the eardier dose of the applicabée foreign market
and the NYSE Clote may be déemed to be 3 tgnificant event, prompting the
application of the pridng modsl (effectvedy resulting in day fair valuations)
Forelgn exchanges may permit radng o foregn (non-1US ) equity weasities
on days when the Trast is notopen for business, which may result in a Fund's
portolio mves ments beng aftected when Unitholders ane unable to buy o
sall units

Senbor secured floating rate boars for which an active secondary market exdsts
10 3 reliable degree will be walued at the mean of the last svailsbte bidiak
prices in the market for siach loans, a4 prosaded by a Fricng Senice Semior
corcurnid foating rane loard bor which v active secondany markel dos nol
exist 10 a reliable degres will be valued at fair value, whidh is mtended to

approsimate market valise. In valuing 3 senior secured floating rate loan at
tair value, the factors considered may indude, but ae not limited 1o, the
following: () the creditwarthiness of the borroweer and any intermediate
partipants, (B the terme of the laan, () recént prioes in the marke fof
similar loans, if amy, and {d) recent prices in the market for instruments of
simalar quealicy, rate, period undil next interest rate reset and maturity

Inrvesamen s valued in cumendes other than the functional qunrency

of a Fund are cormeented o the functional curmency wing exchange ratet
obtained from Fridng Services. As aresult, the value of sudh investments and,
in bum, e NAY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes in the valye
of crendes inrelafion to the funcional cumency. The value of invesiments
rraded in foreign markets of genominated @ Cumendes other than

she fencthonal curnendy Mgy be affected Senificantly on & day that the Trust is
not open for busnes. AS a result, 1o the edent that a Fund holds foceign
(non-U %) imestments, the value of thoes Bnvestments may duange at tmes
when your cannot purdhase, redesm of exchange urits and the value of such
investments will be reflected in the Fund's next calodated NaY

Imvestments for which rarket quotes of market bated valustions are niot
readly mvlable arevalued a1 fair value as determined in good faith by

the Manader or persors acting at their direction. The Manager has adopted
methods for valuing securities and other assets in dnoumstances where
market quotes are not readily available, and has delegated to PIMCO the
responsibadity for agphying the fair valuation methods I the event that market
quabes o maket bated valuations are not readily availabde, and the security
of assat canngd bevalued pursuant to 3 Manager approved valuation
method, the value of the sedeity or asset will be determined in good faith by
the Valuation Committes, Markel quotes are considered nof readly svailable
IR Ofurmstances whene thefe 15 an absence of current of reliable manoet:
based data (e g, rade information, bidfas infemation, Endicative market
quiatations {"Broker Quotes™), Priding Sendces’ prices), induding whene
events ooour after the dose of the relevant maket, but prior to the NYSE
Close, that materialy affect the values of the Fund's sequnities of aem In
aadition, markel quotes are considered not readily available when, due o
etraordnany droumelances, the sahanges of markets on whach the
sequnties frade do not open for trading for the entire day and no other
market prices are avatable. The Manager s responsitie for monitoring
significant events that may materially affect the values of the Fund's sequrities
of assets and o deterrening whether the value of the applicable ssaumnties of
ascets should be remaliuated in Bght of such significant events

When a Fund uses fair valuaton 1o determne tevalue of a portholio sequnty
of chheer asset for purposes of caboulating its Hav, such investments will not
be peiced on the basis of quotes from the primary market in which they are
wraded, but rather may be priced by anather method that the Manager of
pertons acting at their drecson believe reflects Sair value Fair valuation ay
require subjective determinations aboud the valpe of a searity. While

the Trust's policy is intended 1o result in a calculation of 2 Fund's NAY that
tairty reflets security values a5 of the time of pridng, the Trust cannot ensyse
mhat Tar walues detenmoned by e Manage oF persons ading at ther
direcion would acourately reflect the peice that a Fund could abtam for 3
seERy i it were o depase of that security a4 of the trme of pridag (hof
ingtance, in a forced or distressed sabe). The prices used by 3 Fund may dffer
from the value thatwould be realized if the seourities were sold

ib) Fair Value Hierarchy L) 5 GAAP dewmibes far value a5 the prce that

& Furvd weould receive to <all an asset or pay 10 ransfer 3 liability in an ordery
Bransaction betwiéen markel paricpants at e messurement date It
establishes a far valug hieranchy that pricntizes inpuls to valuation meshods
and reguires desdoaure of the fair vakue hierardhy, separately for each major
category of assets and llabdites, that segreaates (i valse meamurements into
Diwiels (Liwved 1, 2, or 23, The inputs or methodology wed for valuing securites
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are ot necessanly anindicasion of the risks assodiated with investing in those
securities. Levels 1,2, and 3 of the fair valie hisrarchy are defined a5 follows

* Ll 1 —Ceoted prices in sciee markets of exchanges for sdentcal assels
and liabilities

» Lavel 2—Significant other cheenable inputs, which may indude, but are
nok Emited to, quoted prices for smilar assets or liabdities in markets that are
active, quoted prioes fof identical or snnilar s5seqs of llabdies in markes that
are v A0ive, Inputs other than quoted prices that e observable for he
astets of Babilaties (such &5 mierest rated, yveld cunes, walatilines, prepayTment
speedk, boss severiBes, areditnisks and default rates) or other market
CoiTolborabed Inputs

* Lewel 3—Significant unobservable inputs based on the best infamation
available in the droumstances, to the extent obsersable inputs are not
available, whidh mdy indude assumptions made by the Manager of peroons
acting at their direction that are wed in determining the fair value of

s tments

Assets or liabilifies categonzed a5 Level 2 or 3 a5 of period end have been
transdienmed between Level 2 and 3 since the prior peiod due o changes in
the enethod uslized in valuing the irsestments. Transfers from Level 2 o Level
3 are a resull of 3 dhange, in the nomal murse of butiness, from e e of
walyztion methods wsed by Pricing Senices (Level 2 o the use of 2 broker
quote or valyation technigue which uiilizes significant uncbsenable inguts
e b0 an gbsence of ourrent of reliabte market-based data (Level 2)

Transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 are 3 result of the availabikity of current and
refable markel-based data provided by Pricing Services or other valuation
techniques whach wilize dgnificant obsenatle inputs

In aocordance with the requrements of ULS. GAAR, the amaunts of tramshers
i and out of Lewel 3, it material, are disdosed o the Notes 10 Schedube of
Imvestments for each respective Fund

For tair valuations using significant uncbservalle inputs, U5 GAAF requires
to dhsclose transfers into and out of Level 3 of the fairvalue hierandhy and
purchases and isses of Leved 3 avsets and liabilines dunng the period
Additionally, LS. GAAP requiret quantitatve information regandng the
significani unobeenvable inputs wiedin the determination of fair value of
asets or bakilities categonized s Level 3 n the fair value hierardhy. In
acoordance with the fequinements of U5 GAAP. a fairvalue hierarchy, and if
rmatedial, detats of significant unobsenvabie inputs, have been induded in the
Mates 1o Schedule of Invesirnents for each respective Fund

{ch Valuation Techaiques and the Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 amd Level 2 trnding assets and trading linbilities, ot fair value The
wilranon methods (oF T tedmigues™) nd signifcant inpuls used in
determining the far vaiues of portfolio securifes or other assets and Eabilities
cateqarized a5 Level 1 and Lewel 2 of the fair value hieraschy are a5 follows:

Fied income securities induding comporate, convertble and munidpal bonds
and notes, U5 govemment agendes, US reasury obligations, sovereign
Feades, bank losns, oomertibe pftitl'fl}ﬂ senites and non-Lts. bonds are
nairmaly valued on the bags of quobes obtained from brokers and dealers o
Pridng Sendces that use beoker-dealer quatations, reported rades of
waluation estimates from their intemal pricing models. The Fridng Seneces’
Entema models use inpuls that are obserdable such a5 Bsuer detads, nierest
ranes, yield curves, prepayrent speeds, credit riskafpreads, defaull rates and
quitied prices for Smilar assels Securites that use smilar valaton
techniques and inpats a5 described above are categonized as Level 2 of the
fair walue hierardhy

Fiseed income saqunties purchased on a delayed-deliveny basis or as a
repunchiase CoMmitmEnt in d-S-dlE'tl.lj':\'r.'l' Transachon ane marked 10 make
daily uniil setdement at the ionwvard settement date and are cateqonized as
Liwed 2 of the fair value hierandry

Mortgage-related and asset-tacked sequrites are wsualy Bsued 35 separate
tranches, or dasses, of sequmities within each deal Thege seamities are aso
noemally valued by Pricing Sences that use broker-dealer quatations,
reported Brades of valuaton estimates from ter intema pridng models. The
priing models for these secunities usually consider ranchedevel attibutes,
current market data, esBmated cash Bows and market-based yield spreads for
each franche, and incorporate deal collateral performance, as awailable
Mortgage Telated snd asser-backed sequnses that use wmila valu sticn
sechnagques snd inputs as desaibed sbove are categorized a3 Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Cowrmdn shades, ETFs, eochange-traded notes and finandal derpeative
instruments, such 35 fulures contracts, rights and warants, or opfons on
Butures that are raded on @ natona seqwrites exchange, are stated ai the
last reportid sals of sefflement price on the day of valuation. Ta the extent
Eese secufines are actively raded and valuation sdustments e nol applied,
ey are categorized as Leved 1 of the fair walue hierandy

Investments valued (denominated)y in curmendes other than the functional
cummency of @ Fund are converted o the fundtiondl aumendy using exchange
rates {curtency tpat and forward rates) obitained from Pricng Services. A<
result, the NAY of 3 Fund's units may be affeced by dhangss in the value of
currencies in relation 10 the functicnal cumency. The value of scurities raded
in foreign markets or denominated in currendes other than the functional
curmency iy be affected sonificantly on 2 day that the Taust is notopen for
busiriess. Valsation acqustments may be applied to certain sequrities that are
solely traded cn & foreign exchandge 1o sccount for fe markel mowerment
bebsesn the dose of the foreign market and the NYSE Clote. These sequrities
are walued using Pricing Seneces that consider the correlation of te rading
pattems of the foreign security to the intraday radneg in the U S markets for
invesuments. Securites wsing these valuation adustments are categorized as
Lewel 2 of the tair value hierardry. Prefermed securities and other equities
traded on inactive markets of valued by relerence to Smilar indruments ane
abso categorized a5 Lewel 2 of the fairvalue hisrarchy

Equitylinked sequrities are valued by referendng the last reported sae or
semlement price of the Enked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foregn exchange adustments ae apglied to the last reportied price to
corvert the linked aquity's trading cumency to the wniract’s settling urrengy
These imestments are legariped a5 Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

imvestments in registered open-end investment comparies (other than ETF)
will be vatued bazed upon the MAVs of sudh investments and are categorized
&5 Lewed 1 of the fair valee heerarchy. vesments in unregrbened open-end
investment companies will be calaslated based upon the NAVS of sudh
investments and are contidered Level 1 prosaded that the NAYs are
obeervable, calodated daily and are the value at which both purdch ases and
sales will be condected

Equity exchange-traded apoons and over the counter inanodd defivative
imetnuments, sech 3% fonward foreign curnendy confracts and oplions contrads,
derive their valys from undertying asset prices, indces, reference rates, and
other inputs o 3 combination of tese factors. These confracts are nomally
villued on the basis of quotes obtzined from a quotation feporting srsten,
eirablithed markel makers of Pricng Senaces (normally determined a4 of the
NYSE Close). Depending on the product and the terms of the ransaction,
finandal dedivative instruemenis can be valped by Pricing Sendces wsing a
sefies of techriques, induding simulaBon pridng models. The pricing models
s nputs that are obsenved from actively quited markets sindh a5 quotied
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prices, Bouer detals, indices, bidfask spreads, interest rates, impled

wil anhnes, yeld amvis, didends and exchange rates. Amand ¥ dematve
Enstnsments that use similar valuation techniques and inputs as desaibed
above are cateqonded a5 Level 2 of the lar value Feerancy

Cenfraly deared swaps and over the oounter syaps demve their value from
uniderking asset prices, indices, reference ratés, and other inputs of 3
comibination of these factors. They are valued using & broker-dealer bid
quatation of on market-bated prces provided by Pricing Seneces (normally
determined a5 of the NYSE Closs). Centrally deared swaps and over the
counber swaps can be walued by Fricing Sendoes using a series of technigues,
indluding sirmudation pricng modeks. The pridng models may use inputs that
are ctverved from aclwvely quoted markers sudh 45 te owerreghl index avap
rate (COB) London hiebank Offered Rate (TLIBOR™) fonward rate, interest
ranes, yield curves and credit spreads These securities are categonized as
Lewed 2 of the fair value hieranchy

Lewel 3 trading assets and trading labilities, ad tair value When a far
waliation method 15 apphied by e Manager that uses SII:H'IIﬁG}‘}I
uniobrervable mputs, invesirments will be prced by 3 methad that

the Manager of parions sing at ther direction believe reflecs far value and
are categorized as Leved 3 of the fair valus hierardhy. The valuation
techniques and significant inputs usedin determining the fair values of
portfolio assets and Rabrlites categonized & Level 3 of the far value hierarchy
aree a5 follows

Pricey peicing procedures set e base price of 8 fieed income sequrity and
subseguently adust the price proportionally 1o market value changes of 3 pre-
detenmined sesity deemed to be comparable in duration, generally a LS
Treasuny Of Screneign mobe barsed on Coun I.T‘y"j-‘ tssissnce. The base price may
be a broker-dealer quote, ransadion price, of an internal valise 35 derived by
Analysis of market data. The bade pace of the scurnity may be resel on &
periodic basis based on the awvail ability of market data and procedures
approved by the Valuaton Committee Significant dangesin the
unctsenvabe inputs of the prowy pridng process. (the base price) would result
in direct and proponional changes in the fair value of the seauriy. These
securifies ane cabegonzed as Level 3 of the far value hierardhy

I third-party svaluated vendar pridng is not Svalable of not deemed to be
indigative of t3ir value, the Manager may elect o oblan Eroker Quotes
directly from the broker-dedler of passed twrough from a third-party vemdaor
In the event dat fair value s based wpon 3 single sourced Broker Quote,
thiste seciprities ane caleqonisd a4 Level 3 of the far value hierardry. Broker
Guotes are typically received from established market participants Although
mdependenty received, the Manager doet not have the transparency o view
the undering Inputs which suppar the market quotation Significant
changes in the Broker Quote would hive dnsct snd proportional dhanges in
the fair value of the sequmity

Discounted cash fow valualion uses an intemal anahygsis based on the
Manager's expectation of fuhere income and expenses, capital strueciure,
exitmiiliples of 3 security, and other unchservable inputs wihich may indide
coniractual and factud loan factors, estimated future payments and dedt
rang. Significant changes in the unobiensable inputs of the models would
result in direct and peoportional chan ges in the far value of the sequrity
These securities are Calegorized a5 Level 3 of the fair valuee hierarchy

Short-term debit nstruments Guch as commendal paper) having a remaining
manrity of 60 diays or bess may be valued 31 amoriized cost, 5o long a5 the
amnortized cost vaiue of sade hoet-tem debd instuments. & 3gpoodmatdy te
carne 45 the fair value of the instament a5 determined without the use of
amortized cost vauation, These seamilies are Q@legorized a5 Level 2 o Level
3 of the far value hierarchy depending on the source of the baze price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

ial Delayed-Delivery Tmasactions C=rizn funds may purchase o sell
Leduietied on A delayed-delivery balis. Thete iransacbons ifvobe 4
cornmitrment By .a Fand o punchase of sell seunnies for 3 predetemmined pice
of yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond the ustomary
sertement penod When delayed-delivery rantacions aré outstandng,

& Fund wall designate of receive a5 collateral liquid assets in an amount
sufficent o meet the punchase prce or respectee obfigations. When
purchadng & security on & didaved-defivery bass, 3 Fund atsumes the dghts
and risks of ownership of the sequrity, induding the risk of price and yield
Buctuations, and takes such fluctuations into account when detemiring it
HAV. A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delayed-delivery transacion
after it is entered into, which may resultin 2 realized gain of loss. When

& Fund has sold a secuity on 3 delayed-delivery basis, the Fund does nat
partaipate in futwre gaing and losses with respect to the sequrity

ib] Inflation-Indexed Bomds Certain Funds may invest in inflafon-indeced
bonds. Irifl stoon -indexed bonds ane flooed income stountes whose pringpal
value is periodically adusted by the rate of inflation. The interest rate on
these bonds is generally fied atissuance at a rate lower than typical bonds
Crver the Be of an inflafion-indexed bond, however, interest will be paid
based on a prindpal vaiue, which s adusted for infation. Anyinease of
dedreate in the prindipal amaont of an mflabon-ndeed bond will be nduded
# interest incomme on the Statements of Operations, sen Fough imetior 4o
nol recerve their prindpal unsl maturity. Repayment of the ohginal bond
principal upan matenity (35 adusted for inflation) is quaranteed in the case of
U5 TIPS, For bonds that do nod proside a urilar quarantes, the sdusted
prindpal value of the bond repald at maturity may be less than the onginal
prindpal

{e] Loan Participations, Aszignments and Originations Certain Funds may
imvestin direct debt instruments which are interests in amounts owed t
lemders o I-:-ndng SyrckCates by corporate, Qovemmental, of other boowvers
A Fund's invesaments in [oans may be in the form of pariapations i leens o
assignenents of Al o a porticn of loans fraim therd panties of imeedsments in of
anginations of loans by the Fund, A loan is often administered by a bank or
offer §nandal institution (e “lender™) that ads a5 agent for all holders. The
agent administers the temms of the loam, a5 spedfied in te loan agreement

A Funvd ey ireesd inomultiple senes of tanches of a loan, whadh mury hive
varying terms and carry diflerent atsodi sted risks. When a Fund purchases
assignments from lenders it aogquines direct rights against the bomowers of the
lopans. These loans may indude particpations in bridge koare, whidh are loans
Raken out by Borrowers for 3 shor period (vpically B2ss than one year)
pendng amangement of mare permmanent Snandng throwgh, for exarnple, e
Issuance of bonds, frequently high vield bomds issued for the purpose of
F0qHsticns

The types of laans and related imestments in which the Funds may imest
incuge, among others, seniod loans, sebordinated loans Gndudng second
lien loans, B-Motes and mezzenine loans), while loans, commendal real
estate and ather commendial boans and stuchured foans A Fund may
ciginate koans of aoquine direct interests in bans throudgh prrmary loan
distributions andfor in private transactions. in e case of subordin ated [aans,
there may be sgreficant indebieduess ranking ahead of the bomower's
obdigation to the holder of aiech & koan, indudng in the sent of te
Eroemameés ™ insohvency. Mezzanin foans ané Typecaly Seouned Dy a pledge of
an equity nlerest in the mortgage bomower that o the real et ate rather
than an interestin a mongags

Investments in loans may indude wnfumded [oan commitments, which are
contraciu i oblgations for fundng. Unfunded |aan oomamitments may indude
rewolving aedin taclities, which may obligate 3 Fund 1o supply addtions cash
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b thee baomower on demand. Uinfisnded loan commitments represent 3 future
obligation in full, even though & percentage of the comenitted amount may
fok be utilized by the borrower . When imvesting in a loan partadpation,

A Fund has the Aght to rdens: payments of panapal, interest and arry Tees to
which it is entitled only from the lender <alling the loan agreement and only
upon receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
Tiegkivie 4 cormmitment e based on the undidwm portion of Se undefying
e of credit porticn of 4 loan. I certain anasmatances, a Fund My felérde 4
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a [aan by a bomower Fees earmed or
paid are recorded a5 3 component of interest income o interest expense,
respectively. on the Statements of Cperations. Unfunded loan commitments
are redected & a lability on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities

{d} Merignge-Related nnd Other Asset-Backed Secuities Ceitan Fond
fruay imvest in mortgage-felated and other asset-badked searities thal directy
of indirectly represent a partiopation in, or are seawed by and payable from,
boxans on real propesy. Mortgage-related sequrities sre aeated from pools of
residential or commerdal mortgage loans, induding martgage loans made by
savings and loan institutions, mongage bankers, commercal banks and
others. These securifies provide a monthly payment which consists of bath
Enterest and pringipal. Interest may be determined by fived or adustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underlying martgages will affect the price and
wil atility of a rortgane-related seourity, and may have the effect of
shiortening of extendng e effective duration of the Secmity neatve 1o what
wat antcipated at the time of punchase. The tmehy payment of princpal and
imterest of certain mortgage-related securities is guaranteed with the full faith
and aredit of the L) 5. Gowernment. Pools deated and guarantesd by non-
govemimental iseuen, indudng govemiment-Spansoned coporations, may b
SuppOrted by wanows o of insurance oF Quarantees, but there can be no
asturance that pavate inuners of guarantons can meet their obligations under
the insurance podicies or guarantee arrangements, Many of the risks of

s tirng En Paortgae-related seourites secured by commendal mongage
boans reflect the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
rrarioets, thie abiliey of penants Lo make ase payments, and the abdity of 4
property (o attract and retain tenanls, These securiies may be less liguid and
ey exhibit greater price volatility than other fypes of mongage-related o
other asset-backed securities. Other asset-Dacked sequnities are aeated from
fame et of assens, in duding, but not lirmitied to, auto boars, aocounts
recedyable, such as aredit Cand receivables and hospital account receivables,
home edquaty boans, student khans, boat loans, motde home loans,
reqreationd vehiche loans, manufactured housing loans, sincralt feases,
computer leases and syndicated bank loans. The Fund may imvest in any level
of the capital struckure of an issuer of morfgage-backed or asset-backed
Se0ur ities, inodiading th equety of "first lds™ anche

[#} Collaternlized Martgage Obligatioms (" CI0s™) ae debit cbbaations of 3
legal entity that are collateraized by whole morgage loans or private
martgage bonds and dvided into dasses. CMOs are structured into misftiple
dlasses, often refermed o &5 “tranches”, with each dass bearing a dfferent
stated matunity and entited to 3 d@fferent schedule for peynents of pencpal
and interesl, induding prepaaments. CW0s may be bess Bgud and may éxhibi
greater price volatiity than other types of morgagerelated or asset-badoed
secities

{fy Stripped Mortgage-Backed Securities ("5MES ") are dervative mult-
s mortgage securities. SMES are usually structured with tao dasses that
recetve different proportions of the interest and prindpal disrbutions on a
pool of mortgage asets An SMES will hawe one diass thatwill receive 2l of
the interest {the interest-only or "50° dass), while the other dass will receive
the entire pringpal (the prindpal-onty or PO dassh. Fayments received for
105 are induded i interest incoeme on the Statements of Operations. Because
no prindpal will be received at the matunty of an KD, adustments are made

&0 the cost of the security on a monthby basis untl matunity. These
Fdjusiments ane induded in inbefest Bcone o the S1atements of Opsrations
Paymnents recenved for PO e reated & reductions 1o the cosl and par value
of the ssaities

igl Collateralized Debt Obligations (L0007 include Collateralized Bond
Cibligations (TCBOs™), Collateralized Loan Obligations (TCL0%™) and other
sardlarty structured seounities. CBOs and CL0s are types of asset-backed
secuntiog. A CBO s A ust which re backed by & diversited pool of high ik,
below inwestment grade fixed income securities. A CLOv s 3 trust typically
collateralized by & pod of bans, which mayindude, among others, damesic
and foreign senice seawed boars, seréor unseured loans, and subordinate
COFpx ate loans, induding loans that may be rated below invesiment grade o
eduivalent ureated loans. The ks of an investment in 3 COO depend langely
an the type of the collateral seaunties snd the dass of the CDOin which

& Fund imvests In addition to the nomma] isks assndated with fed income
sequrities dsoussed elsewhere in dhis repont and the Funds” Offering
Memarandum (2 ., prepayment sk, oredtt sk, quadity risk, market risk,
sirucrural fide, legal risk and interest rate risk dehich may be exacertated if
the inferest rate payable on a drucured nandng dhanges based on
multiples of changes in interest rates or inversely to changes in inberest
ratesdh, CEOs, CLOx, and other CO0s camy additional risks induding, but not
lirviited to, () thee possibeity that dsmbutions from ool atera securines wall mog
b adequate tomake nbenest of other paymments, (i) the quality of the
colfateral muy decme in vahee o Sefault, (5i) the g that & Fund many invest
in CB, CUDs, or other CDGs that are subordinate to other dasses, and fv)
the comglex struchure of the sequnty may nat be fully undersiood a1 the Gme
of ifmves et and iy produce dieputes wath e iser of uiepeched
Imvestrment resulis

th Payment In-Kind Secorities Certan Funds may imvest in payment in-kind
secunties (PIKS™). IS may give the isswer the opfion at each intenest
payment date of making interest payments in gither cash andor addtiona
debt sequrities. Those addtnon a debt seamities wially b Bhie S50me TerImS,
Inchpding matun by dates and anterest rates, and assodiated risks a5 the
aiiging bonds. The daly mancet quotations. of the ongnal bonds rmay indude
fhe actrwed interest (referred 10 25 2 “dirty price”™) and require a pro rata
adustrrent from the unrealized appred ation of Gepred ation on investments
fo inkerest regefvable on the Statements of Assets and Liabilides

{i) Restricied Secwrities Centain Funds may hold investments thatare
subjet 1o legal of ArBCU PESTCROnS on fesale. Theds Seourines may be
sold privately, but may be required 10 be registered or exernpted from such
registration before being sold to the public. Private placement sequrities are
generdly comsidered 1o be restricied Disposal of restricted imeestments may
imatve Dimee-COMSUMING ﬂﬁl;iﬂllﬂ'ik}'l'li and expenses, and prompl sale atan
acoeplable price rdy bé dfbailt 1o achieve Redtnicted immestments haid by
the Funds at October 21, 20149, a5 applicatie @e dsdosadin the Nobes to
Schedile of vesiments.

() Structmred Nobes Certain Funcs may invest in structured notes and other
related instrurments, which are pevately negotiated debt obligations inwhich
the pnapal and’ of nterest 1S determened by relerence to the perlormande of
& benchmark asset, market or interest rate {an "embedded index™), such as
selected sequrities, an index of sequrites or spedfied interest rates, or the
diflerential performance of beo 3htets of markets, sidh a3 indexss reflecting
bonds. Struciuned instnuments may be issued by corporations, indudng
banks, as well as by governmental agendes. The terms of such gnuchured
ingtreemeents ncernally perosidee that their prindpal andior interest payments are
&0 be adusted upwards o downwands (but andinanly not below 2er0) to
reflea changes in the embedded ndex while the stuciured instruments are
o tstandng As  result, the interest andior prinaipal payments that may be
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made on 3 structured produc may vanywidely, dapending on a vaniety of
facors, induding the volatlity of the embedded index and the effect of
changss in the ernbedded index on prindpal andior inlerest paymenis

kb LS. Govermmeni Agenties or Gavernment-Spensored Enterprizes
Certain Funds may imvest in securities of U5, Govemnment agendes of
govemimEnt Sponsoned enteprises. LS. Governiment teasities ane
obligations of and, in certain cases, quaranteed by, the US, Government, its
agenadies of instnumentalities. Some U5, Government sequrities, sisch &
Treasuny bills, notes and bonds, and sequrities quarantesd by the Government
Mational Mortgage Assodation (CGNMA™ or “Ginnie Mae"), are wpponed
by thae Tl faieh s credhitof the LS Govereenent; others, such a4 thote of
the Fedieral Home Loan Banks, &e supportied by the right of the issuer o
baoow from the U5 Department of the Treasury (the "IU5, Treasury™); and
others, sisch as those of the Federal Mational Martgage Assodiation (T FRMA™
of “Fannie Mae"), are upponed by thie diametonany authority of the 1S
Government 10 purchase e agency’s cobgatons. LS. Govemment seagrities
ray Endude peno ooupon securites, which do not distribute interést on 2
current basis and tend bo b subject fo 2 greater nck than interest-paying
securities of similar maturifies

Government-relabed quaraniors (e, nat badied by the Bull Tath and medit of
the 185, Government) indude FNMA snd the Federal Home Loen Morigage
Corporaton (TFHLMC" of ~ Freddie Mac™) FRMA IS 2 governiment-5pon soned
corporation. FNMA purchases conventional e, not insuréd or guaranteed by
any government agency) residentis MCHIGAGES from a list of approvesd
selferfsenvicers which indude state and federaly chartered savings and baan
Ass00atons, mutudl siving banks, commend sl banks and aedt wnions and
mortgage bankers. Pass-throwgh securities isared by FNMA e guarantesd as
to timely payment of princpal and interest by FHMA, but are not backed by
the fudl fasth and credit of the U % Government FHLMC fstues Paridpation
Certficates (" FCs"), which are pass-through securities, eadh representing an
undviced interest ina pool of residentidl mortgages. FHIMC quarantess the
tiriwely paymraent of interest and uftimate collection of pindpal, but PCS &t it
backed by the full fath and cedit of the U5 Government

Under the direction of the Federal Houting Anance Agency, FRMA and
FHLMC have entered into a joint initiative to develop a common securitization
platiormn for the issuance of a uniborm mongage-tadked seaunty (the "Singhe
Security Initiagva ™) that algns e charactenstics of FNMA and FHLWMC
cerfificates. The Singhe Secunity Initiataee was implemented on June 3, 2019,
and the effects it may have on the market for mongage-backed sequrities are
uncertain

Fooll-mrsng srateges can be wsed where 3 Fund seeks 1o extend the
expiration of matusity of 3 position, sich 32 3 TBA secunty on an underling
asset, by dlosing ot the position before epiration and opening 4 new
positon with respect 1o substanBally the same underdying 35sel with a later
expiration date. TBA seogites purchased or sold are reflecied on the
Statements of Assets and Liabilities a5 an asset or Bability, respectively

{1k When-lssued Transactions Certain Funds may purchase or sefl secunities
of & when-ssed basis. These ransactions ane made conditonally because a
secufity, although authorited has nod yel been isaed in the

rarket Trarsactions (o purchase or sell sequrites on 3 when-issued bass
mwvolve 3 cornmitment by 2 Fund fo punchase or sell these seqmities for 3
predetermined price of yield, with payment and delhvery taking place beyond
thie curstomary setBement peniod A Fund may sell when-issied seounties
before they are defevered which may result in 3 reafized gain of loss

(mp Bank Dbligatiens Eiric abliganons inwhech & Fund may irmaest inciide
certificates of deponsit, barkers’ acceptances, and fixed time deposits
Certificates of deposit are negofiable ceriificates isswed against funds
depogited in 3 commendal bank for 2 definite perod of tme and aming a

spedified retum Bankers acceptances are negotizble drafts or bills of
exchange, nonmally OFaem Dy an Emporier of exporter 1o pay for spedfic
merchandite, which are "accepted” by a bank, meaning, in eflect, that the
bank unoon ditronally agees o pay the Tace value of the mstrument on
maturity, Fxed time deporsits are bank obiigations payabie at a stated
matunty date and bearing interest 3t a foed rate. Fed time deposits may be
withdriwm on demand by the ifoestor, bul may be subject 1o early
withdraweal penalties which vary dependng upon rarkel conditions and the
remaining maturity of the obfigation

in] Pedformance-Linked Notes Cerfan Funds investin performancedinked
notes that are issued by Credit fuisse intemational (the *Fee Agent™) and
seek 10 rack the performance of the FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M)

(" Performance-Linked Nates™). In the case of the IPY Perfomance-Linked
Motes iswed, the perfoemande of such nakes will be hedged 1o the lapanese
wen by Credt Suisse intemational wsing a proprietany fomula. As eaplainsd in
greater detal in Note 9, the Fee Agent will finance the payment of placement
fees to ertain Japanese distibuters. Inorder for the Fee Agent to hedge
cErLaEn of it eqosines pnder he Fee Agent Apposntment Agreerment (35
defined in Mote 90, itis expected that from time o ime cenain Casses of the
FIMCO Berrruda income Fund E will invest in Performance-Linked Naotes in an
amount specified by the Fee Agent. A% the ime of events induding, but not
lirdted 1o, any redemption of units of the PIMCO Bermids Incore: Fund E
and a step-down of the applicable Percentage Contingent Defemed Sales
Charge (TODSCT), a5 defined in Mote 9, the Performance-Linked Hiotes held
Lry thee Fund will be par Sally redeemed accordngly in order [0 mantain the
fotal value of Performance-Linked Notes in the Fund's imestment portfolio
equal toor below the amount of the COAC appiicable to fhe respedive
Classes of the Fund plus © 20% multiplied by te NAY of the respective
Clasees of the Fund. Performance-Linked Mobes are valued daly. Their walue is
b o the pror day NAY of the PIMCO Bermuds Incosne Fund (M), With
respect to the value of the JFY Perdformance-Linked Notes, 3 propriietary
hedging formuda is also apped, The Fund cannot transfer the Performance-
Linked Nobes to any ofier party yade from the Fee Agentwithout the pricor
wrilben agreement of ihe Fee Agent

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Thie Following disdosunes contain inhormaton on the Funds” alslity 10 lend o
oo cath of secunities o the sxdtent peritied under te Offering

e andum, which may be viewsed a5 bormowing or fnandng ransachions
bry the Funds. The bocation of these imstnuments is desoribed belowr. Fora
detafed desaiption of credit and counterparty risks that can be asodated
wth bomowangs and ather Eﬂu’l‘lﬂ':_ll ransyclons, please see Mote 7
Prindpal Risks

ia) Reparchaze Agresmentz Cortain Funds may engage in repurchase
agresmenis., Under the terms of 2 typical repurchase agreement,

& Fund purchases an urderhdng debi obligation (ool steral) subject 1o an
obligation of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund to resel], the chiigation at
an agreed-apon poce and tme I an open maturly fepurchate agréement,
there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
terminated by the Fund or counberparty at any time The market value of the
collateral must be equal to or exceed the total amount of the repurchase
obfigations, induding rierest Regurchase saeements, indudng scoued
interes, are induded on the Statements of Assets and Liabilites Interest
a5 recorded as a component of intesest moome on e Satements of
Operations. In pervods of inoreased demand for collaterd, a Fund may pay a
tee for receipt of collateral, which may result in interest expense to the Ruind

{b} Reverse Repurchase Agreements Ceriain FUnds may enter inn revense
repurchase agresments. In a riverse repurchase agreement, 4 Fund delivers 3
Lecunly in exchandge fof cadh 1o 8 finandal institution, te ooumbErparty, with
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a simuleaneous agresment to fepurchase the same or sbstantially the same
El':ﬁl.H'iTj' atan pgreed upon prce and 4ste In a0 OpEN Maninby reverse
repurdrase agreement, thene is o pre-determined repurchase date and the
agresrment can be termenated by the Fund of counterparty Atany Ome

A Fund is entifed to receive prindipal and interest payments, if any, made on
the sequrity deffvered to the counterpanty dwing the term of the agresment
Cath received in exchange bor secanties deliversd plus aooued interest
paymients b be mdde by & Fumd 10 Countemamies ane peflected 45 a Irabliy
on the Staterments of Assets and Liabdities. interest payments made by 3 Fund
b counterparties are recorded a5 @ component of inferest expense on the
Statedments of Operatons. In periods of ingeased demand for the seawity,

3 Fund may receive 3 fee for use of the sequrity by the countenparty, which
ray fesul in inberest income to.a Fund. A Fund will segregane asses
determined to be Rquid by PIMCO or will otherwize cover its obligations
under reverse repurchase agresments

{ch Sale-Buybacks Certain Funds may enter inbo finandng ransacrions
refemed to & "sale-buybads’. A sale-buybad: inandng transadion consists
of a sdle of 2 security by a Fund 10 a finandal instinution, the counterparty,
with a gmultaneous agreement to repurchase e same of substantially the
S Securiy at an agresd-upon price and date A Fund is not entitled to
regeive prindpal and interest paymends, if ary, made on e secunity sold o
thee counterpany during the term of the agretrmenl. The sgneed-upon
priocesds for secunties 10 be nepurchased by 3 Fund are reflecied a5 a liabikity
o fe Statements of Agsets snd Liabdites. A Fund will PeCOgMDE Ml ImpOCHTE
represented by the price diferential between the price received for the
transfemed security and the agreed-upon repurchase pige . This is commonly
referned b0 ad the "price diep”. A price drog consits of (1) the foregon e inberedt
and il'lﬁdl.ll.'ll'léﬂj' Incorre adustments, i1 any, @ Fend would have athensase
rieceived had the secunty nod been sold and (i) the negoliated finandng terme
between 3 Fund and countenparty. Foregone interest and inflationary incoms:
acfusaments, if amy, are recorded a5 components. of intenest income on the
Statemenis of Operations. Interest payments based upon negotiated irandng
Lt rrad by 2 Fund 8o countérpartsss e redorded a4 a component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations, In periods of increased
dernand for the secunty, 3 Fund may recena 3 fee for ute of the sequnty by
the counterparty, which may result in interest incorme toa Fund A Fundwil
Segregate a5ty delermmined o be bguid by FIMCO or well ohenaise cover It
obligations under saletayback rarsactions

() Shent Sadee Cértain Funds may enber inbo thort sales ransactions, Shart
sal%s are fransactions in which the Fund sells 3 security that it may nof own

A Fund may make hort sales of securities to () offset potentia dedines in
bong positions in semilar seouities, (i) to inorease the flexibility of the Fund,
Qir) bor inwesirment retum, (v) 35 part of 4 ndk arbimrage sateqy, and () a5
partofits overall portfolio management srategies imoling the use of
derivative instruments When a Fund engages in 4 short sale, it rasy bomow
the secunity sold short and deliver it to the countenparty. The Fund wil
ordinarily have (o pay & fee o preniim 1o borow 4 sequity and be obligated
b ey the lender of the sequrity amy dvidend of inferest that aaues on the
secufity during b persod of the loan, Seamities sold in short salé ransachon
and the dividend or interest payable on such sequities, it any, are refiected as
payabie for short sales on the Statements of Assels and LiabiBties. Shot sales
expose the Fund to the risk that itwill be required to cover its short position
A tirme when the security or athier 35560 hias apprecated in value, this
resylting in hosses o the Fund. A shoet sale is "against the box” if

thie Fund holds in it poitfolio of has the fght to acquire the security sold
short, or securities identical to the sequrity sold short, at no addtional cost

A Fund will te cubject to addtiona risks 1 the extent that it engages i shart
salés that are not "against the boe™ A Fund's boes on a shoet sale could
thiefetically be unfsmatid in cates wivere the Fund is unable, for whateer
reagson, b dose out it shart pasition

{#] Line of Credit PIMCO Bermuds Bank Loan Fund (M) enterad into 3 264-
day senlor unseoured reviolving cedt agreement with the Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UF), Lid (TMUFG™) and ogher oommencal banks 1o be wiilioed for
Remporany purposes 1o fund Unidolder redermptions of 1of afer shor-bémm
liquidkity purposes. MUFG senees as both abank and a5 an agent for ciher
banks that are partes (o the agreement PIMCG Bemuda Bank Loan Fund
(NG Py Timanang changes based on & combinaion of LIBOR-based vanable
i & creit dpread Thie Fund siss pays 3 fee of 0 2759 per a0 fum of Lhe
unused commitment amounts, The agreement expires on August 21, 2020
unless extendad of renewed There is 2 masimum avzlable comenitment
anount for PIRCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fumd (M) equal to §75,000,000. Prior
&0 Aupgust 23, 2019, the maxdmum avalabie commitment amount for the
Furid weas §99,000,000. Commitment, upfont and intenest fees of 343,390
paid by PIMCO Bermiada Bank: Loan Fund (M) are included in interest expense
in the Staternents of Opérations

During the period, there were no bormowings on this ine of qedt

6 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The Eellowing disdhosures contain informaton o how and wity the Funds use
Einandal defvatve instruments and how frandal derrvative insruments
affect the Funds” Inandal position, results of operalions and cash flows. The
location and far vabue amounts of thide inSruments on i STatements of
Assets and Liabilites and the net realized gain floss) and net change in
unrealized apgredation (depredation) on the Statements of Operaions, eadh
categonzed by type of finanaa dervative contract and related risk exposure,
are included in & table in the Motes to Schedule of bvesments. The finandal
defivative instrurments outstanding a4 of period end and the amounts of net
reahized gain (fods) and net change in unrealiped appredabon (depredation)
on finandal derivative inttruments duing the period, 25 disdosed in the
Motes to Schedule of Investiments, serve a5 indicators of the valume of
fnancal demvative aEnaty for the Funds

in) Ferarard Fareign Curremcy Contracte Certan Funds may engage in
forsrard f‘.‘fn’:lgﬁ CUMENCY COnWacs n Connection with seliing planned
purdhases or sales of securites, 1o hedge the qumency exposure 25500.3ted
with some or 3l of a Fund's secunities or 35 part of an imestment sirategy. A
forward boreign CUMERCY CONMACE IS AN QNeEment between two parties 1o buy
and sell a cuerency at a set price on a future date. The market value of &
forward foreign qumency contract fluctuates with changes in foreiqn cusrency
exchange rates. Fonward foreign oumency conitracts are marked bo market
daily, and the dhange in valu is recorded by a Fund a5 an unrealized gain o
loss. Realized gains of losses are equal 10 the difference between e value of
Ehe coniract an the e 11 was opetid and the value o1 ihe e it wad dosed
and are reconded upon defivery or receiplt of the cumency These donirads
may imealive market sk in eocess of e unrealized gain or koss reflecred on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbdities In addition, a Fund could be exposed
10 fisk if he countempartes are unable b meet the terms of the contracs or if
the value of the aurency changes unfavorably to the functional cumency. To
mitigate wich nsk, cish of seosities may be exchanged a5 collateral pursuant
to the temms of the underying montracs

Certain Funds having a hedged Class may also enter into forward foreign
ourTency contracts designed to ofset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
afder 1o bedve the Redged Class with an exposure 1o cumendes other than the
functonal aurrency. There can be no guaranbes that these Class specific
forwand fofelgn qumency Contracts will be successhul

{b) Farmaras Comtrmcts Certain Funds may enter into fafures contracts A
futyres contract is an agreement to bay of sell & sacurity of other asset for 3
SEL prece On afutare date and is traded on an ex chamge. A Fund may use
futures contracts b0 manage its exposure 10 the sequniies markets o to
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movemenis in interest rates and qamency values The primary risks assodated
with the wie of futures Contracts are te imperfect correlaton between the
change in marke {value of the sequnties held by a Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the posability of an iBigued markel Futures coniracts
are valued based upan their quoted daily settiement prices. Upon entering
Ento a fubsres coniract, & Fund is required bo deposit with its futures broker an
amant of cath, U5 Govemiment and Agency Obligations, of Seect wovenisg
debit, i aceondance with the initisl mangin nequarerments of the beoker or
exchange Futures contracts are marked to market daily and based on such
magvements in the price of the coniracts, an appropriate payable or receivable
fior the chanoe in value may be posted or collected by the Fund {*Futures
Variation Magin”y Futures Variation Margins, if any, are disdosed within
cenmrally deaned finandal dervative instruments on the Sratements of Asers
and Liabilities. Gains of losses are recogrized but not considered redized until
the conltracts espire or dase Futunes dontracts involve, 1o varging degrees,
risk of koss in excess of the Futures Variation Margn induded within
exchange iraded or centrally deaed financial denivativi instuments o th
Sranements of Assets and Liabilities

(e} Options Contmets Certain Funds maywrite or purchate options to
enhanie retuims of to hedge an exdstng position of future investment Certain
Fumds may write cail and put opticns on sequrities and finandal derivative
nstnements they own of inwhich they may invest. Wiiting put aptions tends
Lo intrease a Fund's expodure 1 the wnderdyindg instrument. Wntng cal
OpiRons tends 1o decrease 3 Fund's expoiune 1o e ederdang insrumient
When a Fundwrites a call or put, an amount equal to the premium received is
reconded and subsequently marked to market 1 reflect the aament value of
Uhi epticn wiilien These amounts e induded on the Statements of Astety
and Liakibtes. Premusms recenved from wiiling opmons whidh exgire are
treatad a5 realized gans. Premiume neceived from wriling options which are
exerdised o dosed are added to the procesds or offset againgt amounts pad
on the underhsng Biures, swap, SECMITY OF QRTENCY TANSCon b delermrni
the realized gain or loss Certain options may be wiritten with premiums to be
determined o & fulure date. The premiums for these cpSors ane based upon
mplied volatility paramaters 3t specified tenms. A Fund 5 3 writer of an
ophian has no contral over whether the undedying instrument may be sad
("call™) or purdhased ("put™) and a5 3 reslt bears the market risk of an
unfaearable changs in the price of the instament underlying the witlen
opron. There i the risk 3 Fend may not be able to enter into a dosing
transaction because of an iliquid market

Certain Funds may also purchase put and call opticns. Furdhasing call options
tends 10 incregse a Fund's egposure to the underhing instrument. Furchiasing
put options tends to dedesse 4 Fund's exposure 10 the underhying instrument
A Fund pays a premiumwhich is induded & an 2561 on the Statements of
Ausets amd Liabedities and subtequently madiosd o market o relled the
curent value of the option, Fremiums pad for purchasing options which
expire are freated a5 relized losses. Certain options may be purchased with
prEmeurms bo be determened an a futwe date. The prersums for thes: options
are based upon implied volatlity parameters 3t spedfied tems. The risk
dssociated with piechasing put and call oplions is limited to the preminm
paid Fremiuns paid for panchasing options which are exerdsed or dosed are
added b the ameunts paid o offset sgainst the proceeds on ihe underhying
investment transaciion to detemine te realized gain o loss when the
underhing ransamion is exeoubed

Credit Delnult Swaptioms Certan Funds may wite of purchate aedl default
swaplions ta hedge exposure to the aredit rdk of an investment withcut
making & coammitment 1o the underying instument. A& oedit default svaption
s an option to sl or buy dedit protection to a spedfic reference by entering
into a pre-defined swap agreement by some specfied date in the future
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Fereign Carrency Optiens Certain Funds may write of purchase foreign
curmency opions 0o be used &5 a shortor long hedge agairst possble
wariafions in foreign enchange rates of 10 gain egeoiune o fonign aimencdes

Inflatien-Capped Options Certan Funds maywnite or porchase inflaton-
capped options to enhance retums o for hedging cpporunities. The purpose
of purchasing infation-capped options is to protect a Fund from-inflation
eroGion above 3 Certan rate on @ given notiona! exposure. A floor can be
e R v own Sice pRODBCHON B0 investments in mflasondinked produces.

Interest Rate Swaptions Cirtain Funds may wnte or purchase interest rate
swaptions wiech are options to enterinto a pre-defined swap agreement or
&0 sheorten, extend, cancel of otherwise madfy an exdsing Svap agreement,
by somme: specified date in the future, The writer of the swaption becomes the
LI R PR3y [y The S i the Buyer exendses. The entenest rate Saaption
agreement will spedtywhether the buyer of the swaption will be a fived-rage
receiver of A fixed-rate payer upon exendte

Optices on Exchange-Tmded Futures Contmets Cortain Funds may write of
purdhase opfions on exchange-traded futures contracts (" Futipres Opdion™) to
hedge an existing posigon or future investment, for speasative purposes o i
manadge expasine 10 market movements, A Futures Option it an option
contract inwhach the underying instrument is 3 single futares contract

Options on Securities Certain Funds may wiite of purchase options on
sequeities 1 enhance rewms of 1o hedge #n edsing position or future
invessment. An option on 3 secuity uses 3 spedfied securty 35 the underfing
instiument for the option contract

{d] Swep Agresmentz Certan Funds oy smvest in Swap agresments. Swap
agreemenis are bilater aily negotiated agreements befween a Fund and a
COUMAEpanty 1o exdhan g of swap irvesiment cash Bows, assets, foreign
urrencies or market-inked retums at spedfied, futire intervals, Swap
aeemaen s may be privately negatiated in the OTC market of may be diared
through a thind party. known 3% a cenbrd counterparty o derivatives dearing
ofganization (“centrally deared swaps™). A Rund may enter into asset, aqedt
default, cross-qumendy, interest rate, total retum, vanance and other forms of
SWED ATERments 10 iGN 208 s exposure [0 dedi, urmendy, interest rate,
commodly, equty and mflation mk. i connsction wath these agréements,
Leueries of Cash may be identified at coflameral o Fargn in sooordance with
the terrns of the repeciive swvap agreements 1o provide assets of value and
renolrse in e event of default o bankruptopinsoivency

Centrally deared swaps are marked 1o market daly based upon valuations as
diterrmined Fom me underlyng Contrao of in acerdance with the
requirements of the central counterparty cr derivatives dearing organization
Chamges in market vaue, it any, are reflected a3 a component of net dhange
in urweali ped appredation (depredation) on the Statements of Operations
Daily changes in valuation of centraly deared svars ("Swap Vanabon
Margn ), if any, are dudosedwithin centrally deared financial derivative
instnummenie on the Staterments of Ascels and Listaliges. OTC swap paaments
recemved or paed at the beginning of the measuremnent pericd are induded on
fhe Statements of Assets and Liabdities and represent premaums paid of
received upon entening into the swap agreement to compensate for
chifferences between the stated tems of te Swiap agreement and prevaling
markel condiions {redt spreads, curmency exchange rates, inlerest rates, and
other relevant factors). Upfront premiums received {paid) are initialy recorded
& liahilities (assets) and subsequently marked to matked to reflect the cument
value of the swap, These upfront preméumns are recorded & realized gains of
lersses cany thie Saatemients of Oparalions upon Mminaton of matufity of the
swap. A liquidstion payment receved o made at the termination of the swap
is reconded a5 realized gain or [oss on the Statements of Operations. Net
penadc payments received o paid by 3 Fund are incuded a5 part of realized
Gaing of kosses on Me Staements aof Operations
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For purposes of applying certain of 2 Fund's imvestment policies and
TeSIFRCTioNg, Sewap agreements, like other derivath Msuments, may be
walued by 3 Fund a1 rarket value, notional vaue of full exposure value_ in the
case of a credt defaull swap, in apphing certam of the Fund's Fvestment
policies and restrictions, the Fund wall valpe the gedit default svap atits
nobienal value o its full exposure value (2, the sum of e notional amount
Tor the contract phas e masket value), bul may value te cred] delaull Svap
atmarked valise for purgeses of appbying certsn of the Fand's other

mves iment policies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value credit
defauslt swaps at full exposure value for purposes of the Rund's edt quality
quidsines §f anmy) because spch value in general better reflects the Fund's
achual economic expasure during the term of the aredit default swap
agresment. AS a result, 8 Fund may, at tirmes, have nofonal exposune to an
asset cdass (before netting) that is greater or lesser than the stated limit or
restrction noted in the Fund's Offating Memorandum. In this context, bath
the nefiona amount and the market valye may be positive of negalive
depending on whe thir thie Fund is selling o buying peotection hirowgh the
credit defaudt swap. The manner i which certain secunBes or ather
Ensinsments ane vabued by the Fund fof purpodes of 3ppheng imesiment
polices and restrictions may differ from the manner in which those
Envestrents are valsed by other Gpes of imvestons. Enten ] M0 Sap
agresments invalves, tovarying degrees, elements of interest, aedit, market
and documentation nik in eess of Me Aurnls reoognized on the
Statements of Assets and Liabilities. Such meks involée the possibiity that
there will b2 no liquid market for these agreements, that the counterparty o
the agreements may default on its obligation to perform or disagree as to the
meaning of contracial feems in the agreements and that there may be
urifaworable changes in nterest rates of the values of the attel upan which
the s#ap is based

A Fund"s masdmum tisk of loss from courter party credit sk is the discounted
net value of the cash flows 1o be recefved from the counterpany over te
contract’s remaining life, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
e mitigated by having 2 master netling arangement between a Fund and
the counterparty and by the podfing of collateral to a Fund to cower a Funds
expoture b the counterparty

T the extent a Fund has a palicy to limit the net amount awed to of 10 be
received from 3 single counterparty under existing Svap agreements, sed
Emitation only applies bo counterparties (o OTC swaps and does not apply 1o
centrally desed swaps where the CountErparty i5 & oenal counberparty or
derivaties cleaning organization

Credit Delault Swap Agreements Cerlain Funds may enler into

credt defaudt Savaps on aoiporate, loan, soverdan, LS. munidpal o LS
Treaiury isaes o provede 3 measure of protection agamst defaults of the
issuers &, to reduce risk where 3 Fund owns or has. exposure o the
referenced cbligation) or to take an active long or short position with respect
to the likelibood of 4 partiodar isaser's defaut. Credit dedault swiap
agreements invalve one party making a stream of payrments (refemed to a5
the buyer of protection) to another party (the seller of protecBon) in exchange
for the right ta receive a spedfied retum in the event that the referenced
entity. cbligation or index, as spedfiedin the swap agreement, undergoes a
Certan creditevent. s a deler of protecticn on qedi chetaide AWap
agreements, a Fund will generdly receive from the buyer of protecBion a fixed
rane of income hroughout the tenm of the avap provided that there is no
qedit event A5 the seifer, 3 Fund would effectively add leverage toits
portiolio because, in addtion to i toal net assets, the Fundwauld be
Subject b investment exposure on the notnal amount of the swvap

It Fundis a seller of protection and a edi event ooours, a5 defined wndes

thie terrres. of that panicul s Swap sgreement, & Fund will either (i) pay 1o the
buryer of protection an amount equd o the noBonal amount of the wwap ad

Rake delivery of the referenced obligation, cther defiver sble cbfigations or
underlying sequrities compesing the referenced index of () pay a net
setlement amount in the fonm of cash or securities equal 10 the notional
ammount of the ayap less the reooverny value of the referenced abligation o
undezhying securities comprising the referenced index. f a Fund is a buryer of
pratection and a aredit event ooours, as defined under the terms of that
partular swap agreement, a Fundwill sither () recenve from the selier of
protection an srdunt equal o te notional amountof the svap and deliver
the referenced obligation, otheér deliverable obligations or underhing
seities comprising e referenced index or (i) receive 3 nel serlement
amount in the fomn of cash o securities equal to the notonal amount of the
swap less the recovery value of the referenced oliligation or undertying
Lecities comprising the relrénced indec Recowery values ane estimated by
market makers considening either mdustry standand recovery rates of entity
spedfic tadors and condiderations until & oredit event goaurs. B 3 credit event
hias poneed, he recoveny walue is defermined by a fadlitated audion
wherehy & maremium numbser of 2owable beoker bids, ogether with 3
spedfied valuation method, are wed 1o calculate the settlement value The
abiiliny 1o delever other obligations may feslt in a chespest-to-defser oplion
{thie buryer of protection”s right to choose e deliverable obligation with the
lowrest wahue following a aedi event)

Credil default ovap agreements on aredit indices invalve one party making a
siream of payments 1o anothi party in exchange for the fght 10 recen a
spwcified recumm in e event of 3 witedown, prncgal shorfall, nteres
chortiall or default of all or part of the referenced entifies comprising the
oredfit index. A credit index is a basket of aedt insnaments or exposures
detighed o b epresentative of some pat of the gedit market &5 5 whole
These inckoes are made up of reference qedis that are pdged by a poll of
dedlers 1o be the most liquid entities in the dedit default swap rmarket based
on the secior of the index Components of the indices may indude, but are
ot limited 10, Inwestiment ade securites, high yeld sequniies, asset-badoed
senurities, emerging markets, andor vanous aredit ratings within eady sector
Credit incioes are traded uung credt default swaps with standandi 2ed termes
induding a fioed spread and standard matunty dates. An index aredit default
waeap references Al the names in the ndex, and if there is 3 detault, the dedt
event is setted based on that name’s weight in the inde The composition of
e indices changes penodcally, usually every sixmonths, and for most
indices, each name has an equal weightin the index A Fund may use cedil
chefault swaps on credit inddes 1o hedge a portfolho of edn default seaps or
bionds, wihich is less expensive than it would b= to buy marry cedit default
swaps to achieve a similar effect Creditdefault swaps on indces are
instruments for profecting investors owning bonds against default, and
Rraders e thism Do speculate on changes o aredt quality

inplie credn spreads, repretented in Absoube terms, UBRDed 0 OE1ETEMG
the market value of edit default avap agreements on corporate, loan,
sovereign, U5 munidpal or U5 Treasury issues a5 of period end, if any, are
disdosed in the Notes 1o Schedule of Investments. They sene a5 an indicator
of e current status of paymnentiperformance sk o d represent the Tkelihood
of rigk of default for the reference entity. The implied credit spread of a
partiqular referenced entity reflects the cost of buyingfselling proteciion and
may inclwde upfront payments required to be made o enter into the
agresment. Wider qeckt spreads represent a deteroration of the referenced
entity's credt soundiess and a greater likelibood o risk of default or other
redit event ocourring a5 defined under the terms of the agreement. For credit
defaull swap agréements on aseet-badied secunties and dedi indices, the
quoted market prices and resulting values serve as the indcator of the qument
status of the paymentiperfarmande rsk. noreasing markel values, in absolute
termrs when campared to the notonal amount of te ywap, repretent a
detesioration of the referenced Einy"s credil soundneds and & o eater
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Ekeliood or risk of default of other credit event ooouring as defined under
th: tees of the agreement

The madmuen potental amaunt of futune panyeniLs (umndiscounted) that

A Fund as & seller of protectson could be reguired 1o make under 3 dedit
default wwap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement
Notienal amounts of eadh indvideal gedt default swap agreement
outstandng as of penod end forwhich & Fund is the seller of pratection are
discloted in the Mates 1o Sdhedule of mvesiments. These potential amounts
wiould be partially offset by any recoveny wvalues of the regpective referenced
obligations, upinont payments received upon entering into the agreernent, o
net amounts received from the settlement of buy protection edit default
Sweap agreernents entened into by & Fund for the same referenced entity of
ENTEES

Imterest Rate Swap Agreements Cestain Funds are subiect tointerest rate
rietk expsure in the normal course of pursing their ivesirment obgectives
The walue of the ficed rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease if inferest
rabes rse. To help hedge aganst ths risk and to maEntain its Hhuliny 1o
gerierate inoorme a8 prevaling madket rates, 3 Fund may enber int inlerest
rate Svap dgresrnents. iNDenett rale Syap agresments invahve the exchange
by & Fund with another party for their respective commitment to pay o
recelve inkerest on the notional amount of prindpal Certain formrs of interest
rate swap agreernents may include; (i) interest rate caps, under which, in
remm for & peernium, one panty grees 10 make payments to the other io the
exbenl that intenest raes soceed 3 spedfed rate, or “cap™, i) interes! rate
floors, under which, in retum for 3 premivm, one par by agress to make
payments to the other to the extent that interést rates fall below a spedified
rabe, or "Boor”, (i) interest rate collars, under whidv & party sells a cap and
purchases & Noor of vioe versh in an atbempt i prodect fes! 3gainst mberest
rabe movesmeen ts exceeding gven minimum or masdmam bevels, (V) callable
Enterest rate Svaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
consderation for the right to ety terminate the swap rarsaction in whole,
Al 2eo oot and At a4 predetermined date and feme priof 10 The maturnity date,
) spreadioks, which allow the interestrate swap wsers fo lock in the
Tanward dither ential (o speread) betwesn the inleretl rate avap rate and 3
spedfied benchmark, or (i) basis swaps, under which bwo parties can
exchange variable interest rates based on different segments of money
markets

Tetal Retern Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enter into total return
T BEPEETTENTS B0 N OF Mitigate exposure o the underhing reference
Total retwm swap agreements imdive oommitments whene single or multiple
cash flows are exchanged based on the prece of an undertying reference asset
and on a fved or variable interest rate. Total retum swap agreements may
VOl oM ATENS 10 Pty interest inexchange fof & markeslinked retum
O COURBerpanty Pyt out the total returm of 3 specific undedying feference
asset, which may indude a sngle securnity, a basket of securities, or an index,
and in refum receives 3 fined of variabés rate. At the maturity date, a netcash
flows is exchanged where the total return 5 equivaent to the return of the
underhing reference aser lees » financing rate, if any. Ac 3 receher, a

Furd wiuld receive payments based on any poditive total returs and would
v paynenls in Bhe ewent of 3 nedgative total redurm. AS The payer, 4

Fund would owe payments on amy positive tof al return, and would receive
paymeEnts in the event of anet negatie 1oLEl renm

7. PRINCIPAL RISKS

In the normal course of business, the Funds {oe Acguired Funds, if appicable)
trade financial instrursnts and enter into firandal ransactions where sk of
potential loss exists cue to such things a5 changes in the market (market risk)
of Tailure o inabilty of the other party 10 4 ransaciion i perfairn (Tedl and

colnderpadty k) See below for a detaled desoiption of select pringipal
ks

Fand of Famds To Tt &xtent that certsn Feands imvest substantially 20 of their
respective aisels in Acquired Funds, the risks ssodated with investing in
these Funds will be dosely related to the isks assodated with e sequrities
and other imvestments held by the Acquired Funds, The ahility of the Fends to
achieve their respective investment odjedives may depend upon the abaliey of
e Acquered Funds 10 achieve their respective investment obyectives There
can be no assrance that the investment obiective of any Acquired Fundwill
b achieved The AW of an Acquiring Fund will fluctuate in responie to
changes in the respective NAV of the Acquired Fund in which It invests

I the nommal course of business, Acquired Funds trade finandal instuments
and enTer into finanoal ransactons where ik of patentesl 10es exsrs due 1o
changes in the market {market isk), o fakure or inghiliey of the asher party o
& fransaction to perfomn {redt and counterparty risk)

Performance-Linked Netes Risk To the exient each of the B-J 1605 (F7),
B3 1605 (S0N B-) 1609 (PY), B-) 1609 (LED), B-J 1612 OFY) and B-1 1612
(LSDH Clazses of the FIBCO Beremuda income Fend E inmvest in Performiansce-
Linked Notes, they will forega other investment opportunities, which could
negatively impact the performance of sudh Class In addition, wdh
Performance-Linked Notes ane unsecured obligations of Credit Suiste
Intemational and 5o the Classes are exposed to the credi risk of Credt Suisse
nbemational Furthirmone, the Perlofmance-Linked Notes will be sdvergely
affected i the event of 3 default, reduced aedi ras fiq, of delenioraton in the
sobvency of Credit Suisse International

Mariet Rizks A Fund's imvestments in finandal dervatiee instruments and
other fnandal instruments expose the Fund to vaious risks such as, bt not
lirniteed b, intenest rate, forelan (non-L1 5 ) currency, equity and commaodty
nigks

Interesk rate risk is the msk that fxed income securites and other instnmments
held by a Fund may dedine in value because of an indrease ininterest rates
As nomingl interest rates ise, the value of certain fived income securities held
by & Fund is hkely 1o deqease. A noming interest Fate can be desoribed as
e s of a real interest rate and an expected nflabon rate. inTenest rate
chanige can be wdden and unpredictable, and & Fund may booe money if
thete changes are not anticipated by Fund management. A Fund may not be
able to hedge against changes in interest rates or may choase nof todo 5o for
it Oof other reatons 0 Sddiion, army hedgss may natwork as mbended

Durasion 15 a mmeasure used o determme the sensithdty of a security's price to
changes ininlerest rates that moonporates a seqmity™s yield, coupon, final
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Commxily is an
additional measure used to understand a security’s of Fund's interest rate
sensitivity that measines the rate of change of duration i resgonse to
changes im interest rates Fiooed I v Securites with longer qurations tend
B b e Semeitive b0 changes in inbenesl rates, uiu ally making them mane
wolatile than securities with shorter dur ations, A wide vanely of factors can
Cause Interest rates to rise (g Q.. central bank monetany paioes, inflation
rates, general economic conditions, etc). Under curent economec conditions,
Inberest rates are neds histoncally bow levels. The Funds urmently face a
heightenad lmel of nberest rate ek, sspedially since the Federal Resenve
Board has ended its quantitative easing program and has begun, and may
coritinue, 1o raise interest rates. To the edent that the Federal Reserve
contimues 10 raise interest rases, there is a risk hat rates axoss the finandal
Sysesm gy rise. Further, while bond markets have sieadly grown over the
past theee decades, dealer “market making™ abilicy has not kept pace and in
some cases has degeased Given the importande of ntemmediary “market
making” in-oeating a robust and active market, fied income sexurities are
currently fadng inoreased volstling and licuedity risks. All of thss factors,
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collectively andior individually, oould cause a Fand tolose valee. i the Fund
bostenough value, the Fund could face indreated Lindtholder redamplicns,
which could force the Fund fo liquidate imastments at deadvantagecus times
oF peces, thetety adver sty aflecing the Fund Also, the Fund may be
adversely affected when a lange nitholder purchases of redeens large
amounts of units, whidh can acour at amy time and may impact the Fund in
this sarne manner &5 a high volume of redemption requests. Langs Unithaolder
LranSBCtiONS fiy fmpact the Fund's hguidty snd met aset vaue Sudh
transactions may S0 indrease the Fund's transaction costs of othenwise
cause the Fund to perform differenty than infended. Moreover, the Fundis
subject tothe nisk that ather Unitholders may make investment degsions
based on the choiges of  lange Unitholder

A Fund may have ssonificant exposune 1o issuers in the United Kingdom . The
United Kingdom's dedsaon to leave the European Uinion may impaa Fund
returms. This dedsion may cause substantial volatility in foreign exchange
markcoets, kead o weakness in the exdhange rate of the British pound, result in
a sus tained period of market uncertainty, and destabilize some or all of the
other Eurapean Linjon member couniries andfor the Eurazone

Forsign §on-LL5. ) secunities gt report are dassified by the country of
Ecorporation of aholdng Incertain instances, a sequrity™ countny of
ncorporation may be different from its country of economic exposure

Ifa Fuand invests deectly in forelgn dnon-ULS ) camendies o in securities that
rade in, and recedoe teveried in, foreign (Ron-U S ) curmendies, of in financal
derivatg NsEuments that |:l’I:I‘f'iIJE exposute 10 foreign (on-L1 S ) QETendes,
it will be subject to the sk that theee cumendes will dedine in value relative
to the base cusrency of the Fund, o, in the case of hedging positicns, Sat

thae Fuands Bursee cumency will dedine in valae relative 10 the @imendy being
hedged Curmencyrates in foreign countnies may fluchuate significanthy over
short periods of tire for a numbser of redsonds, mduding changes in intefey
rates, intervenSion (or Bhe failure tointerene) by US. or foreign govemments,
central banks of supranationsl entities such as the intemationa Monetany
Fund, o7 by the impasition of curmency controds or other political developments
in the United States or sbroad. As a result, 8 Fund's imeestments in forean
cumency-denceninated securnilies may reduce the Fund's rebums

The market values of equities, wuch as common shadks and prederred searities
o equity related imestments such a3 futures and options, have histoncaly
risen and fallen in periodic cyckes and may decline due 1o general market
condtions which are not spedficaly related to a partiodsr company, sedh as
real of percened adverse soonomic condtions, hangss in the general
outock for comporate eamings, changes in inberest or cumency rates or
adverte investor sentiment generally, They may also dedine due o factors
which affect 2 parfioular industry or industries, wdh 25 lbor shortages o
Encréated producton coss and competitve conditon s within an indusiny
Different types of equity secunities may react differenty o these

devel oprnents. Bquety seaunties and edquity related invesiments generally have
greater market price volatility than fxed income seqgities

The Furics may imvest in certain instruments that rely in some fashion upon
the London interbank Offered Rate (CLIB0R™). LIBOR Is an average nterest
rate, detarmined by the ICE Banchmark Admirsstragion, that banks charge
onie anather bor the use of thoet-term money. The Linited Kingdom™ Anandal
Conduct Authority, whidh regdates LIBOR, has announced plans o phate oul
the wse of UBOR by the end of 2021, There remains uncertainty regarding
future wiilizaton of LIBOR and the nature of any replacement rate, and any
patential effects of the rarsiton svay from UBOR on & Fund of on certain
mslnsments in which a Fund invests are not known

Credit and Coumterparty Rizks A Fundwl be exposed to credit ritk to
parties with whom it frades and wil also bear the risk of setdement defadt
A& Furnd manimizes concentrations of credi nsk by undertaking rantactons

with alarge number of customers and counterparties on recognized and
reputable exchanges, where spplcable. OTC cerivative Bransadions ane
subject 10 the risk that 3 counterparty [0 the ransacbon wall not fulil its
contfaciual obfgations b the ather party, a8 many of the protectans alorded
%o cenitrally deared derivative transactions might not be awailable for OTC
derivative ransactions. For derivatives iraded om an exdhange or Brouch a
central counterparty, credi mek resides with the editacrthiness of

he Furd"s deaning broker, of the deaninghuse (e, rather than w3
counferparty in an OTC derrative Transaction. Changes in regulation relating
10 3 Fund's use of derivatives and relabed instruments could potendally limit
of inpact the Fund's abelty t irvest in denivatives, Bmit the Fund's sbility 1o
eMmpioy Cenain srategnes that use dervatives andior adversely affed the value
of prertonrmance of dermatves and the Fund. A Fund could lose money if the
issuer of guarantor of a fixed income security, or the counterparty to a
finandal denvative ingtnuments contract, repurdhase agreement of a loan of
portfol o sequrities, is unable or unwiling to make tmely princpal andfor
Inberest payinents, o 1o othenwise honor its obbgations. Secudities and
finandal denvative instruments ane subject 10 vaning degrees of oredit ik,
whidh rmay be reflected i credit ratings

Similar to arecht risk, & Fund miay be exposed to counterparty fisk, or the risk
that an institution or other entity with which a fund has unsetded or open
wansactions will dedault. FIMCO, & the Manager, minimezes Counteparty
skt the Funck through a number of ways. Fror 10 entenng into
BanEACtons with & misw counterpany, the FIMICO Counterparty Risk
Comemittes conducts an extensive credt review of such counterparty and mast
approve Bhe use of sudh counterpanty. Furthemmaore, pursisant to the tenms of
Hhe underhing contract, to the extent tat unpasd Smounts owed to a Fund
exieed 3 predetermned threshold, sudh counterparty shall advance collateral
to a Fund in the form of cath of securities equal in value 1o the unpaid
amomnt owed fo 3 Fund. A Fund may invest such collateral in seqmities of
atfer nsonements andwall tgically pay inbinest fo e @uniematy on the
collateral received. i the unpaid amount owed to 3 Fund subsequently
diecregies, 3 Fund would be redquired to retun 10 the counterparty l of &
portion of the collateral previously advarced, PIMCO s atfernpis To minimize
coungerpanty risk may, hisever, be unsuccessiul

Al transachions in listed seqwities e setBedpaid for upon delivery using
approved counterparties. The risk of default is considered mindmal, &5 delivery
of securites sold is only made once a Fund has recetved payment. Payment is
made on & purchase once the secunties hawe been delivered by the
counterparty. The rade will fail if either party fails to meet its obligation

4. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject to vanous netting arangements (" Masber
Agresmenis ) with select counterpartes. Master Agreements govern fhe
ferme of certan ransadions, and ae intended to reduce the counterparty risk
aseodated with relevant ransacions by spedfying credit protection
mechanisms and peoviding standard 2ation hat is intended 1o impiove [egal
certaanty Esch type of Master AQreement o ems oemain types of
transactions. Different types of ransactions may be traded out of diferent
legal enfities or affiiates of a parfiodar organization, resulting in the need for
multiple agresmenls with 3 Snghe counTmarty. AS the M Agfeerienls
are specific 1o unigque operations of cifferent asset types, they alow 3 Fund o
diode Ut and net s tolal exposune b a Counterparty n the sent of a defaull
with respect to all the Fansactions govemed under 2 single Master
Agreement with & counterparty. For fnandal reporting purposes te
Statements of Ascets and Liabiliges generally present derivative assets and
liabibitie on & gross burdis, which reflects the full fdes and expoires prasr 1
netting
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Master Agreements can also help limit counterparty risk by spedifying
Collateral posting amangerments 30 pre-amanged exposure levels. Under most
Master Agresrments, collateral i routinely transherned i the total ned exposune
o certan iransactons (net of excing oollateral dresdy in plaoe) governed
uncer the relevant Master Agreement with 3 counterparty in a given account
exceeds 8 spedfied threshold, which typically ranges froen zero to §250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Mader Agresment Linited
Sranes Treasny Bills and U 5. dolar cach ade generally thee prederned foms of
collageral, although other secunties may be used depending on the terms
gutfined in the spplicable Master Agreement. Securifies and cash pledged as
collaseral are reflected & a5sets on the Statements of Assers snd Labdstes a5
gither & component of vestments 5t value (Searities) or Depodts with
counterparty. Cash collateral necenved is not typically held in & segregated
account and as such is reflecied as a Rability on the Statements of Assets and
Liabdities a5 Deposits from counterparty. The market value of any secunibies
recetved as oollateral is ot reflecied a5 2 component of MAY. The Rund's
overdll exposune 10 Counterparty sk can change substantially within 4 shom
period, as it is aflected by each ransaction sulject to the relevant baster
Agreeiment

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agresments
{ndvidually and collectively " Master Repo Agreements ™) govem repurchase,
reverse repunchase, and sale-buydad: Famsadtions between fe Funds and
selecl conterparties. Master Repo Agheements main tan provsions for,

Arnong other thindgs, inia0on, inoorme: payments, @l of defaull, and
manfenance of colateral. The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledoed of received, and the net exposure by
counterparty s of period end ane dsdosed in Bhe Nobés b Schedule of

| e s

Master Securnities Forwand Transaction Agreements. { Master Forwand
Agresments”) govem certain fonward seting transadtions, such a5 TBA
secyrities, delayed-delivery or sale-buyback fransactions by and

between the Funds snd seect counteparses The Master Fansard
Agreemients maintain provisons i, among other things, initiation and
coniamation, payment snd transfer, events of default. remmination, and
mamnfenance of oiateral The market value of forwrard settling transactions,
collateral pledged or reedved, and the net exposure by countemarty a5 of
period end are dsdosed in the Motes 1o Sdhedule of Investments

Customer Account Agreements and related sddenda govern deared
derivativiss Wansadaons sudn &5 dunes, options on futures, and desned OTC
dervatives. Such transactions require podting of initial mangin as determined
by each relevant dearing agency whidh is segregatedin an aooount at &
futures, commission merchant TFCM™) registered with the Commodity
Fungres Tradng Cormeresson (TCETCT) In the Umited States, aoun [EFpATY 5
rriary e reduced 44 creditars of an FOM cannol have & clairn b Fund 255815
the segregated account. Portability of exposure in the event of an FCM
default soenio further reduces nck to the Funds. Variation margn, o
changes in market value, are generally exchan ged daily, but may ned be
nitisd Dedaben futures and dedned OTC dérvatioes unless the paries hive
agreed 1o a separate arrangement in respect of fund margining, The market
walue or accumulated unrealized appredation (depreciaton), mitkal mangin
posted, and any unsetted vanation margin as of period end are disdosed in
the: Mates 1o Schedule of Investments

Interranona Swaps and Denvaties Assooation, inc. Master Agresmenis and
Credt Suppeoet Anneces (TIRDA Master Agreements ™) govem bilaseral OTC
derivative iransactions entered into by thie Funds with Select counteparties
1504 Master Agreemenis maintam prowisions bor general obligations,
representations, agreements, coflateral posting and events of default or
ternination. Bvents of termination induwde oonddions it may entele
COUNDEpantes 1o et 1o fermanate early and Cause semement of #ll

outstandng tramsactions under the applcable S0A Master Agreement Any
election b Terminase ey could be material 1o the finandal SRaEmEnts. In
limited drosmstances, the S0A Master Agreement may contain addiional
provisions that add counlerparty pratection béyond coverage of exsong daly
exposure if the counterparty has a dedine in aredit quality below a predefined
lewel . Thesse amnounts, if amy, may be segegatedwiih a thind-perty osstodian
Thie markel vialue of OTC finandaal derivatoe insimumments, collateral receed
of pledgad, and net ipodune by counterparty a5 of period end ane dedoded
in the Mobes 0 Sdhedule of Imvestments
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

Each Fundis subject to the following fees payable at the fol

applicabde, taken sep

OV &

skated a5 a percentage of the average

ynet assets of each Fund, or Class, if

Fies

Furd Managemae Nilwisory Admimismative Agency Digiribution
PIMCO Biimada Emerging Maikets Bond Fund 11

LI 1] - 035% 020w - -

»  [rst QUPY, Hedged) 035% amEr -
PIME0 Bemsuda Global Aggregats Ex-Japan Bond Fund (M} - 07e% 020%2 - -
PIMC D Bemuda Income Fusd &

s FLM] = = -

= F =0y - = = o —

s JiEn

= J[LED) = = = - =

. )

s N i - = - =

= HED

& PR DE5% — — — 065%

= OUPT) - -

. RUFN - - - - =

= 5P - - E - =

s TUP™ = 050% 020%" - -

. UpEo® - 05% ikl b - -

W USH D EST 0210%

s KUF) BE0% - - - -

.

. = - = ok =

D

i TY) = = = - =
PIMED Beinsada U5, High Yield Fund 1 (M) REE 07" - -
PIMC D Shost-Tarm Maatgage lncoms

= ELR naoe" = = 0E% a5E%"

LI T 030%™ - - -

= ) {APY, Hedged - - - - -

s JpY b3p%™ 5% 5%

= Us0 m30%E™ - - 0s% 025%™~
PIMED Waorld Figh Inoom D70% oo™ OEE=
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The management, advsory and adminisirative fees, if applicable, are paid monthly in amrears to PIMCD for providing or amanging for the provision of advisory,
administrative and third-party senices induding audit, custodial, trustee, portfoio accounsing, routine begal, transfer agent and prinfing services The agency and
distribation fees, if applicable, are pald monthly in smears to reimbirse frnandal intarmediaries that provde sendices and distribution refating to the ursts of the
applicabde Fund (of Class theneol, a3 applicable). In éxchange for this fee, FIMCO wil bear the oodls of certain thind-party senaces required by the Funds, induding
audit, custockal, trustes, portfiolio aocounting, legal, ransder agent and printing senices. PIMCO, and not Unithobders, wauld benefit from any prie degesse in the
cost of sinch third-party seraces, mcuding decreases rewlting Fom an increase in net xsets, In addibon, with respect bo Funds that ane subyect 1o an admensstratie
fee, PIMCO generaly makes 3 profit on such a fee

A noted in the table above, certan Funds and Classes of Funds ane nod subject o management, 3dvisory, administrative, agency o distibution fees. PIMCO Japan
Led, PIMCO"s affiliae in dapan, is paid @ fee from the Lapenese Fnestment Trusts of other ivesiment viehides hat ireest in suchy Funds of Classes and & poron of
such fee is then allocated to FIMCO to compengate it for it sendces

For the first five years following the launch of each of the B-J 1605 (IFY), B-1 1605 (USD), B-J 1609 0FY), B-1 1609 (USD), B-) 1612 {PY), and B-) 1612 (USD) Classes
of the FIMCO Bermmuda ncome Fend £ an Asset Based Sales Chargs (TABSC™) of . 76% will be imposed on the average daly net assetvalue of each Class and
payabie monthly to the Fee Agent Addifonaly, if anyunits of the B-) 1605 OPY), B8 1605 (LSO, B-) 1609 0P, B-) 1e09 (LSD), B-) 1612 (FY), and B-] 1612 (LEDH
Classes of the PIMCC Bermuda Inoome Fund E are redeemed of exchanged for oe o mose units in another fund within the: time peniods spedied below, a CSC wil
e irnpceed on the amount of 9ich redemption a1 the apgdicable Percentage COSC

Y wars Since Inceptisn of Each Class Peecantage COSC
1 teaphadeng By year arevemmand 3 00%
2 {wncl uding 5 cond wear annivensang 2A0%
Jischading tird e arewarsany) 1 60%
4 (wazd udeng Joarth wiar annnarsaEng 1.40%
B e hading 1il b year anrsversang QB
Thezeafier GO

with respect to the caloulation of the CDSC, the value of the redempion amount will be the then-qument NAY of the: wnits being repurchased. Furthermore, any
appicabie COBCE will be deducted from the repurdhase proceeds and will be payable to the Fee Agent, For the yvear ended October 21, 2019, the B-) 1605 (IFY), B-1
1605 (LS00, Bl 1603 (IFY), B+ 1609 (USD, B 1612 (P, and B-) 16137 (USD) Classes of the PIMCO Bermisda Income Fund € pad V164,693,784 n ABSC and
V37,066,782 n COMC 10 Che Fee Agent

The Funds {or Classes theredl, 35 appiicable) may bear othés expentes refated 1o their operation that ane Roft covered by the manacgement, advisony, admiristiative,
agency of dsmbution fees, induding but rot limited 10; (1) tixes and govermmen tal fees; () broker sge feed and commestions and omer portiolio rarsach o expentes,
(i} costs of bormowing maney, induding interest expense; (iv) extraordinany sxpentes, induding costes of liigation and indemnification expenses; and (v} any expénses
allocated or afpcable 1o @ spedfic Class of units, PIMCO has paid the crganizational expenses assodated with the creation of the Trust, excepd for PIMCG Short-Term
Mortgage Incoms
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PIMCO andor its affiliates initlally advanced to PIMCO Shiort-Term Mortgage income all costs and expenses, induding legal expenses, inqumed in connecticn with the
nital pubkic offering of the EUR, JPY and USDr Classes of units of the Fund in Japan ("Offerng Expenses ™) AL or near the commencement of the Fund's operations, the
Furd will reimturse PIMCO andsor its affiliates for the Offering Expenset advanted and will amartize such Oftering Expenses over the first fiscal year of s operaions.
Hiawiver, PIMICO has sgbesd 10 weanst rembursement of the Oflenng Expenses o the extent Bal wch expences éxtesd 0.05% per annum of the wum of the EUR, JFY
and B0 Classes’ MAY {the "Offering Expense Limitation™). Any Offering Expenses waived due 1o the Oifering Expense Limitation may be recouped by MO0 andior
its affliates for a period not exceedng five years from the commencement of the Fund's operations; provided, the amount recouped by FIMCO andior its affiliates shall
Nk exteed 0.05% per annum of the sum of te EUR, JPY and USD Classes” MAY I any of the EUR, JPY and USD Classes of units of the Furd ane temninated piar to
thee fll resmribairsernent of all Orffering Expenses, PIMCO andfor it affiliates shal nof seek reimibursementof sy remaning wnreimbursed amounts from that Olass
Furthermore, if l of the EUR, JPY and USD Classes of units of the Fund are terminated prior t0 the full reimbursement of all Offering Expenses, PIMCO andior its
affiliztes shall not seek reimbursement of any remaining unreimbursed amounts from the Fund As of October 31, 2009, there were no regoverable Offering Expenses
£ PIMACO: andior its affilisnes

The Trustee and the Manages have appointed Credit Sussse International as the agent for e PIMCO Bermnada income Fund E for purpeses of finandng placement fees
by b paid b certaen distribistons. Under 3 fee 30ent ppointment s eement entened into among te Trestee, e Manager, and Credit Suisse international fhe “Fes
Agent Appointment Agreement”), Credit Suisse intemational has been appointed 1o: ) effed payrnent of cenan distbutiion Tees to the Japanese disributansin
accordance with the Fee Agent Appomniment Agreement and the terms of vanious upfront fee letters, and (i) make all calaulations and determinations required to b
made under the Fee AgEnt Appointment Agreement

PIMCO amidior 115 affiliates wall imn gty sivance to me PIVMCO Bermuda Income Fund Elegd expeirries inaurred in connection with exeouEng the Fee Agent
Appoantment Agreement and dstodated legd agresments for the B- 1605 (IPY) and B-J 1605 (LSDh Classes of whits of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E (the “Fee
Agent Ligal Expenses™), AL the end of these Classes’ initesl offering periods, e Fund will b requised o ) reimburse to PIMCO andior its affliates the grester of: (3)
W10 milion or (b} 0. 20% of the aggregate amounits invested in such Classes during their initial offering periods (sedy amount not 10 éxceed the Fee Agent Legal
Expemses advanced), and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expemses to the relevant Class over the first fiscal year of its operations. All or 3 portion of the remaining
Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed to futere B share dasses added to and offered by any series of the Trust, FIMCO Bermuda Trust, AIMCO
Berrmuds Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trst andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year froen the end of the initial offering periods of e B-1 1605 (IPY) and B-)
1605 (USE0 Classes of units of the PIMCO Benmuda income Fund € of sudh other perdod of ime that the Irvestment adviser determines in its deoetion

Inaddton, PIACO andforits affilistes will migally advance o the PIMCO Bermuda Incorme Furd E [egal expenies incurned in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appoantment Agreement and assodated legd agreements for the B-1 1609 FY) and B-J 1609 (LS0H Classes of waits of the PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E (also a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses). At the end of the B-J 160%3 (JFY) and B-1 1609 (LIS0h Classes” initial oifering peniods, the PIMCO Bermuda ncome Fund E will
be required toc ) reimiburse to PIRCO andior its affiliates the greater of: (ah ¥10 million or (6) 0.20% of the aggeqate amounts invested in such Classes deing their
initial offering periods (such amount not to exnceed the total of the fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unreimbursed porticon of any Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previcusly sdvanced in connection with the aeation of any B share dass of ary series of the Trust, FIMCO Barnuda Trust, FIMCD Bemuda Trust W, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor FIMICO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the reqpecive ends of the nital oftering or such other period of ime that the investment Adviser
determings in its discretion), and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the relevant Class over the Brst fscal year of its operations. Al or & portion of the
remaining Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed to future B share dasses added to and offered by any series of the Trusi, FIMCD Bermuda Trust,
PIMCO Beraipda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the initial offering periods or sud
other period of time that, the bvestment Adviser delermines m its dscretion

PAMKCO andfor its affiliates wall also initially advance to the PIMCO Barmruda Incame Fund E legal expenses indumed in connection with executing the Fee Adent
Appintment Agreement and associated legal sgreaments for the B-J 1612 (PY) and B-J 1612 (USDH Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermuds Income Fund E (also 2
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses). Al the end of the B-J 1612 (JFY) and B-] 1612 (LS00 Clases” initid offering periods, the PIMCO Bermuda Ingome Fund E will
be required too () reimbirse fo PIVCO andvor its afiifiates. the greater of: (3 ¥10 miflion or B 0.20% of the aggregate amounts imvested in such Classes duing their
Enivial offering periods (sich amaunt not to exceed the total of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unreimbursed portion of any Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previously advanced in connection with the deation of any B share dass of amy series of the Trust, PIMCO Berrmusda Tnest, PMIMCO Barmpda Trpst i, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor PIMICO Cayman SPC Lirnited within one year from the respective ends of the mifial offerdng or such ather period of Bme that the Investment Adviser
determinegs in ity discregion), and i) amorize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the relevant Class over the Frst fiscal year of its operations. Al or a portion of the
remaning Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed to futurs B share dasses sdded to and offered by any seres of the Trust, FINCO Berrmuda Trust,
FIMCO Bemopda Teust v, PIMCO Cayman Trust andior PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the initial affering periods or sud
other pericd of e that tie Fectment Adviser deternines i its doretion. Fos the yiedf ended October 31, 2019 there were no mote Fee Agent Legal Expendis
remamning

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income (the: EUR, JFY, and USD Classes) and PIMCO World High Income pay on-going expenses related 1o the public offenng of their
units in lapan
10. RELATED PARTY TRAMNSACTIONS

The imvesbment Adviser is a related party o the Funds and is a majority-owned subsidiany of Alliang Asset Management AG Fees paid 1o the related party, i any, are
diadased n Mote 9, and aorued related party fee amounts, if any, are dsdosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabeities

Allignz Asset Management AG, 3 related party of the Trust, cwned 0.004% of e netassets of the FAMCOO Bermuda Low Duration oo Fund, 10.304% of the net
assets of the PIMCO Berrmuda Mongage Oppartunities Fund, 0 758% of the net assels of the PIMCO Short-Tern Mortgage Income Fund and 0.0001% of he net
asgens of thie PIMCO U5 High Yield Strategy Fend W.as of Oaober 31, 2019
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* A pero balamce may reflect actual amounts rounding to less than one Shousand.

[#] The allocation of Total Investments by geographic region as of Octeber 31, 2015 is 106.5% of Net Assets in the United 5ta tes and other countries comprising
of DU6% of Nt Assets in sggregats.

[B)  Imterest only security.

[} Whan-lssied secuirity.
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Schedule of Investments PIMCGO Short-Term Mortgage Income (Cont.)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL DERTVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
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(3 2018 10 31 79 10
(4) 2018 10 31 16 10
(5) 2018 29 2018 10 31
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(6) 2018 2018 10 31
(1) 2018 15 2018 10 31
(8 2017 12 15 2018 10 31
(9 2018 24 2018 10 31
13

14

US GAAP
2018 10 31

2018 10 31

15

2019 16
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities [cont)
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Cost of Investments in Securities i 14702 4 451
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Proceeds Received on Short Sales 3 a 3 a
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities [cont)
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities [cont)

Wmns. i it SeCeps P4 U AT=PE bixc o Faind I | | lrcmmy Fesd Fead
we and Redemption Price Per Unit Dutstanding:
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A N EUR [} Wik Wik
N Mk 3 1004 R A1)
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J EAL
Expressad i bonpomal cuency) 4 % 2 N4 i Wik Wk
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Statements of Dperations (Con)

Nel Investment Income (Expense) i K & 137 ik

K [10]
Net Realized Gain {Lossk:
] 1] ri) ¥ i
11,38 i3 1] 2.2
] [ £ I
(4 ] (51
] = &
alil o i} 168
a 1214} 0 0
118 454 1,520 o 35 1513
] a + 1] 0
3747 1161} 154 o 1
1 1] § B
160 n 1F
1,083 Al Lha

Net Increase {Decrease] in Net Assets Resulting from Dperations & (1278 ) 1,007 $ 2510 i (102 ¥ L

* Faresgn -t withhaldng ¥ !

(=
(=

X D el Py N o A Dl et Tl i 0 e T 0 (s
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets jCont)
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Increase iDecreasel in Net Assets frone
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Hat e mment icome [mpense 1 § 1T " B
m M ] 1 BFR
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M 60 (1,07 2510 Tor] [l )
n Mk i
[ [F | N
W L] A
Fih Hi% Hi
Itk W
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El] Hik N
Kk L) Hix
i m WA
[ W& iy
lith Hi& Yis
B0 His L L
1,056 ik ik W
WA (8581 Nk m
8.00% [1.175] 13001 0
Fund Unit Transactions:
Hux [decressal reguleng boem Fund unit ownsacton® 8,111 [4.8611 104 1% bt} RE]]
Total (Decrease) in Net Assets a1.2m 6 FE 13013 152 G
Nel Assats:
Begering ol vear 300,24 0% 172,966 3475 5071
e 4 EGER 14,18 143 15,327 44006
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Financial Highlights (cone)
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGAMIZATION

Each Fund discussed in thit repont (each & “Fund™ and collectively, the "Funds™), whech also indudes each dass of units of that Fund (each a "Class™ and collectneety,
the " Classes™), is a series rust of FIMCO Bermuda Trust 8 (the “Trust™), an open-ended wnit frust estabdished under the bawes of Bermiuada as 3 mulli-sesies trust
pUrsESNE 80 3 wust deed exeouted by Windhester Global Trust Company Umited on December 1, 2003 (x5 amended Fom e to ime, the "Trust Deed ™). Bfective 35
of the dose of busness (Eastern fime) on September 23, 2006, Winchester Global Trust Company Limited retired and was dschanged a5 rustes of the Trust and Brown
Brofhers Harmeman Trust Company (Caaman) Limkted was appolried 5 s rustee of the Trust for the owners of units of e Funds (the “Unithalders™). Efecive a5 of
the dhose of braness (Eastem time) on Seplember 2%, 2017, Brown Brothers Hamman Trust Company {Cayman) Limited refired andwas discharged 25 trustee of the
Trast and Maples Trustee Services (Bemmuda) Limited was appointed as new tustee of the Trust As used in this report, all references. to te "Trustee” shall mean the
person then senving & Bustes to the Trust Padfic investment Management Company LLE ("PIMCC,” the "Manager™ or the "lnvestiment Adviser™) is the sponsor of
and was responsible for straciung the Trsst

e Trust is subgect 1o reguiation and superdgon as prosided forin the Irvestment Funds Act 2006 and refated nules relating to-standard funds

The termns of the Trust Deed confer upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the power, in the future, toestablish further funds in addition to the Funds
currently in operation a4 of the date of this repart

The Funds presented in this report are listed below:

FINC Barmuda Bank Loan Fnd &
FIMCE) Barmuda Bank Loon Fend B
FIMCE Barmuda Bank Loen Fand
FIMCY) Barmoda Bank Loen Fend D
FANACE) Blarmuda Income Fund O
FINCT) B moda income Fund E
PR Emerging Bland Income Fund 11
FINACA Emnging Bond Incoms Fund 11l
FINCT Barmuda Bank Loen Fend B (OFfesed only to other unds b sarve &s underying nvestment vehides for such
MO Barmuda Emamging Makets Bond Fund M) funds
FINCE) Barmuda Glotal Aggregats ExJapan Bond Fund i)
FIMCD Bermada Income Fund (M)
FMCD Bamuda 115 High Yeeld Fand (V)
FAMCD Barmida UL High Yeald Fond B )
PRI Emanging Bond bncome Fund (M)

[ PN Ermuda Emargieg Matkats Eond Fund ||
FIAC Barmuda Global Aggeg ate ExJapan [Yen-Hedged) Bond Fund
FIRAC0 Barmuda Glotal Agg egate Ex-Japan Bond Fund
FINCT) Barmada Income Fund A®
FINACY) Bl musdla Mo e Chppecs e thees Fund
FINACE LS, High Yield {Yin-Fedgad] Fuad 1l
FMCT LS High Yiald Band 1]
FIMCO L5 Biigh Yiald Stratesgy Fusd
FINCO LS. High Yiald Strategy Fund 11
PN Wordd High Inpoma

(fiezad only 1o fnda with a " fund of bnds™ shuches, a5 debnad in thenules
of e rvestmentt Trusts Association, Japan, of in any ofher jursdclion

Offarad o Japanesa and othar imeesion

PN Short-Teem Morigege Income

(iffered o Japanesa and other mvastors. Unis of the EUR, JFY and USD Olassas wil
b resiictid bo only e mverstons who ane epgroved by the Manager

PN Eménging Bond {Yen Hadged] incoma Fund
FANCD) Eimarging Bond Incomes Fund

FIMCE) 15 High Yiald {Yon Hinkgad] Fusd

PINCO LS High Yiald Ford

(nffiaeed only o fund of fusds type Japandss invesmant busts ciganged vader he
Lew concerning Investment Trestand Imesmment Comnpany of Japen (" Japanasa
vicstrant Trusts ™1 winch wall oflis thiei g 50 thia pllbt in Japn afhr by wdy of
jpublee offering of privae plecessent and which e managed by ARMCD Japan L of

other smelar lncanssd imastment st man agemeant companias and subject 1o fis
fuabies o ok | reisdmage £ T st AgSoaation, Japidi

= Dt T ol o AR LY S ieatle S Fall o NS S £ A IS SNRS T O O S 1 IR i T e o B CLEEY ey o PG Sl N Foll i BT Yy S LN BT R et

2. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The -‘IZIHD-'\-'I'IQ 5 & surrenary of ‘.-Il;l'=lﬁl:df‘l| S0O0AUNTNG pofcies Congstenly foblowed Ery the Trust in e preparanon of is finandal statements in conformety with
accouniing principles generally aocepted in the United States of America LS GAAFT), Each Fund is treated a5 an imvestment company under the reporting
requaremnents of LS GAAP. The preparation of Snandal statennents i accordance with LS. GAAP requanes managentent i make esumates and ssumptions ha
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabifties and disdosure of contingent assels and liabilities at the date of the finandal statements and the reported amounts
ofincreases and dedeases in net asels from operations during the reporting penod Actwal résults could ditfer from hode esbmates

drail Fapeen | Dusber 30 30EE 2UF
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{a} Undeilying Fands The Trustee and Manager may zpply 2 o a portion of
the assets of ) FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, FIMCO Bermiada Bank
Loan Fund B, PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund € and PIMCO Bermuda Ban:
Lean Fund D (i) FIMCO Wodd High Income; (i) FIMCO Berruda Global
Aggregate Ex-lapan (Yen-Hedged) Bond Fund and FIMCO Barmuda Global
Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond Fund; (i) FIMCO Bermuda Incame Fund A, FIMOD
Bermixda Income Fund D and PIMCO Bermuda Encome Fund E; () FIMCO US
High Yiebd (en-Hedgedy Fund, PIRMCO LS. Hioh Yidd Fund, PIMCO US

High Yietd Strateqy Fund, and FMCO LS, High Yield Strategy Fund 11 (vi)
PIMICO LS. Hegh Yeeld {¥en -Hedged) Fund Il and PIBCO LS. Hgh Yiekd Fund
I1; i) PIMCO Emerging Bond (Yen-Hedged) income Fund, PIMCD Emergng
Bond income Fund, PIMCO Emerging Bond income Fund I, and PIMCO
Ermenging Bond Incorre: Fund 1l (each referned to herein a5 a "Fund of Funds”
oF TAccuiFing Fund” wihich mvests in athier Funds) bo the respective aredit

of (i) MMCO Berrauda Bank Loan Fund (M); Gi) FIMCO Bernuda Bmerging
Markets Bond Fund (M; (i) PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan
Bond Fund (M) (v) FIMCO Bemieda Income Fund (M) (¥) PIMCO Bermuda
LIS, High Yield Fund (W), 6a) PINCO Bermuda LS. High Yield Fund 1 (W
i) FIMOO Emerging Bond incarme Fund W) (each refesred i herdin a5 an
“Underhing Fund®™ or "Acquired Fund™). Amy assets 5o applied will be held in
such Acquired Fund & if received directly Where assets are w0 applied, the
Acguired Fund will record the issee of units to ihe relevant Acquiring Fund at
Uhie Fssue price pef unitof such units and wall repurdhase such urets at the
repurchase pice per unit of such urits at the Bime of repurchase Accordingly,
the ability of the Acquiring Fund to advieve its imestment objective will
depend wpon the aility of the appicable Acquired Fund to achieve its

bves ment objective. There can be no assurance that the imesment obgective
of the Acquired Fund will be adieved

(b} Seemities Tranzactions and [nvestment Income Securited rardacions
are recorded as of the wade date for finam3al repodting puiposes. S thes
purchased or sold on 2 whendssped or defayed-defivery basis maybe

settbed beyond a standand setthement period for the security after the made
ciate. Realized gans and losses from securities sold ane neondied on the
identified cost basks. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date,
except certain dvidends from Soreign sequrities where the ex-diadend date
may have passed, which are recorded 35 soon & a Fund is infomned of the
ex-dividend date Interest income, adusted for the accretion of dscounts and
amurtization of premiums, is recorded on the aoonua basis from setlement
dlate, wath he socepticn af securities iwath a forward staring efedive date,
whee interest income is reconded on the accual basis from effectve date For
convertible securites, premiums attibutable 10 the converdon feature are not
amortized. EsBmated tax liabiites on certain foreign seaurities are recorded
of 30 a00ual bass snd are refledied as componients of intereslinoome or nel
change in unredized appredation (depredation) on investments on the
Sratements of Operations, a4 appropriate. Tax Rabdites reabred a4 a result of
such security sales ane reflected a a component of net realized gain fioss) on
Emvesments on the Statements of Operatons Papdown gains and losses on
marigage-related and other asset-backed sequrities, if any, are recorded a3
components of interest noome an the Satements of Operations

Dot obdbgaticns mury b placed on nof-a0anual status and rélsted intenest
Incoeme: may be reduced by ceasing cument accruals and wiiting off interest
receivable when the cofection of all or a portion of inferest has begame
doubrhul based on corsisteniy applied procedures. A deba obligagen is
remowed from non-sooual sLatus when e Ssmer resumes inferest PeayTmEnLs
of when collectability of interest & probable

(e} Cazh snd Foreign Currency The Bnancal statements of each Fund are
presented ysing the curmenoy of the primary economic ensircnment in which it
operates (e “functional currency™). The funictional aurrency for the Funds is

thie U% dollar, except for the PIMCO Bermuds income Fund E, which is the
Japanes: yen

The market values of foreign seowities, camency holdings and other assers
and labilities aré franslated into each Fund™ functional currency based on the
current exchandge rates each business day. Purchases and sales of secudities
andncome and expense items dencminated in foreign aumen dies, 1F any, are
wrandated intg each Fund's respective funcional CuETenCy a1 the exchange
rate ineffect on the ransadion date. The Funds do ol separately report the
effecss of changes in foedign exchange rates from changes in market prices on
seEilies held Swch changes are induded in net realized and net changes in
unrealized gain or boss from investments on the Statements of Operations

The Funds may imvest in foresgn qamency denominated securities and may
engage in foreign curmency transacticns sithier of & spod (Cash) bass at the
rate prevalng in the cumrency exchandgs market at the time o through 4
toeward for N CUMEA DY conbract (See Finanaal Defvatiee IFrtinimen )
Fedized foreign exchange gains or losses arising from sales of spat foreign
QUITENCIes, QUITency gains of losses realized betwesn the rade and seldement
dates on securities ransactons and the diflerence betwesn the recorded
amounts of divicends, interest, and Toreign withholding taes and the
tuncBonal currency equivalent of the amounts actually received o paid are
induded innet reafized gain o loss on forsign cumency tramactions on the
Statements of Operstions. Met unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses
arising from changes in foreign exchange rates on iodeign denominated assets
anvd Babsleties other than investments in securites hietd a1 the end of the
reporting period are induded in net change in unrealized appredation or
depreciaion on foreign currency assets and liabalities on the Starements of
Operations

The Met Asset Valoe CNAY") and tofal retums of certain Funds {or Classes
sherieaf, 35 applicabie) ane presented in the asrency for which e NAY is
reported (the "HAV cumency™) as detaled in each Rend's Ofering
Memarandum (the " Cffering Memarandum™). For the purposes of the
presentation of the NAV and the fotal return in the NAV cumency, the
begnning and ending MAVS are comverted using the period beginning and
endng exchange rates, respectively, dnd disrbutons s oomeerted uang the
exchange rane a1 the dme of the distribution. See the 1|:l||'_mu'u;| table for the
MAV arrency and functiona amency of each respective Fund:

AV Funcrioesl
Curroncy’ Casrranesy

FAMLCD Bermuda Bank [ oan Find {ll) .5 dally U5 dollar
FIMLL Bermuda Hark LoasFund &

o FRUSDH U5 delir 5 dollar

= JUFY Japansss e UE dollar

- J s Japimes yan 15 dollar

a  YUPY Jupansan yan U5 dollar

s Y [UED e v L3 dedlar
FIMLD Bermuds Bank Losa Fund B

=« Faum Autralian dollar | U5 dollar

= YD Japanes yan WS dollar

= YiIBRLl Japaniss yen UE dellar

- ¥ IMEN) Japanass v WS dollar

= Y {RUB) Japmnes v U35 dellar

- ¥ [TRY} Japaness v WS dollar
FAMCD Bermuda Bank Losn Fund C

w YICAE0 Japamnsa yen WS do
FARICD Barmuda Bank Loss Fund D

w1 Wikl Jupwemaen | U5 dollar
FIMCD Bermuda Emengng Markes Bond Fend (M) U5 dolly 15 dollar
FIMCO Bemmoda Emargng b ke Band Fend i

s« lretlFn Japness yen U5 dollar

L] Inest LIFY, Hodged Japamnise yan WS dollar

dranil Fepen | Dosber I 30EE 2N
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Notes to Financial Statements

P— NAY Farctond = IerildE 1.5 dolis 115 dedlar
| | Cumey [y = JPY Japanees yen LS dellar
FIMCO Barmuda Gobal Aggregate Ex-Japm [Yen- o JUPY. Hedgedd Jispanees e U3, deflar
| Hodge) Bond P bt 5 el U5 delr US dollar
FIMCD Barmuda Gobal Ageregase Ex-Japen Bond Fund | Japanese yen U5 dola FIMCO L5 High Toebd [ YeorHacked) Fund Japmem oy | U3 doflar
F'H:ED Bermuda Giokal Aggregese Ex-Jagan Boned Fund —— 15 dell FAMCT U 5 High Yiadd [ Yo Haceed] Fusd B Jopmesayen | LS dellar
(M} FIMCO L5 High Yield Fung Jopmmnwe | U5 dollar
FAMCD Barrmuds Incoms Ferd (M) U5 dols U5 dolat FMECA U S High Yoeld Fund 1l Jnpnsn yae WS dellar
| FIMCD Bvmuda Incame Fund A FIMCO 0.5 High Yisld Serasegy Fund
« FOFM Jepensta yn 5. delfat & JUPY Jupwwmn e | US dollar
= FOSE LS dollar W5 dofa o JUPY, Hedped) Jagpusects e 05 dellar
- J UPT Japandsa yin U5 dol L] JEm U5 dolly 3 dollar
& Js Jepanea e L5 dabat = FUPY Jnpanesn ym 15 dollar
= Ku3 U3 doller U5 doliat & 7 UPT Hedged Japanesn vy [ U5 dollar
= HUFR Japarasa yen U5 dola PIMCIILL 5 High Yield Sramgy Fund |
s WlisD depasayen | L5 dollr . T0AUD Japesaym | LS dollar
- FUFY Jepanesa yen 5. dobat L] ¥ [BRL) Japanes yan I 15, doflar
= Qorm depmtgayen | L5 doal IR Jopenesayen | LS dolar
- R Japaness ym U5 dolw a ¥ (TR Jupanesn v r U5 dollar
= SUPN Japarwiayen U5 dola FAMED Weorld Hich brcome U5 dollr | U5 dollar
- T LIFT Jepanesa yen U dollat
. WIEDE U5, doflae U5, dolar {d} Multiclass Operations Each class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
. ALY Japanesa yen U5 dolla nights to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other dasses of fe same
P | % dollas U5 dollw Fumd, matept for specific asets and gains and |oswes designated to a dass
s YUPM Japaresnym U5 dolia riel atineg 1o Curency hiedging operations. Income, non-dass peafic expenses,
s YRSH Japarsa yen U5 delw and non-dass spedfic reaized and unrealized capital gaing and lostes are
- TUMD Japswnn yon U5 dea #ocated to each dass of units based on the relative net assets of each dass
| PIMCD Barmads Income Fend 0 of the respective Fund Class spedfic expenses currently include
[ = N iodd) Japaries yen U5 dodat management, ahisory, administrative and distributon fees, wher: appiicable
I F o :
HM_D'"““::;;'E;H — Dperwiayen | U5t {#) Diatribution Policy Th followwing table shows the anticpated requenty
- . of distributions for each Fund Distnbutions from eddh Fund may be dedared
. B 106 LIPY) AL Jpanss yen and distributed to Unitholders only upon the authonization of the Manager,
= BB Bpamaye | HpOtES 8 wihich asheel Zition may e withhidd at te Managers. dseretion
- B 1608 LIPY) Japanes s yen Japateis van
= BJIBLZUPY Japaresa yen Japarese yan
» B IBL2WSH Iiparesayen | Japanssyen PRUCC Borranda Bank Lo Furd 4
PN Barrmusds Moo mgage Dpposunivies Fusd PRI Besrrusda Bk Lo Fund B
= JUPY Japarsma yen IES dofs PR Beerrreds Bank: L oo Fund C
= JuEh Jepaness yun 5. doliw PR Banmeda Back Loan Fund O
L« W80 U5 dode | WS dollar PACL) Bierrrusds Incsmme Fusd A
| FAMCD Besrmuds 115 High Yasd Fund M0 115, doller U5 dofat . EUPW
| FIMCD B da 115 High Yeeld Fund Il (M} Japangsa ymn U5 dofla 5 F IS
| PAMACD Ermasiierey Blared [Yeoes Hachasnl s Fisrad Jeparsstn v L5 dele . JUM
| FIMCD Emmaiganeg Band Inoome Fund Japanesa e U5 doliai . J RIS
FIMCD Ermeicanig Barsd Irsarna Farsd (M) L5 dolie L5, dear « WU
| FIMCD Emsiging Bond ncome Fund 11 = WS
= JRAUD Japarasa yen U5 dola s SUEM
- J AL Jspaneda yen LS dollas & X LIEY)
= J ALY Japoresa ym W5 dolw . X
= JiDRI Jopanssa yon U5 dofe »  YLEW
= JdKR Japariea yin L5 dolst s YLE
F j ;‘Fj,: j:pmu:-.m :J ; ::"': PR Besrreads Inceme Fusd O
- ] |
= BB J.:::::: s d&:: PRI Bermropda la.ln:n;.»qe[br.:\rm_rm Funed
5 JERY s mh US dilar PR Emer g Bond (Yen-Hedged) income Fund
[ PN Ermegyrg Bared brcames Fured 18 PR Esmer gy Bion Incorme Fursd
s JEURE Jpansta yen U5 dear PRL) Emergeng Band Income Fusd B
= JiGhF Japanese yen L5, dollar PRLOD Emergeng Band Income Furd B
L] L Japarwsayen | U5 doba PR ShortTerm Mongegs {rcome
FAMCD Sher-Tarm: Mermgage Income a Ireq USTH
s  HRA Furo LS. dolla
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Doclared ared Paid Monthly: {Cont}

FIMCEIL 5 High Tield [Yen-Hedged) Fund
FIMCOU .S High Yield Fund
FIMCOU.5 Hagh Tield Seamgy Fund
FIMCOL 5 Hagh Yield Seampyfund B
FIMC Wiaed High leeama
Doclered uned Paid Quarerly
FIRMCE] Blerrmids lncotre Fund &
« [0
FINCT Bermuda lncoms Fend E (provded that the dedand yield shal be no begher thin
% per nfaafmn ous iy s yier Pl penod)

Dnelared and Paid Semiancaally:

FALICE]) Brermudla tncorres Fond A&

|

e FLUF
= R
FARICE) Shair:-Ferm Slormgages lecoma
- EliR
® JPY
= ) UPY Hedged]
« U3

Tha Manugar doos not axpect to doclara digtribations with resgect o trese

Funde |or Clasaes thareo!, il spplicable), but may, in Ha ducretion, declare and
diztributicne to the Linthalders st smy 1

FIMCT Berruda Bask Loaa Fund (M}

FIMLCD Bermoda Emenging Markes Bond Fond M)

FIMCO Bermuda Ermerging borkes Bond Fond I

FIMEY) Barmuss Bebal Apgregate Ex-Jepan {YanHedged) Bond Fend
FINCE) Bermuda Global Agnragae Ex-Japan Bond Fusd

FIMCT] Bermusta Gebal Aqgregam Ex-Japan Hond Fund (M)

FIMCE Bermuds lncome Fond &

L] (A1E ]
= TP
L] Wish
= LU

FINCD Bermudia Income Fond 065

FAMCO Bermoda 5. High Yiskd Fund &)
FRACO Bermuda U5 High Yiekd Fund I (M)
FABICE Emengeeg Bosd Income Fond 60
PO 5 Hagh ‘field | Yen-Hedged) Furd I
FIMCO U5 Hogh 'iedd Fiond 11

Chstribuations, if gy, will generally be made from the relevant Fund's (o
Class’s, if applicakie) net imeestment income. In addition, the Manager may
authorize the payment of niet realized capital gaing avalable for digribuion
Addisional distributions may be dedared a3 the Manager deems appropriate
Distributions paid with respect to amy Fund (or Class thereof, if applicabile)
will reduce the NAY of such Fund for Class thereof, if applicabie). Al the
discreton of the Liithodders, cash distributions from a Fund for Class therecf,
if applicable) may either be reinvested in addtional urits of a Fund {or Class
thereod, if applicabiie) or paid to 3 Unithelder in cash, Cash payments will be
padin the MAY aimency of the Fund Eadh Fund {or Class thereof, if
applicable) may dedare further disributions if considered negessany in onder
Lo rnairitaen a reasonable level of distributions for & Fund (or Clats thereod, if
applicabde). In thie event that there is inadequate net income and net redized
capital gains 1o pay a distribution of 3 Fund (or Clats thereat, if applicable)
required by the Cffering Memcrandum, the Manager may pay 2 dsiribution

corsisting of 2 porson of the capital of sudh Fund for Class thereod, it
applcable). Deributions nat colleqed within sx years from their due date
will Lapse and will accnue 1o the bersdt of the rebevant Fund for Class Sereof,
1t applicabe)

ifi New Acconnting Promemncements [0 March 2016, the Finandal
Accointing Standards Board (T FASET) issued an Accounting Standards
Update ("ASUT), ASU 201605, which provides quidanie refated to the
impact of derieative contract novations on certain rel aticnships under
Acunting Standsrds Codficaton Topic ("AZC7) 815, The ASU is effective
tor armuoal perigds begnning after Decernber 15, 2017, and intenim peniods
within fiscal years beginning sfter December 15, 2018 At this ime,
management is evaluating the impiications of these changes on the finandal
SLETEETRN TS

I August 2016, the FASE issued an ASLL ASL 201615, which amends ASC
230 1o danty quidance on the dasdficaion of certan cash receipts and cash
payments on the S5atement of Cash Aows. The ASU s effective for anmueal
pengds begirming after December 15, 2018, and interim periods beginning
after Decemnber 15, 2019, At this tme, managemins is evaluating the
implications of these dhanges on the Bnandd watements

In Newerrber 2016, thie FASE istued an AL, ASU 200618, which amends
ASC 130 to provide guidance on the dassiication and presentation of
dhaniges in restricted cash and restricted cash eguivaients on the Statement of
Cash Flows. The ASU s effiective for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2078, and intenim periods beginning siter December 15, 2019, The Funds
have adopled the ASLL The mplementation of the ASU dd not have an
Impact on amy Funds inandal staterments

In March 2017, the FASE issued an ASL, AU 201 708, which provides
quidance refated to the amontization period for certain purchased callable
debt secuities held ata premium, The A5 is effective for annual perods
begrning after December 15, 2019, and interim peniock within $5cal wears
begnning after Decernber 15, 2020 This ASUwas adopted by the Funds. The
implementaticn of the ASU did nothave an impact on any Fund's finandal
statements

In August 2018, the FASE issued an ASLL ASL 2015-13, which amends ASC
20 10 madify the disd cbure nequirements on fant wabue meaturements. The
A5 s effective for annual periods. beginning after December 15, 2019, and
inbefim pericds within those annwal pefods. At this tme, management is
evaluating the imglications of these changes on the finandal statements

2 INVESTMENT VALUATION AMD FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS

in} lnvestment Valustion Pelicies The peice of 2 Fund's urits is based on
the Fund's AV The NAN of @ Fund, or each of its dasses, a5 applicable, is
determined by dviding the totdl valus of portidlio investments and other
Fasets atmibutable o that Fund or dass, bess any liabilities, by the ol
numiber of ursts outstanding of that Fund or Class On each Fund's Dealing
Dy {as deseribed in the current Offering Memarandum of the

Trust), Funed units are ordinardy valued a5 of the diose of requiar rading on
the Mew York Stock BExchange ("NYSE Close ™), information that becomes
knowen 10 e Funds or e agents after the time a5 of whidh NAY has been
caloulated on 3 particular day will not generaly be used o retroatively adust
thie price of a wurity of the NAY determined earier that day. Each Fund
reserves Bhe right to change the Bme 25 of which its NAV is caloulated if

the Fund dioses earlier

For puerposes of calqulating @ NAY, portfolie sequnities and other assets for
whidh edrker quaotes ané readly eailable are valued a1 marketvaloe. Marke
vilue i5 generally determined on the bass of offidal dosing peices or the last
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repodted sales prices, of if no saes are reported, based on quotes obtained
froen established market makers or peices (ndudng evaluated prices) supgplied
by thee Fundks’ approved pricing senices, quotation reporeng systens and
other thind-party sources (fogether, ~ Prong Seraces™), The Fands wll
niormmally wse pricing data for domesiic equity securities received shortly after
the NYSE Close and do nat normally take into account rading dearances of
setthements that take place after the NY3E Close, If market value pricing is
uted, a foreign (on-U 5 ) equity secuity raded on & foreign exchange of of
mixe than one exchange is typically walued wing pricng infoemation from the
exchange consdensd by the Manager o be the primary echange. A freion
(non-LLS ) equity seourity will be valued as of the dose of trading on the
foreign exchange, o the NYSE Chose, if the MY SE Close ooows before the end
of trading on the foreign exchange Domestic and foregn (ron-U05.) fived
Encore seoanties, non-exchange raded dermatves. 2nd l':L‘.LIiE,' OpOons arg
norrmealy valued on the basis of quotes oblained from broker: and dealers or
Fricing Semices uung data reflecting the earlier dosing of the pincpal
markets for those securities. Prices obtained from Pricing Sendces may be
based on, among ather tings, information provided by markel makers of
ectimanes of market vaues ablained from yield data relating to investrments of
securities with similar charadteristics. Certain fived income securities
purchased on a defayed-deltvery basis are marked to market daily unil
setifement at the forward seitlement date. Exdhange-traded oplions, except
Uity opfions, funures and options on futures, are vilued at e Setdement
price deterrnined by the relevant emchange. Swap agreemenis ane valued on
thee basis of Bid quotes obtaned from brokers and deders or market-hased
prices supplied by Pricing Senvices or other pridng

sources. A Fund's imvestments in open-end management investment
comparies, ather than exchange-traced funds (TETF™), are valued at the
MW of wpch imvestments. Open-end management investment companies
may indude affiliated funds

11 a foredgn fnon-115 ) equity seamity’s value has matenally changed after the
dose of the seouriny’s primary exchange or prindpal marker but before the
NYSE Close, the Security may be valued a8 far valee based on procedures
estabdished and approved by the Manager. Forelgn (non-LLS ) equity
securities that do mot trade when the NYSE S open are dlso valued at fair
walim. With respect to foreign (non-U1 %) equity sequriies, 3 Fund may
determine the fair value of investments bassd on information provided by
Fricing Sendces and other third-party vendors, which may recommend i
wall i oF adustments walh reference to ather seoumities, indoes of asts. In
consdering whether fair valuation is required and in determining far

walyes, a Fund may, among other things, contider Sgrificant evente fwhich
may be considered toindude changes in the value of U5 sequrities or
Securities indices) that oocur afeer the dose of the refevant market and befone
the NYSE Close, A Fund may utilize modeing todls. provided bry third-party
wisndors 10 deterrnine fair values of fonsgn (non-LL5) seaunitied. For thews
purposes, ary mdvement in the applicable reference index or instrument
{"zero tigger ™) between the earlier dose of the applicabe foreign market
and the NYSE Close may be deemed to be a significant event, prompting the
applicanon of the pridng modet (effectvely resulting in daily fair

waluations), Foreign exchanges may permit rading in foreign fuon-U S )
equity sequrities on days when the Trustis not open for business, whidh may
resyltin @ Fund's portiolio imeesiments being affected when Unitholders e
unable to buy or sll units

Senior senged fios firg Fate boarrs for which an active SECONCAY Markel exis
b rediable degres walll be walued At the mean of the last svalable biddask
prices in the market for sach loans, as provided by a Friong Sendice Senior
secyred foating rate loans for which an active secondany markiet doss not
exist ip 3 reliable degree will be valued at far value, whidh & intended o
appeormate market value n valuing 8 senaor seased foating rate loan at
fair walue, the factors considered may indude, but are not limited to, the

following: (2) the creditworthiness of the borrower and amy intermediate
partiapants, (&) the terms of the [oan, {2 recent prices in the marker for
sardlar boans, f any, and {d) recent prices in the market for nsruments of
safrilar queakity, rate, period undil nest nterest rate reser and matunty

Investments valued in curendes athes than the fundional cumency

of & Fund are corverted to the functional qumendy using exchange rates
obeained from Pridng Services. As a result, the value of sudh investments and,
in wm, the HaY of the Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value
of cusrendes in relation to the funcionsl cumency. The value of investments
traded in foreign markets or denominated in currences other than

the functional curency may be affected significantly on & day that the Trust is
niod open for business. A 2 result, to the extent that a Fund holds foreign
(nen-LS ) imestments, the value of thise mvestments midy change at tmes
whien you cannot purdhase, redeem of sahange units and the value of such
Irvveshiments wall be refleched in thie Fund's miod caladaned May

Investments forwhich market quotes or market based valuations are not
readify available are valued at fair value as determined in good faith by

ghe Manager or persons acting at their direction. The Manager has adopted
o Tor valuing seaunoes and other 25568 in Gnumstances whire
market quotes are not readily available, and has delegated o PIMCO the
respansiality tor apphyng the far vllustion methods, In the svent that market
quotes or market based valuations are not readily available, and the sequrity
of asset cannol be valued purssant o a Manager approved valuation
method, the value of the ssauity or asselwill be deternined in good taith by
e Valuation Cormmttes Markel quaobes ané condidered nol readly svalable
in droumstances where there & an dbsence of currend or reliable market-
based data (e.q., trade information, bid'ad information, indicative market
quotations (" Broker Quotes” ), Fridng Senvices’ prices), indudng where
evin s ooour after the close of te relevant magket, bt prioe o thie NYSE
Clase, that raterially atfect the values of the Fund®s seaunties or assets In
addition, market quotes are considered nof readity available when, due o
extraordnary droomstances, te exchanges or markets on whach the
sequities nade do nat open for trading for the entire day and no other
market prices are Sralable The Manager & regponsible for manitaning
sagnificand events that may materially sffec the values of the Fund's sequnites
or assets and for determining whether the walye of the applicable securities or
assets should be reevaluated in ight of such significant events

When a Fund uses fairvaluation to determine the value of 3 portfolio security
of of e atset fﬂfp{sINSES of caculamng its NAY, such irvesaments will not
be peiced on the basis of quotes from the primary market in which they are
traded, but rather may be prced by anather method that the Manager or
persons acting at their dredion believe reflects fair value. Fair valuation may
require subjecive determinations abowt the valie of 5 seqrity. While

Hhe Trust's policy 5 mitended to resull i a calaulation of a Fund's NAV that
fairhy reflects security vabues as of the tme of pricng, the Trust cannot ensure
that fair walues determined by the Manager or persomns acting at their
direction wiould acouwrately refiect the price that a Fund could obtain for 3
sequity if it were to dspose of that sequrity as of the time of pridng (for
instance, in a forced or distressed sabe) The prices used by a Fund may differ
froum the walue that would be reakized if the ssurities wede soid

i} Fair Value Hierarchy U5 GAAP deccrbes fair value a8 e prce that

3 Fumd would recedve 10 sell an gsset of pay 10 transfer a Rabilityin an orderly
antachon between market Dﬂf[iIIIDJl'.S at-the measurement date, It
eskablishes a fair value hierarchy that priceitizes inputs 1 valu stion meshods
and recuires discosane of the fair vakue higrardy, separately for sach major
category of assets and liabiities, that segregates fair valee meaturements inlo
lesweds (Lewed 1, 2, 06 3). The imputs or methodalogy wed for valuing securites
afe not necessarily an indication of the risks asodated with investing in those
sequnties. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the faer value hierardyy are defined as fodows
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& Lewvel 1—Cuobed prices in active markets of exchanges for idenfical assets
aned liabilives

w Ll 2—Sigmibcant other observable inputs, whedh may indude, but ane
nok lemited bo, quoted prices for Smilar assets o liabdities in markets tat ane
active, quoted prices 1of identical of similar d55es of liabdites in markets that
are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
assens of Bakalities (such as interest rates, yeeld qurees, wodatlities, RIEDFTENT
speedk, boss severities, oreditrisks and default rates) or other market
corobaorabsd inputs

= Ll 3—Sigmificant unolservable inputs based on the best nfommaton
available in the drowmstances, 1o the extent obrsensdble inputs are nat
available, which may indude assumptions made by the Manager or persons
Aching at their direction that ane wed in determinng the fair value of

Enves ments

Assets of liabalnes cate gonzed a5 Lvel | or 2 a5 of pericd end have been
trandermed between Levels 1 and 2 dnce the price pefiod due to changss in
the method uilized in valuing the imestments, Transfers from Level 1 to Level
2 are a result of 3 dhange, in the nomrmal course of business, fron the use of
an exchange raded price of & rade price on the inltal purchase date (Level

1) 't valisation methads wsed by Pricing Sendoes indudng valuation
adusiments applied to certan securities that are solely raded on a foreign
exchange b sooount for the matket movement berween the dose of te
foreign market and the dose of the NYSE (Level 2)

Assets o liabifides categonzed as Level 2 or 3 a5 of period end hawve been
transened between Levels 2 8nd 3 since the price préetiond chpe Do Changes in
the rrethod utiized in valung theimestments Transhers fom Level 2 69 Lavel
3 are a resudt of 3 thange, in the noma course of business, from the use of
waluation methods used by Pricing Senvices (Level 2) 10 the use of 2 broker
quote of valuation techmgue which ustizes significant unobsenvabie inputs
due 30 an absence of cumentor reliabie market-bated data (Lewl 3)

Transhers from Level 3 00 Lined 2 are 4 resadt of the dvailabikity of corrent and
refable market-based data proviged by Pricing Services or other valuation
techmigues which wiilize dgnfficant obsenable inputs

In accordance with the requrements of LS GAAP, the amounts of iranshers
between Levels 1 and 2 and transfers in and out of Level 3, if material, are
dinclaved in tie Hotes b Sohidule of Fraestments for each regpetive Rund

For tar valuatons wang wgnhcant unobsenvaile iInputs, LS. GAAP requires a
recondliasion of the beginning to ending balances for reported far values that
presents changes atiributable t realized gain Jossk unredized apprecation
{depreciaon), purchases and sales, aocued drscounts (prereunms), snd
traadiers e and out of the Level 3 categary during the period The end of
period value is used for the ransiers between Levels of 3 Fund's assets and
Habities. Addtionally, L5, GAAP requires quantitative information regarding
the sgreficant unobsenvable inputs used in the detenmination of far value of
assets of Babilities categonized as Level 3 in the fair value hisrardhy, in
accordance with the recuinements of U5 GAAP, a fair value hisrarchy, and il
matesial, 3 Lewel 3 reconcilation and details of dgnificant uncbeenvabie
nputs, have besn Endudad in the Mates 1o Schedule of investments for each
respective Fund

e} Valustion Techmiquez and the Fair Value Hierarchy

Lewel 1 and Level 2 trading a3sets and trading linbilities, ot fair value The
walyation methods (or "tedmigues ™) and significantinputs used in
determining the faer values of portfolio sequntes of other assels and kabilities
categorized as Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are a5 follows:

Fived incafre secufities induding coporate, convertible and munidpal bonds
arsd poties, LS. govemment sdendis, U S restury abligatons, soversion

issies, bank loans, convertbie preferred secunities and non-U % baonds are
nofmatly valued on the bass of quates cbrained from brokers and deabers or
Pricing Sendces that use broker-deaer qrotations, repored rades of
valuation estimates froem their intemal pricng models. The Pricing Sendoes’
intemal models use inputs that e observable sudh 2 issuer details, interest
rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds, redit riskafspreads, default ranes and
quoted prices for similar amsets, Securities that wse smilar valuation
techimgques snd nguts a5 desaribed above are cateqarired a5 Level 2 of e
fair value hierarchy

Fixed income securities purchased on 3 delayed-delivery basis or as a
repurchase commitment in 3 sale-buyback transaciion are marked to market
daily uniil setfement at the fnward setfement date and are categorized as
Rewel 2 of the 1air value hiesarchy

Mortgage fefated and asset-backed securities are usualy Bsued a5 separate
ranches, of dasses, of securilies within each deal. These seasities are alio
nosmally valued by Fricng Senices thatuse broker-dealer quotations,
repofted trades of valuation estimates from their intema pridng modefs. The
pricing models for these seqmities wsually consider trandchedevel atibistes,
current market data, estmated cash fiows and market-based vield spreads for
eath wandhe, and incorporate deal collateral performance, as awailable
Mortgage-relaled and asset-backed securibes that wse amila valu aion
rechnaques and inputs as desibed above are categorized a5 Level 2 of the
fair value hieranchy

Common shacks, ETFS, exchange-iraded notes and finandal derieative
instruments, such 2% fullres contracts, rights and wamans, or oplons on
fumures mat afe raded of 2 nationa securibes exchande, are stated af the
last reported sale or setlement price on the day of valuation. To the extent
these sequrities e actively raded and valuation adjustments are not applied
Ehiey ane cabegoriaed a5 Level 1 of the Tair value hierandhy

Irovestmen s viadued (dencirenated) in curmendies other than 1he functicnal
curmency of a Fund are comverted to the funciioral cumency using exchange
rates {currency spot and forward rates) obitained from Pricng Services. As a
result, dhe MAV of 3 Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value of
CuFTEnEs in relaticn 1o e fncional comency. The vilue of securities raded
inforeign markets or denorminated in currendes ather tan the functional
urrency mdy be alected significantly on a day that the Trust is not open for
business. Valuation adjustments may be applied to certain seqrities that are
salely traded on a foreign exchange to scoount for the matket movement
between the dose of the foreign market and the NY3E (dose. These searities
are valued using Fricing Sendces that consider the comelation of te radng
pattemns of the foreign security to the intradsy wadngin the US. markets for
investments. Sedurifies using these valuation adustments are @tegorized 5
Level 2 of the fair value hisrarchy, Prefermed sequrities and otfver equities
fraded on acthve marels of valued by reference to smillar nsruments e
also cxtegonzed 5 Level 2 of he far value heeranchy

Equityinked securities are valusd by referendng the lasl repoied <ale o
settlement price of the linked referenced equity on S day of valiation
Foreign exchange adustments are appliied to the last reported price o
orven e linked equity's trading cumency to e oontract’s setting qurrendy
Thies imeestrents are categarined a5 Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Investrenis in regrstened open-end investment comparses (other San ETF)
will be valued bated upon the MAVs of sudh imvestments and are categorized
a5 Leved 1 of the fair value herardhy. Ivestiments in unregrtered open-end
imvestment companies will be calaslated based upon the NAVS of sudh
Imvesaments and ane corrsidered Level 1 prosdded that the MAVs ane
abservable, calodated daily and are the value at which both purdhases and
sales wall be conducied
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Equity exchange-tradkd opfions and over the counter finandial dervative
Enstraments, such 3 fonward foreign auerency contracts and opions s,
derive thesr value from underiying asset prices, indioes, reference rates, and
other inputs of a combination of these factors. These contracts are nomally
walued on the basis of quotes obtained from a quotation reporting system,
estabfished rarket makers or Pricing Sendces (normally determined as of the
NYSE Close). Depending on the product and the tenms of the ransaction,
finamdal derivatine sauments cam be valied by Pidng Senices usng 4
series of techniques, induding Smulation pridng models. The pidng modets
use inpuls hat ane observed froem activily quoted marken wich a5 quated
prices, issuer details, indices, bidlask spreads, interest rates, imphed
wolatilities, yield curves, dividends and exchange rates. Anand sl derivative
Enstrsments that use umilar valuation tedwigues and inputs s desaibed
abowe are categonized a5 Level 2 of the far value reeranchy

Centrally deared swvaps and over the counier avaps derive thelr value from
underhing asset prices, indices, reference rates, and other inputs of a
commitsination of these factors. They arevalued ising 2 broker-dealer bid
quesation or o market-based prices provided by Pricing Sendces (noemally
detenmined as of the NYSE dose). Centrally deared swaps and over the
counber swaps can b valued by Picing Sendoes using a senes of technsgues,
including simudation pricng modek. The pridng modsls may use inputs that
are olbserved from aolively quated markers sudh 35 e overright index swap
rate (TO"), London Interbant: Offered Rate ("LIBOR™) forward rate, interest
ranes, yidd ourves and credin spreads. These seaunties 3ok categonnsd &
Lewed 2 of the fair value hisrarchy

Lewel Jtiading assets and trading Habilities, at bair value When 2 far
valuation method i appdied by the Manager that uses significant
unobsenable inputs, invesiments will be priced by 2 method that

thie Manager or pedsons s0ng a1 thess direcion beliem reflects faar value and
are categonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The valuation
techniques and significant inputs used in determining the fair values of
portiolio aisets and liakilites categonzed as Level 3 of the far vakie hierardy
are &5 follows;

Froony pending procedures set the base price of 3 fixed income Seaunly and
subsequenty adust the price proportionally to market value changes of a pre-
determined sequity deemed 1o be comparable in duration, generally a 1%
Treduny of sowiréign nobe bacsed on couniry of issuande. The base price may
be 2 broker-dealer quote, ransaction price, or an intermal valige a5 derived by
aruahyds of ket data. The base price of the security may be reset on &
peniodic basis bated on the availability of market data and procedures
appicroed by the Valuasion Commties: Significant changes in the
uncbservable inpuss of the proxy pridng process (the base price) would resuh
in direct and propontional changes in the fair value of the security. These
Securities ane cabéganized a5 Level 3 of the 145 value hisrardy

11 third-party svaluated vendar pricing is not svalable of not deemed o be
ndlcatve of tar value, the Manager may elect 10 obran Broker Ouotes
directly from the broker-deder or passed through from 3 third-party venidor
In the event that fair value is based upon & single sourced Broker Quote,
these secuities ane categonmed as Level 3 of the far value hierardy. Broker
Quabes ane typically recened from establshed market paridpants. Although
mdependently received, the Manager doss not have the ransparendy o view
the underlying inputs which suppart the market quotation, Significant
changes in the Broker Quote would have drect snd proportional danges in
the fair value of the sequrity

Chscounted cash fow valwation uses an intemal analysis based on

this Managér™s expedasion of future imoome and experes, capital struchire,
exit muloples of 3 security, and other uncbeervable inputs which may indude
contractual and facual loan factors, estimated futre payments and credt
rating. $ignificant changes in the wnobservable inputs of the models would
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resultin direct and progortional chianges in the fair value of the security
Thess serities ane categarized as Level 3 of the far value hierandy

Marker comparable valiuaton estimates fair valse by apphing & valuaton
multiple B0 a kiey performande metnic of e éompany, which may ndude
wnobservable inputs woh &5 samings before intensst, Lo, depfeaaton and
amoetizasion (TEETDAT), the Manager's assumptions regarding comparable
companies and non-pulblic statements from the undedying company
significant changes in the unchservable inputs woubd resultin direct and
proponicnal changes in the fair vale of the seasity These seourities ae
cateqorized as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Commerdal real estate [oans may be valued primarily based on either the
ingoms approgch, employing a descoun ted cash flow maodel, which is based
o the expiciations of prncipal and intenest payments, foes and coors, s well
a5 amang other faciors, hstorical foan and underhing collateral acthity,
expecied payment timing, the dedit qeality of Se bomower and operating
forecast of the underfying property. Thess securities are categonzed as Level 3
of the fair valige hieradhy

Shioet-bermn Qe inshruments (Sudh &5 commendi sl paper) hiving a eemaning
maturity of 60 days. or less may be valed at amortized cost, solong as the
airoatized oot value of sudh short-temm debd indrumients is approdmandy thi
same & the far value of the indrument 25 determined wathout the use of
amomized costvaluation These securities afe categonized a5 Level 2 of Leved
3 of the fair value hierarchy dependng on the source of the base peice

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

(a) Delayed-Delivery Trnsactions Cortan Funds may purchace o gel]
sequities on a delayed-delivery basis. These transaciions imolve 3
cormtrent by & Fund o punchate of sl secunties for 3 predetenmined prce
o yield, with payment and delivery taking place bevond the qustomary
seflement pencd. When defayed-delivery transacions are outstandng.

3 Fund will designate or recenve as collateral liquid assets in an zmount
sufficient fo meet the punch ase peice or respective obligations. When
purdhading a security on a delayed-defivery bags, a Fund assumes the rights
and esks of cwnership of thee security, induding the fige of price and yveld
Buctuations, and takes such fluctudtions into account when detemining its
WAy A Fund may dispose of or renegotiate a delayed-delivery ransaction
after it is entered inte, which may result in 2 realized gain of loss. When

4 Fund has sold @ seourity on & delayed-delivery basis, the Fund does not
partaipate in fulure gans and [osses with respect 1o the secunty

ib} Inflation-Indexed Bonds Certain Funds may irvest iminfationndesed
bonds. Inflaticn-indeed bonds are fioeed income sequniies whose prindpal
value is periodically adusted by the rate of inflation. The interest rate on
Hese bonds is generally fied at issuance at a rate lower than fypical bond
Creer thie e of an mflagion-mdexed bond, howewer, intsesl waill be paid
bazed on a prindpal vaue, which it adjusted for inflation, Anyincrease or
dedreate in the prindpal amount of an mBatien-ndexed bond will be Bduded
& interest income on the Statements of Operations, even though invesions do
nod reetee thelr prindpal unsl matueity. Repayment of the ofgnal bond
prindpal upon matsity (a5 adjusted for infation) i quaranteed in the case of
U5 TIPS For bonds that oo not proside 2 urmlar quarantes, the sdusted
princpal value of the bond repaid at maturity may be less than the oigind
peindpal

ic] Lean Participations, Assignments and Originatiens Certain Funds may
imvesin direct debil inslrurments which are mbsers in amounTs owed 1
lenders of lending syndicates by corporate, governmental, or other bommowers
A Fund's investmients in [oans may be in the form of partsdpations in loans o
assignments of 3lE or 3 portion of beans from third parties or invesiments in or
OAIgEN Al s of laans bey the Funid. A bockn 15 cften administened by a bank or
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ofer financial institution (the “lender”) that acts a5 agent for 2l holders. The
agent admunisters the terms of the loan, & spedfied in the foan agresment

A Fund may investin migltiple series of ranches of & Ioan, which may hawe
warying e and cary different assodated nsks. When a Fund porchases
assignments from |enders it acquires diredt rights against the borrowers of the
loans. These loans may indude partidpations in bridge Toans, whidh ane loans
takem out by borrowers for 3 shart period (ypically less tan one year)
pendng arangement of more perment finandng theough, for examgle, the
rsaance of bonds, frequently high yield bonds evcued for the purpose of
A0ES RGN

The fypes of toans and related investments in which the Funds may invest
include, amang others, senior loans, subordinated loans (indudng second
Ben boans, B-Hotes and mezzanine Ioans), whaole loans, commend sl real
estate and other commendal loans and sructured loans. A Fund may
ofgnate |oant of acquere direct Ienests in laand thicugh primary loan
distributons andfor in private ransachions. In the case of subordinated loars,
there may be significant indebedness ranking ahead of the bormower's
obdigation o the holder of such a loan, indwding in the event of the
bomrower's insolvendy. Mezzanine loans ane typécally secumed by a pledge of
A equity inberest in the MomMgages bomawer thal dws the neal estate rather
than an interest in a mortgage

Ireves.tmienits in inans may indude wnfunded foan commitments, whid ane
contraciual ebllgagors for fundng. Unfunded loan commitments may nchude
revoleng credit faclities, whech may obligate a Fund 1o supply addiional cash
Lo e Barrowner on dimand. Unfunded loan comimtnnents repoesent a futune
obligation in full, even though 3 percentage of the oommitted amount may
nok b utiized by the bomower. When investing in 2 loan partidpation,

a Fund has the right to reeive payments of prindpal, interest and any fees to
which it is entitled only from the lender selling the loan agreement and only
upon receipt of payments by the lender fom the borower, A Fund may
receive 3 commitment fee based on the undrawn portion of te underying
line of gedit portion of a loan. In certain dramstances, a Fund may receve a
penalty fee upon the prepayment of aloan by a Bomower. Fees eamed o
e Sre reoorded 24 2 aomnponent of inemedl RGO OF MTEres] Epents,
respectively, on the Stakements of Operations

A5 of October 31, 2018, FAIMCD Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) and FIREC0
Berrnuda Income Fund (M) hiad §276.247 and §27,778, respectively, in
unfunded kxan commitments putstandng

{d} Mertgage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Securities Certan funds
iy Emeeat in mormgage-related and ather asset-badoed secunities that directdy
or indirecty represent a paricpation in, or are secured by and payable fram,
bnans on real property. Mortgage-related sequrities are areated from pols of
residential or commerdal mortgage loars, induding mortgage loans made by
sapangs and boan insiiutions, mongage bankers, commerndal banks and
others. These sequntbies provide a monthly payment which consists of both
Enterect and principal Interect may be detenmined by froed or adustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underbing mortgages wall affect the price and
wolatility of a mortgagz-related sequrity, and may have the effect of
shofbining of extendng he effecsive durason of the L0y fel e 10whal
wars anthdpated at the ime of purchase. The timely payment of principal and
Enterest of certain mortgage-refated searitied i quarantesd with the full fasth
and credit of the U 5 Gowernment. Pools deated and quarantesd by non-
govemimental issuers, indudng govemment-spansoted corposations, may b=
supported by variows forms of inserance or guarantees, but there can be no
Asurance (al piivale Nwners of Quaranion can meel thar obligy dons under
the insurance pofides of guarantee arrangements. Mary of the risks of

Ewes ting in mortgage-related securibes secured by commerdal mongage
boans reflect the effects of Iocal and other economic conditions on real estate
marcers, the sbiliey of tenants (o make lease payments, and te abdity of 3

property o attract and retain tenants. These securities may be less liquid and
miay exhilbit grester price wobarlity than omer fypes of morgage-related of
offier asel-badeed seamities. Other asset-badoed seaqurites, are geated from
miany types of aster, indudng auto loans, aedit cand recenvables, home
equity loans, and student loans

(el Callateralized Mortgage Obligatiens ["CMO:™) are debs ofligations of
4 legal entiny that are collateralized by whole morgeos loars of private
motgage bonds and divided into dasses. CMOs are structured info mudtiple
dasses, often refered 10 35 “wanches™, with each dass bearing 4 different
stated maturity and entitled o A different schedule for payments of prindpal
and interest, induding prepayments. CMOs may be less liquid and may exhibit
greater price volatility than other types of mortgage-related or asset-baded
SEOUEs

ifi Stripped Merignge-Backed Secarities (“SMEST) are denvatve mult-
dass mortgade securnitied. SMBS are usually structured with two dasses that
receive diferent proportions of the interest and prinopal distibutions on a
poct of mortgage assets. An SMES will have one dass that will receie all of
ghe interasy (the interest-only or "00" dass), while the other dass will receive
the entire pindpal (che prindpal-aaly or “PO™ dass). Payments recenved for
0 are induded in interest income on the Statements of Operations. Because
nix prinapal will be recerved at the matunty of an B0, adustments ane made
& the cost of the security on 8 monthly basis untl maunty. These
adjustments aze induded in interest ncome on the Statements of Operations
Payrrents recenved for POs ane treated & reductions 1o the cost and par value
of the weagities

ig) Collateralized Debt Obligations (™C0C% ") induds Collateralized Bond
Cbligations ("CBOs™), Collateralized Loan Obligations (TCLOs™) and ofher
simel arty struciured secunities. CBOs and CLOs are Types of asset-backed
securities. A CBO s A ust which is backed by & dverufed pool of high risk,
blowe investrnent grade fieed inoome securities. A CLO i & st npicaly
collateralized by 3 pod of loans, which mayindude, among others, damestic
and fareign senior sequed foans, sersor unsecyred loans, and subordinate
oorporate [oans, induding loans that may be rated below invesrent grade o
edquivalent ureated loans. The figks of an investment in a COO depend langely
oy the by of thie collateral sequnities and the dass of the CDOin which

@ Fumd imvests. In addition fo e normal risks assodated with fied income
seamities disousded ekewhere in this report and the Funds’ Clerng
Memarandum (2 g, prepayment nisk, oredt risk, Bquadity sk, market risk
structural fise, legal risk snd irterest rate rok Sehich may be excebated if
the inferest rate payable on a structured Sinanong changes bated on
multiples of changes in interect rates of invertsely 10 changes in interad
ratesfy, CEOs, CLCs, and other Cls carry additionad risks induding, but not
limited to, () the posability that dsmbutons from colateral seountes will nol
b defeqqu dte 10 make intenest of other payrdnts, (i) the quality of the
collateral may dedine in valwe o Setault, (i) & Fund may irestin CBOs,
CL0s, or other CDCk that are subordinate toather dasses, and (v) the
complex stnucture of the security may mot be fully understocd at the me of
imvestment and may produce disputes with the Fssuer oF unexpected
investment resiis

ihi Payment In-Kind Securities Certain Funds may invest i payment in-kind
secuilies (TRIKS™). FIKS may give the issuer the oplion at each interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor addtiona
debt secunities. Those addtonal debt secusities yaualy have the same s,
incheding mangity dates and interest rates, and assodated risks as the
afiging bonds. The daly madcet quotations of the ongnal bonds may indude
the acoued interest (refémred 10 25 a “dirty price™) and require a peo rata
adustment from the unrealized appredation of depredation on invesiments
B inkerest regefvable on the Statements of Acsets and Liabilides
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(i} Restricted Secunties Certain Funds may hold investments that e
Subject i legal of conrachal restrictions on ressle These seqanties may be
sold privately, but may be required o be registersd or exempled from widh
regatration befane being sobd 10 the public Private placemént ssammties are
generally consdered to be restricted. [Rsposal of resmicted investments may
Brvodee time-dorduming negotiations and expences, and prompt sale atan
acceptable price may be dfficult to achieve. Resticted imeestments held by
the Fiends. st October 31, 2008 ane dsdoded in the Motes b Schadile of
Ivesiments

{jh Strwctured Motes The Funds may imvest in structured notes and oeher
related instruments, which are privately negetisted debt obligations in whidh
the principa andfor interest is determined by reference to the perfomance of
a benchmark el market of inferest rate (an "embedded index”), such
seleched securites, an ndex of secunties of spedfied interedt rates, of the
differeniial performance of two et of markers, sudh as indees refleding
bonds, Structured insmements may be issmed by corporation s, induding
banks, a5 welt 35 by governmental agendes. The tenms of such sectured
Enstnsments normally proside that thesr principal andfor intenest payments ane
o be Mjl:f-[-é-} upweands of dowwrnaeands (but ondenanly not below Tero) 0
reflect changes in the embedded index while the suctured insrufents ane
outstandng. As 2 result, the interest andfor prindpal payments that may be
miade on 3 sructured produa may vary widely, depending on a vaniety of
factors, induding the volatility of the embedded index and the effect of
changes in the erbedded index on prinagal sndior ntenest payrmeni

{k} U.5. Government Agencies or Government-Spensared

Ewterprives Certain Funcks may imest in securites of LS Gowermement
agendies of govemment-sponsored enterprises. U S Govemment seourities
are obligabons of and, m ertan cases, quarantesd by, the LS. Govermiment,
ity agendes of instrurmentalities. Some LIS Government secuities, widh
Treasury bills, nabes and bonds, snd seaurifies guaraniesd by the Govemment
Natignal Mortgage Assodation (GNMA™ or "Ginnie Mae ™), are suppored
By thee full faieh snd credkt of the 1S Governenent others, sudh a3 those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported By the right of the issuer to
bawrow fram the LS. Department of the Treasury (the "ILLS. Treasury™): and
others, such as those of the Federal MNational Mortgage Assodation (TFNMA™
of "Fannie Mae”™), are wpported by the dsaetonary authority of the 1S
Government 1o purchase the agency™s obligations. LS. Governmiant sscurities
ey Bndude Deo OOUMBON SEOURGBES. Zeno CoLpsin Se0mbes do nol disinbute
nierest on 3 ourrent bass and tend to be subject to 3 greater risk than
interest-paying securities

Government-related quarantors (i e, not Backed by the full faith and gedit of
the 15, Government) indude FHRA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (TFHUMC® or ~ Fredde Mac™). FNMA IS a government-sponsoled
corparation. FNMA purchates cofventional §.&, notinsured o guaranbéed by
any government agency) resadential morntgages from a istof approved
sellerfeervicers which indude state and federally chamered sovings and baan
assodations, mutusl savings banks, commercial banks and gedt wnions and
rrcrlgace bankers. Passthrowgh securities issped by FNMA 3 quaranteed as
b timely payment of pancipal and interest by FUMA, but are not badked by
the full faith and credit of the U5 Government FHLMC issues Partidpation
Certificates ” PCs™), which are pass-throwgh securities, eadh representing an
unidviced interest in a pool of resident s morgages. FHLMC quarantess the
timely panyment of interest and ultimate collecion of prndpal, but PCS ané not
backid by the full faith and oedit of the LS. Govemment

Foll-Siming strategies can be wsed where a Fund seeks to extend the
expiration or maturity of a position, such 25 a TBA seority on an underying
asset, by dosing out the pasition before expiration and opening a new
posison with respe 1o wabstanally the sarme pndefhing dssetwith a [ater
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expiration date TEA sequnties purchased of sobd are reflected on the
Statements of Assets and Uabilites a5 an asset or liability, regpectively

i} Whea-lssued Tranzactions Cerlan Funds may purdhsse of sell secunines
on 4 when-istued basis. These ardactions e made conditionally because a
seauity, althoegh suthoized, has notyet been isued in the market
Transactions 1o purchase of sell sequmities on 3 when 4saued basis invobve 3
cornmtment Ky 3 Fund o punchase or sell these seounties for 4
predeternined price of yield, with payment and delivery taking place beyond
Ehe cusicsmlny seithement pensod. A Fumd may sl when-risoed sequnibes
before they are delivered, which may resull n 3 realized gain or loss

im] Pedermance-Linked Notes Certzin Funds investin performancednked
notes that ae sssued by Credit Syisse Intemational (fhe "Fes Agent™) and
Sl 10 rack the pertoemanoe of thie PIMCO Bemmsda income Fund (M)

(" Perforrnance-Linked Nates ™) In the case of the JPY Performance-linked
Motes iswed, the performande of such nates will be hedged 10 the lapanese
ven by Credit Suisse intemational using a proprietany formula, As explainedin
greater detail in Noge 9, the Fee Agent will finance the payment of placement
fees to ertain Japanese distrbutors. In order for the Fee Agent to hedge
certan of itS expasunes under the Fee Adent Appoiniment Agresment (45
defined in Note 9), itis expected that from Sime to time certain Clagses of the
PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund Ewall invest in Perfoemance-Linked Notes i an
amount specified by the Fes Agent. At the ime of events induding, but not
limited to, sy redemption of units of the FIMCO Bermudsa Income: Fund E
and a stegedown of the applicable Percentage Contingent Defemred Sales
Chiarge ("CISCT), 5 defined in MNote 9, the Performance-Linked Kotes beld
Lry the Fund will be parSally redeemned accordingly in onder (o mantain the
fotal value of Performance-Linked Notes in the Fund's invesiment portfolio
equal to or befow the amount of the CDAC apglicable to the respedive
Classes of the Fund plus © 20% multiplied by the NAY of the respective
Classes of the Fund. Performance-linked Notes are valued dady. Their walue is
based on the prior day Nay of the PIMCO Bermuda incoeme Fund (M), With
respect to the value of the JFY Pedformance-Linked Notes, a proprietany
hedgeng formada is dlso appied, The Fund cannet ranster the Performance-
Linked Nobes to any afher party yade from the Fee Agent without the price
written agreement of the Fes Agent

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FIMANCING THANSACTIONS

The Bollowang disdosures contain snformaton on the Funds” alality tolend or
Do cheh oF Secufities bo the extent pemmited under the Offering
Memnorandum, which may be viewed a5 bormowing of fnandng ransacions
by thee Fynds. The becation of these instruments is desaibed below. For a
ditaled desaiption of credit Snd counterparty ks that can be assodated
with bomowings and other fin snong ransacions, plesse see Note 7,
Prindpal Risks

ia] Repurchaze Agreements Cortain Funds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Uinder the termes of 3 typical repurchase agreement, 2 Fund
purchases an underying debt obligation {oollaneral) subject 1o an obligation
of the selfer to repurdhase, and & Fund 1o resell, the cbligation at an ageed-
Lapeo ptice and Bme. I a0 open matumly repanchate sgresmint, thene is no
pre-getermined repurchase date and the agreement can be teminated by the
Fund or counterpany at amy Sme. The market value of the cofateral must be
equad to or exceed the tofal amount of the repyrchase obligations, induding
Inberest. Repurchase agreements, induding aconued intenest, e induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabdities, interest eamed i recorded &5 a
component of interest income on the $tatements of Operations. In perods of
increaed dermand for collaterdl, a Fund may pay a fee for receipt of collateral,
wihich may result in interest expense 1o the Fund
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(b} Reverse Reparchase Agreements Certain Funds may enter into reverse
repurdhase agreements, in 3 reverse repunchase agreement, 4 Fund delivers &
security in exdnange for cash 1o a finandal insBination, He counterparty, with
A sirmiltanous Sgrecment o repurdhase the wame of wutstantally the same
security at an agréed upon prce and date. In an open mahurity reverse
repurchase agreement, there is no pré-determined repurchase date and the
agreement can be terminated by the Fund o countenparty at any time

A Fund i entithed 8o recenve prindpal snd inlered paynents, -'falrj'. Fade on
the sequnity dedivered 10 the counterparnty duing the term of the agreement
Cadth received in exchange bor seauntiss defivered plus accrued interest
payments b be made by 3 Fund o counterparties are reflected as a liability
on the Statements of Assers and Liabdities. interest payments made by a Fund
Lo counterpartied ane recorded a5 & component of interest expense on the
Statements of Operatons. In periods of indneased demand for the security,

a Fund may receive a fee o uie of the secunty by the counterparty, which
iy resull in interest income 1o a Fund, A Fund will segregate assets
detenmined o be Bquid by PIMCO or will otherwise oover its obligations
Uner reverse: repurdhase agreements

{c} Sale-Buybacks Certain Funck may enter into finanang ransactons
referred 10 & "sale-buybadis. A sale-buybadk Snandng Iransadion conssts
of 3 sale of 3 security by @ Fund o a finandal institution, the counterparty,
with 3 amiltaneous agresment i repurdnase te Same of substantally te
e sequrity 3t an agresd-upon price and date. A Fund & not entitled 1o
receive prinapal and interedl payments, if ary, made on e seaunty told t
the counterparty during the term of the agreemnent. The agreed-upan
procesds for securnitied to be repurchased by 3 Fund are reflecied a5 a lishility
on the Staterments of Assets and Liabdifies. A Fund wall recognize net income
represented by the price differential between the price received for the
transdermed secunity and the agreed-upan repurchase prge. Thisis comimonty
referred (o as the "price drop”. A price drop aonsses of (1) the foregone interest
and inflationasy income adustments, if any, 3 Fund would have othensise
received Rad the sequrity not been sobd and () the negotiated financing tenms
between & Fund and countenparty. Foregone intenest and infatonany incorms
adusirnents, if any, are recorded & components. of interest income on the
Sratements of Operations. infterest payments based upon negotiated finanding
terms madk by 3 Fund (o counterparties ae recorded a5 a component of
interest expense on the $atements of Operations. In peniods of increased
dernand for the sequrity, 3 Fund may receive 3 fee for use of tie sequrity by
thie counterpaety, swhich mdy result in intenest Indorme (o & Fund A Fundwill
segregate assets determined to be Bquid by PIMCO or will pihersise Cover its
obligations under saletanyback trarsactions

{d} Short Sabes Certain Funds may enter ino shiort sales ransactons. Shoe
sales are ransactions in which the Fund salls 3 seounity that it may nof gwn

A Fund ray make short sales of securities to (i) offset potental dedines in
ong posiions in smilar secuwities, (i) o ingrease the fegbilityof the Fund,
(i) Bor inestrmen neturm, (v as part of a mk arbitrage shratedy, and {v) a8
part of its owerall portiolio management sirategies imohang the use of
deriviative instruments. Whin 3 Fand engades i a short sale, it iy Domow
the secumty sold short and deliver it bo the counteparty. The Fund will
ordinarily hane 1o pury & fes OF poemmiuem 10 Dommow 3 SeCunity and be obligated
Lo repiny the lender of the security any dividend or interest that acorues on the
security during the period of the foan. Securifies sold in short sale ransactions
and the dividend or interest payable on uch seourities, I any, are refected a5
payatie for short sales on the Statements of Assets and LabiBies. Short sales
expote the Fund to the sk that itwall be required bo oower its short pasition
at a time when the security or other asset has appredated in value, ths
resuiting in losses to the Fund. A shoet sale is "agamnst the box” if

the: Fund hodds in its portfolie o has the right to aoquire the security sold
Shiort, oF Secufities identical to g secunty sold shert, a1 no addtional oot

A Fund wall be subject to adidition al risks to the extent that it engages in short
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sales that are not "against the bow = A Fund's loss on & short sale oould
seareioally be unlinvted in cases whede the Fund is unatie, for whatever
re3son, 1o dose out its shor pasifion

{w) Line of Credit PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) entered into a 364-
day seniof unsecuned revalang credt agreement with the Bank of Takyo-
Witeubishi LUF), Ltd ("MUFG™) and cther commerdal banks i be plilized for
Remglany purposes 1o fund Unitholder redemptions o for ather short-tem
liquidity purposes. MUEG senves 35 both 2 bank and a5 an agent for other
banks that are partes 1o the sgresment PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund
(M) pays finandng changes baded on a combination of LIBOR-based varable
plus 3 credit spread The Fund iso pays 3 fee of 0 275% per anrum on the
nused commitment amounts. There is 3 madmum avalable comemitment
amacint for PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) equad to $99.000,000 The
agresment expres on August 23, 2019 unless extended of renewed. Prior (o
August 24, 2018, the madmum sdalable commalrment amount for thee Fund
wias 150,000,000, Commitment, upfront, amanger and agency fees of
$549,808 paid by FIMCO Benmoda Bantk Loan Fund (M) are induded in
inberesl expende in the Statesments of Operations.

During the penod, thend wene no bormowings on this ne of aedt

& FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The !':bll-:w.ng chsdosunes contain informason on how and wiry the Funds use
Enandal denvative instruments and hiw Sranddl dirvasoe indruments
affect the Funds’ financial positian, results of operations and cash fiows. The
lacation and Lar value amounts of hese insiroments on the Statements of
Assets and Lizbilites and the net realized gain floss) and net change in
unfealized apgredation (depredation) on the Statements of Operasions, eadh
categunized by type of finandal derivative contract and related risk exposure,
afe imcluded in & table in e MNotes v Schedube of Imvesments. The financal
denvalive instruments outstanding as of period end and the amoonts of net
reahized gain (toss) and net dhange in unreslized appredaton (depred ation}
on firandal derivative instruments during the period, &5 disdosed in the
Maites 1o Schedule of Fvestments, sene as indicatons of e valurme of
Enancal dedvative adinity for the Funds

{a) Ferecard Fareign Carrency Contracts Cerfain Funds may engage in
forwand foreign oumency contracts in connection with seifing planned
purdhases of sales of securifies, to hedge the currency exposure st ated
with some o ol of @ Fund's sequnties of 35 pam of an imesiment Sirdtegy A
forward foreign Qumency CONract is an agreement batween two parties 10 by
and sell a currency at 3 set price on 3 future date. The market value of 2
torward fareign qumency contract fluctuates with changes in foreign cusrency
exchange rates. Forward foreign qurency confracts are marked to market
daily, snd the change in valee is reconded by & Fund & an unredized gain o
loss, Bealized gains or losses are equal to the difference bebween fhevalue of
the contract at the tme it was opened and the value a1 the ome it was dosed
and are recorded upon delivery of receipt of the cumency. These conirads
may Imvolee markel risk in excess of the unrealized gain or loss reflected on
the Matements of Assets and Liabdities. In addition, 4 Fund could be exposed
R0 gk i Bhee Countefpart e ank unable 1o meel Be terms of te contracts or il
the valye of the aurrency changes unfavorably to the functional qumency To
mitigate wch fisk, cash of seqsrities may be exchanged a5 collateral pursuant
T the tenms of the undedying contradis

Certain Funds hinving a hedged dass may alvo enef into forwand foreign
ourtency contracts designed to offset the effect of hedying at the Fund bevel in
arder bo beave the hedged dasswith an exposure to currencies other than the
funcBonal cumency, There can be no guarantes that these dass spedfic
forwand foreign qumency contracts will be successhul

dranil Fapen | Dosebes I 30EE 2

264/388



Notes to Financial Statements

EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

b} Futures Contmcts Certain Funds may enter into futures contracts. &
funures Contrac is an agresment fo by o S8l 3 sequnty of ofer Fiset fir a
set price on 3 future date. A Fund Iy Lse fumgres contracts o manage s
exposure b0 the seunbes markoels of 1O MoVeMEnts in mienest rates and
cumencyvalues The primarynisks assodiated with the use of futures confracts
are the imperfect comelation between the dhange in market value of the
securifies held by a Fund and the prices of futures contracts and the possibility
of an illiquid market Fubses coniras e valued bassd upon hsr quoted
daly setlement prices. Upon entering into a hutures contrad, a Fend is
rieguined b0 depodit with its Tubunes Broker an Smount of cash, U5
Government and Agency Cidligations, or select sovereign debd, in acordance
with the inital me Qi requirernents of the beoker of &xdhange. Fulunes
contracts ane marked 1o market daily and based on wich movements in he
price of the conlracts, an appropdiate payabde of recervabde for the change in
walue may be podted or collected by the Fund (" Fulures Vanation Margin™)
Gains of bosses ane recognized but not considered realized until the contradts
expire o dase. Fuhenes contracts invobve, to vanding degrees, risk of loss in
exoess of the Fubures Vanagon Margn indudedwithin exchange raded or
centrally deared financal demvative instruments on the Statements of Assets
and Lizbilities

e} Options Contmacts Certan Funds may wriite o purchase options to
enhance retums of o hedge an -I-!-i‘.-ﬁﬂg position of fubure investrment Certan
Furds may wiite call and put options on sequniies and finandal derivative
Enstnsmients they own of inwhidh they may ireest. Witing put options eads
toinaease a Fund's exposure 1o the underdying instrument Writing call
opons tends 1o dedeade a Fund's expodure 10 the enderling instrument
When a Fundwrites a call orput, an amount egqual to the premium received is
recofded and subsequently marked Lo market 1o reflect the cuarent value of
the cption writtén. Thete amaunts ane induded an e Statements of Assets
and Lisbities. Premiums recéned from witing oplions whidh exgpine are
treated as realized gans. Fremivems received fromwriting options which are
exercised or dosed are added o the proceeds or offset against amounts ped
on the undérhying fulunes, wvap, SECity oF Curmendy Fansachon b delerirene
the reslized gan or loss. Certain opthons may be wiitten with premums o be
determined on a future date, The premiums for thete cpSors are bated upon
Emplied volatility parameters 3t specified terms. A Fund &5 a writer of an
option has no control cver whether the underdying instrument may be sold
{"cal”) or purchased ("put™) and as 3 result bears the marked sk of an
urifaworable dhange in the price of the instament underhang the watten
ophion. There is the rick 3 Fund may not be able 1o enter into a dosing
transaction because of an iliquid marker

Certain Funds may also purchase put and call options. Purchasing call options
temds to indrease 3 Fund's exposyne to the underhing instrument. Purdhasing
put opoons tends [0 dededse 3 Fund's expodune 10 Fie undéfang insmirment
A Fund pays a premiurmwhich is induded 2 an et on the Satements of
Atiks and Liabdities and subssquenty marked o market o reflect the
cument value of the oplion. Premiums paid for purdhasing options which
enpire e mested a5 realized losses Certaln options may be purdhased with
prefeuris b0 be determened on A future date The premiums for these oplicns
arie burted upon implisd volatlity parameners a8 spedified temms. The rid
assodated with purchating put and call options is limited to the premiem
paid. Fremaams paid for purchasing options which are exerdsed o dosed are
added to e arnounts paid or offset sgainst tie proceeds on the underdying
Envestment transaction o detemine the realized gain of loss when the
underhing ransacdtion is executed

Credit Delnukt Swaptions Certain Funds may write o purchase aredin
defauit swapions to hedge exposre to the credt sk of an imesiment
without making a cormitment to the underying instrument. A credit default
swwapdon is an opton b sell or buy aedit protection 10 8 spedfic reference by

entening into a pre-defined swap agreement by some spedfied date in the
future

Forvign Currency Optiems Certan Funds may wnte of punchase foreamn
curréncy options bo be uted as 4 shortor long hedge againslt posdble
variagons in foreign eochange rates of 10 ain epsowne to Tofeidn asTendies

Inflation-Capped Optioms Cortain Funds may wiite of purchase infation-
capped options 10 enhance retums or for hedging opportunities. The purpose
of perchasing inflation-capped options is 1o protect & Fund from inflation
efidion above 4 Certan fale on & gven nolional epature A floor can be
Lk R0 v howw Sichie pRODECHON 10 ivestments in mnflason-linked produces.

Interest Rate-Capped OpBons Certain Funck maywnte of perchase intenest
rate-Capped options to enhance returns o for hedging opportunities. The
purpse of purdhasing interest rate-capped options is 1o pratect 3 Fund from
Boating rate fsk above 4 06 LER Fale of & gheed rotional epoture A ool
can b used 10 gve downside pEOTECTON 10 Irdestments in interest rate linked
prodecte

Interest Rate Swaptions Cerlain Funch maywrite of puschase infteres rate
swaptions wiech are options to enter into a pre-gefined swap agreement or
1 shorten, extend, cancel o othenase rrn:-::f-,r af #5000 SAED agretmenl,
by scemee specified date in the future, The writer of the savaption becomes the
COLNRETPATY 10 The Swap ff the Bayer exenctet. The intenedt ratie Saplion
agresment will spedty whether the buyer of the awaption will b= a fived-rate
receiver of 3 fixed-Ta1e payer Lpon exerdss

Options on Exchange-Tmded Fulures Contmets Certan Funds may wiite o
purchase ophons an exchange-raded futures contracts { Futnes Opbon™) 1o
Peidge 30 Edstiteg posinon of fulling ineesimind, for Speosatve puaposes of o
manage exposure 1o market movernents. A Futures Option 15 an option
uontract inwhich the undedying instument is & single fulines conbract

Options on Secunties Certain Funds may wiite of purdhase options on
senuities o enhance retums of 1o hedge an edsting position o future
investment An oplion on 3 searity uses 3 spedfied securily as the underling
Instrument 1or the ophon oniract

Straddle Optisns Certain Funck may enter into diffening forms of sradde
opticns. A stradde is an investment strategy thatuses combinations of
options that alow a Fund to profit based on the futisre price movements of
the underlying secmity, regadies of the drechon of thase movements. A
wirifben seraccie invoboes drmltaneoushy wanting a call cpBon and 4 put opion
cn thee came security with the same chrike price and expiration date, The
writhen sraddle indreases in value when the underying seaurity price has ktile
volatdity bedore the experation dase. A purchased dradde irmohees
samultaneoudy purchasng & call opton and & put opton on the Lame ety
with the same strike pice and expiration date. The purchated stradde
ingreases in valse when the underving sedurity price has high wolatility,
regardess of diredion, before the expiration date

id] Swap Agresments Cer 30 Funds My Bt in Syap greements. Swap
Fgreements are Ditateraly negolated sgreements between a lund and 3
COUA Ber ity Lo ot an F OF SAAD Imcetirnent cash Boa, risets, boreign
currencies of marketdinked retums at spedfied, futee intervals. Swap
agresmenis My be privately negofiated in the over the counter market {“OTC
swaps”) or may be deared through a third party, known & a central

ooun Berpanty of dighvatives deanng organization (Toentrally deared swaps”™)
A Fund may enter into asset, gedt default, oross-currency, intenest rate, total
retum, vanance and cther forms. of swap sgresments to man age ifs eposure
o qedt, aamendy, interest rate, commedity, equity and inflation risk. In
cornecion with these agreements, securities of cash may be identified as
collateral of margin in accoedandce with the terme of the respecine swap
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agreements to provide assets of valus and recoirse in the event of default or
benkrupropinsolvency

Centrally deared svaps are marked o market dady based upon valuasons ¥
detenmined fram the underbying contract o in acoidance with the
requenernents of the central coun rpay o dermvatives deanng ofganizabon
Changes in rearket vahse, if any, are reflected 23 2 component of net change
i unealized appreaiation (Gepredation) on the Statements of Opetations
Draily changes in valuation of centrally deared swaps (™ Swap Variation
Margn), if any, are disdosed within cenrally deared finandal derivative
mnsmaments on the Satements of Assets and Lisbilities. OTC swap payments
recedved of paid at the beginning of the measurement period are indudied on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilifes and represent premivms paid or
received upon enteing into the swap agresment 10 compensate for
differenices between the stated terms of the swap agresment and prevaling
kel conditeans (redit spreads, cumency eothange rates, intered rates, and
other relevant factors). Lipfront premiums recesred (paid are initially recorded
as liabilities (Fssets) and wbsequenty marked o market 1o reflect the ourment
walue of the swap These upfront premiums e recanded as realized gains of
bosses on the Statements of Operations upon termnation of maturity of the
awdp A Bquidation payment receneed of made at the terminaton of the twap
s Pecorded as redlized gain or loss on the Statements of Operations, Net
periodc payments received of paid by & Fund are induded a5 part of realized
gains of losses on the Statements of Opsrations

For purposes of 3pphang certain of a Fund's investment polides and
TedfcTions, swap agreements, like ather dericalme mstruments, may be
walued by a Fund a1 marker value, notional vaue or full exposure value In the
case of & credit default swap, in apphing cenain of the Fund's investment
policies and restrictions, the Fund will value the qedt default swap atits
notional value of its full sposune value (2., the sum of te notonal amount
for the contract plus the market value), but mayvalee the credit default swap
at market valie for purposes of apphing certain of the Fund's other

fmves tment policies and restrictions: For example, the Fund may value qed
defauslt swaps at full exposure value for punposes of the Fund's aedt quality
dguidelines (if amy) because wsch value in general betber reflects he Funds
Achudl sConoemic expasune dunng the Lerm of the arecht defaui P
agreement. As a reult, 3 Fund may, at fimes, have notiona exposure i an
asset dass {before netting) that is greater or lesser than the stated limit or
restriction nated in the Fund's Offering Memorgndum. I this context, both
the noticnal amount and the markel value may be positve of negative
depending on whether the Reand is selling o Buying protection Hireugh the
credit defaudt svap The manner in which certain securifies or other
nstnaments are vaiued by the Fund for purposes of spplng investment
polices and restricions may differ from the manner inwhich those

s trvents are valued by other types of investons. Entering ino svap
agreements invalves, to vangng degrees, elements of interest, aedit, markat
and decmentation ndk in ecess of e amounts recognied on he
Statements of Assets and Liabilities. Such nsks imvolve the possiblity that
thene will be o Gigud market fof these dgreements, that thi COUMEfPaTy’ I
the agresmeénts may default on its dbligaton 1o perform of disagres a5 to e
meaning of conraciual berms in Me agreements and that thene msy b
urifawarable changes in interest rates or the values of the asset upon which
the svap is based

A Fund’s madamum nisk of foss from counterparty credst nisk is the dsoounted
et waue of the cash flowes 10 be recened from the counterpany onr te
oaniract’s remaining life, to the extent that amount is positive. The risk may
be metigated by haang 4 master netling amangement between a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of coflateral to @ Fund to cover 2 Fund's
exposure o the counteparty
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Tior the extent 2 Fund has a policy to limit Se net amount owed Eo or to be
received Fom 8 Sndge Counterpany under ensing Hwap agreements, wid
lirnitation orfy appiies to Countenpartes o OTC swaps and does nat apphy b
centrally deaned fevaps whene the CouRteparty 1s a ceniral counterpaty of
denivatives deaing organiz@tion

Credit Defailt Swap Agreements Certain Funds may enterinto

aredit default swaps on corporate, boan, sovereion, L%, munidpal or LS
Tregsury issues 1o provide @ measure of proteciion against defaults of the
1asuees (L., 00 Peduce Mok wihene 3 Find cwnsg of Bs expoiune 0o the
referenced abligation) or 10 take an active longor short podition with redpect
to the likelhood of a parfiodar issuer’s default. Credit default swap
aeements involve one party making a stream of payments (referred to as
she buryer of protection) 1o another party (e seller of protecton) in exchang:
for the right 1o redesee 4 spedlied retum in the @ent that the referenced
entity, obligaton of mndex, 25 peafied in the 9930 BIement, Undegoe 3
certan credit event. As 3 seller of protection on credit default swap
aiyeements, & Fundwill general by receive from the buyer of protection a ficed
rate of incoeme throughout the tem of the svap peondded that there is no
aredin event. As the seller, a Fund would effecively aod beverage 1o
portfolio because, in addtion 10 its 1otal nel assets, the Fund would be
subject toinvestment exposure on the noGonal amount of the svap

i a Fund is 3 seller of protection and 3 qedt event ooogrs, & defined under
the temns of that pariioular swap agreement, a Fund will either () pay to the
buyer of pratection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and
Raloe deliwery of the referenced obhgation, other deiverabile ciiligations of
underlying seqanties comprising the referenced index of (1) pay a net
settiement amount in the form of cash or securities equal 1o the noticnal
amgunt of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced abligation o
underhying sequrities compesing the referenced index if a Fund is 3 buyer of
prafection and a credit event aoours, a3 defined under the terms of that
particular swap agreement, a Fund wil either () recesve from the seller of
protection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and deliver
e referenced obligation, ather deliverable obligations. or underhving
Serulies compritng the referenced index or (i) receve o net setllement
arnourt in the fomn of cash or securities equal to the notonal amount of the
swap less the necovery value of the referenced olligation or underdying
sequrities comprising the referenced index Recovery values are estimated by
market makers consadering either ndustry standand recowery rales of enbity
spedfic faciors and considerations unil & oredit event ooours. i a aedi event
has ocourred, the recoveny walue is determined by a fadlitated auction
whereby 3 mirimum number of Slowable broker bids, together with 2
speaified valuation methed, are wed o caladate the setlement value, The
ahiliny 1o defiver other cbligations may resudt in 3 cheapest-to-delver option
(i byt of probéction’s nghit bo choose the delnaerable obligaon with the
lopiest vabue following & credit event)

Cradit default amap agreements on asset-backed sequrities imvobve cne party
makirg a stream of payments 1o another partyin exchange for the fight to
receive 3 spedified retum in the event that the referenced entity, obligation or
index, a5 specified in the agreement, pndergoss 3 centain aedit event Unlike
credit default swapes on corporate, loan, sowereign, LS. mursdpal of U S
Treasury issues, deliverable obligations in most instances would b Bmited to
the spedic referended obligation, or in some cases, edfic ranches of the
spedified reference obligation, as performance for sset-badked seunities can
wary A0S deals. Frepaarents, pandpd papdowns, and other wiitedown of
logs events on the underhing mortgage loans will reduce the outstanding
prindpal balance of the referenced abligaton. These rediscions may be
femparany of permanent as defined under the terms of the swap agreement
and the notional amount for the swap sgreement will be adusied by
COMEspOndng amounts. A Fund may use edit defaull svaps on asset-
backed securitses to provide 3 meatune of profedion sgaindt defaults of the
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referenced cbligation o 1o take an acive long or short position with respect
t thie likelibood of 4 partosar referenced obkgation™s default

Cred 1 defsult swap agresments on qedt indoes imvolve one party making a
stream of payrments 1o anather party in &achange fior the right o feceis 3
spedfied renurn in e event of 4 wiite-down, principal shortfall, inberest
shortfall or default of 21 or part of the referenced entifies comprising the
aredtindes. A oredit index s & baskel of gredt instuments of exposures
designed to be representative of some part of the gedt market & 3 whole
These indices ane made up of reference credits thar are judged by a poll of
deders 10 be the most Bgud enfities in the dedit default saap market based
on the sector of the index Components of the indices may indude, but are
not Emited to, investment grade secuities, high yield seqanties, asset-backed
Sl ties, éme:gin;maﬁ'e:s. andfor vanous edt ratings withine each sector
Credit indices are Fadad wsing credt defaull swaps with standardized termm
Encluding & fixed gpread and standand mazuring dates. An index credt default
swap references all the names in the index, and if there i 3 default, the aedit
event is seftied based on that name’s weight in the Endex. The composition of
the indices changes periodcally, wsnally every sid months, and for mit
mdices, eadh name has an equal '-'\'Eil;fl[ inthe imdex. A Fund may use oedit
defaidln swaps on areditl indices bo hedge a portialio of dedit default swapes o
baonds, which is kss expensie than it woutd be to buy many aredit default
swaps to achieve 3 simbar effect. Credit defaull savaps on indces are
Enstraments for protecting investors owning bonds against default, and
Lraders use thiem bo spesalate on chandges i credit quality

Irpieed crechin spreads, represented in dbsodute temnd, ulilized i detemmiring
the marked valse of qedt defaull swap agreements an conporate, foan,
sovereign, U5 monicpdl o U 5. Treasury issues as of period end, if amy, are
disdlosed in the Notes to Schedule of Investments. They serve 35 an indicator
of the current stats of paymentperfoimance rek and represent fe
Rtelibood or risk of default for the reference ensity. The implied credit spread
of a partiilar refesenced enfity refiects the cost of buying/seliing protection
and may indude upfront payments required 1o be made to enter into the
agreement. Wider aedin spreads represent a detericration of the referenced
entity"s credt soundness and & greanes dikelibood o risk of defauil or ather
ekl event ooouming a8 defined under the terms of the Jreement. For aredt
diefault swap agreements on aisel-hadoed secunlies and aed? indces, the
queked market prices and resulting vadues serve a5 the indicator of the umrent
status of the paymentperformence risk Ineasng market valees, in absolume
berrns when compared to the notional amaunt of the swap, represent 3
deterioration of the referenced entity™s dredt soundness and 4 greater
Bikelihood or risk of default or other cedit event ocouing a5 defined under
the termre of the FOreement

The mamum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) thar

a Fund &5 & seller of protection could be required 1o make under & cedt
defailt svap ageeemint equals the notional smount of the Areemenl
Motoenal amounts of each indvidual gedt default swap agresment
outstandng a5 of period end for which 3 Fund is the seller of protection are
disclosed in the Notes 1o Sdhedule of invesiments. These potential amounts
wiould be partially offset by any recoveny walues of the nespeciive referenced
obligaticns, updnont payments receved upon entering into the agreerment, o
net amounts received from the setlement of buy protecton cedit default
swap agreernents entered into by a Fund for the same referenced entity or
ENTRes

Interest Rate Swap Agreements Ceriain Funds are subject tointersst rate
risk exposure in the nomial course of pursing ther mvesiment obgectives
The value of the fixed rate bonds that & Fund holds may dedrease if inferest
rabes rise To help hedge agamst this risk and 1o mantain its alility to
generate incoms at prevaling manket rates, a Fund may enter into interest
Fale SWwap agreements. INDEnest rate Swap oreements involve the exchange
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by a Fund with another party for their respective commitment to pay o
receive inerest on the notional amount of pindpal. Certain forms of interest
fale Swap agresments may indude: (1) interest rate caps, under whadh, in
PebUrn for 4 prefranm, one party agrees (o make payments bo the other b the
extent that interest rates exceed a spedfied rate, of “cap”, (i) interest rate
floors, under whidh, in return for 3 premium, one party agrees 1o make
payments o the other b the extent that interest rates f2 below a specfied
fate, o “floee®, i) interest rate collars, under which & party sells a cap and
purdhases a floor of vice versa in an allempd 1o protect itself against interest
At movemments exdssding gren minimum of maximum bevels, (W) calable
inberest rate sweaps, underwhich the buyer pays an wpfront feein
corsideration for the right to early terminate the swap ransaction in whole,
at neno 006t and at a predetenmined date and time prior b0 the maturity date,
1) spreadiocks, wiedh Hllow the intenesl rabe Swvap uiers o lod n the
forward differential (or spread) between the infersst rate Swap rate and a
spedified benchmark, or (W) basis swaps, under whidh two parties can
ewchange vanable interest rates based on different segments of monsy
markets.

Toin] Retwrn Swap Agreements Cerlain Buncs may enter into 1053 renm
Lwap Agreements 10 gan of iitigate expousie o the underhing relerence
Total retum swap agreements invitve commitments where singe or multipbe
cash flows are exchanged buted on the price of an underying reference mset
4nd on 3 fized o variabie interest rate, Total return swap agreements may
Mot COMITRITNENES [0 Dy iNteredl in &achange for a macketdinked returm
Cne countemparty pays out the tofal retumn of 4 spedfic underying reference
assel, which may indlude asinge security, 3 baskel of securities, or an index,
and in return receives 3 fixed or variable rate. Af the maturity date, a net cash
Blow is exdhanged where e Wl retem 15 equivalent 1o the reten of the
undeshang rederence as5el hess A Bnandng rate, if any. As 3 redener, 3

Furid wiould recerve payments based on amy positne tosal retum and would
owe paymentsin the event of 3 negative total retum  As the payer, a

Fund would owe payments on amy positive total retem, and would recedve
pryrreenits in Ghe event of & met negative tozal return

7. FRINCIPAL RISKS

In the narmal cour e of busingss, the Funds (or Acquired Funds) trade
finandal instruments and enter into finandal transactions where sk of
potential lods musts due to wich hings a5 dhanges in e market dmarkel k)
ar fadure or inability of the ather party to a Wansaction to perform {oredit and
Couinterparty rek). See below for 3 detaled description of select principal
nisks

Fund of Fands To the extent that certain Funds invest substantialy all of their
respiEclivie aseels in Acquired Funds, te rides sssadated with investing in
thete Funds wall be dosely related 1o the risks asso0sted with the secunies
and other investments held by the Acquined Funds. The atslity of the Fends to
achiewve their respective investment objectives may depend upon the atality of
the Aoguired Funds (o achieve ther respecive investment okjectives. There
can b mo aaprance that the ifoesrnent oyecte of any Acquired Fund wil
b gchigied. The N&V of an Acguiring Fund will fuciuate in response
dhanges in the respecive NAV af the Acquired Fund in which #imests

In the noemnal cour e of busingss, Adquired Funds frade finandal instuments
and enter into finandal ransactions where risk of potential loss exdsts due to
e i Ehe irafket (market isk), of fabure of inallitg of the asher party i
& fransackion o perform (medi and counterparty risk)

Perdormance-Linked Netez Rizk To the extent each of the B 1605 (1FY),
B-1 1605 (USDY, B 1604 (IPY), B-) 1609 (LGD), B-J 1612 (JFY) and B-J 1612
(U0 Classes of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E imvest in Performandce-
Linked Notes, theywill forege ofher investment coparminifes, whidh coud
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negatively impact the perfeemande of sudh Class. In addition, such
Performance-Linked Notes ane unsecuted obligations of Credit Surse
Internatonal and so the Classes are exposed to the greditnisk of Credd Suisse
Intefnational. Furthermmone, the Performance-Linked Mates will be sdvertely
affected in the event of 3 default, reduced credit rating or deteriorationin the
solvency of Credit Suisse ntemadional

Market Riaks & Fund's rvestments in financial dervative instruments and
oiher financial instruments expose the Fund o various fsks gsch 25, bt not
Kirated o, interest rate, foresgn (pon-L1S ) cumency, equity and commading
risks

Interast rate risk is the rigk that fised income sequnities and other instruments.
hefd by 3 Fund may dedine in value because of an increase in interest rates
A% porrinl intenest ranes e, e valwe of certain fomd income weountes hild
by a Fund i Bkely o derease. A nominal interest rate can be desoibed a5
thie sarm of & real interest rate and an expected milation rate. inberest rate
changes can be sudden and unpredictable, and a Fund may lose money if
these changes are not antiopated by Fund management A Fund may mot be
able to hedge aganst changes in interest rates of may dhcose not to do so for
costar other reatons In addition, amy hedges may not work &5 intended

[uration 55 & meatane whed B deternine Be Senutvly of 3 Searity's prce o
changes in nterest rates that incorporates & security™ yield. coupon, final
mamnity and cal features, among ather charadienisbos. Convexity s an
additional measure used 1o understand 2 security’s or Fund's inferest rate
El:f'ISj'-MI'f' that measures the rane of dhange of durabon inresponse o
changes ininferedt rates Fixed income secunties with longer durations tend
Lo b mcne sensive to changes in nterest rates, usually making them more
wilatile than securiBes with shorer durations. Awide vaiety of factors can
causeinferest rates torise (2.0, central bank monetary poldes, inflation
ranks, general sconomic oondiions, e0c ). Under cument sconomic conditions,
EnlErel Fates ane near hastoncally bowr levels. The Funds aarenty face 3
heightened lewel of interest rate rek, especialy since the Federd Resene
Board has ended its quantitative easing program and has begun, and may
CONTRE, [0 raise inenest rates. To the extent that the Federal Resens
Continges i raise inerest rates, tere is a risk tiat rates agross he fingndal
syt may dse. Furthier, wihile bond markets hinve soeadily giowm over the
past three decades, dealer “market making™ abdlity has not kept pace and in
some caiad has decressed . Given the impartance of intermediany "market
making™ in reating a robust and adive market, fimed income sequrites ane
currently facing increated valatility snd ligmdy ndks Al of these factar,
collectvely andior indhaduaally, aould cause a Fund ba lose value. If the Fund
boatenowgh value, the Fund coubd face ingeated Unithcider redemmpbons,
whiich could force the Fund fo fiquidate imestments at disadvantagecus times
of prices, theseby adver sely affecting the Fund Also, the Fund may be
adwirisly affected when a Large Unitholder pundhases o redeans [ange
Arnaun s of urats, which Can ooour At any teme snd mdy enpact the Fund in
the tame manner a5 a high volume of redempdion requests. Large Unitholder
transections may impad the Funds lquidity and net asset value, Sudh
transactions may dso indrease te Fund's ransaction oosks of otherwise
cause the Fund to perform diferenty than intended. Mogeover, the Fundis
subject to the sk that other Unitholders may make investrment dedsions
based on the choices of a large Unitholder

Foreign fuon-L % ) sequrifies in this report are dassified by the country of
mcorporation of aholdng InCemain instances, a security™s country of
Encorporation may be different from its country of economic exposure

I & Fund invests directly in foreign (non-UES ) Qurendes of in sequritiss that
trade in, and recende mewenines in, foreign (pon-U S ) curmendies, of in findndal
derivative instuments that provide exposure bo foreign (ron-U 5 ) arrendes,
itwill be subject to the risk that those oumences will dedine in vaue relative
to the base aumency of the Fund, or, in the case of hedging positices, tat

the Fund's base qumency will dedine invalue relative to the cemency being
hedged. Curmency rates in forslgn countries may flucuate sonificanty over
short periods of time for & number of reasons, induding changes in interest
rates, intervenhon (o the tafure 1o intervené) by LS o forengn govermiments,
central banks o supranational entities such a5 the International Monetary
Furid, or ey the impodition of currency contrals o other palitical deewelopments
in the: Uited States o abroad As 3 result, & Fund's investments in foreign
e Cy-dendnminated RaTH S frudny Peduce The: Fund's rédurmd

The market values of equites, such as common stodks and prefemed secunites
o ety related investments swch & futures and oplions, have histoncally
nisen and fallen in period c odes and may dedine due o general market
conditions which are not spedifically related 1o a parSicular compary, sudh a5
real or peroeived adverse econdmic condtions, changes in the general
autook for corporate eamings, change s n inberest of currency rates or
Schverrce imvinor sentiment generally. Thiy may 40 dedene die to fadors
whidh aftect a particular industny or industries, such as labor shortages or
inreased production costs and competitive onditions within an industry
Diffegent sypes of equity securites may react diferenty 1o these
developments. Equity seunities and equity related investments generaly have
greatér mdrkel pride valatility than fixed noome seaurites

Creditand Connterparty Rizks A Fund will be expoted to cedit ik to
parties with whom it trades and will ako bear the risk of settlement default
A Fund minimizes concen traiors of aedt sk by undertaking ransactions
with alarge numbser of custormess and counlerparties on recognized and
fispuiRable exdhardges, where spplcable OTC demative Fansaciony ane
subject 1o the risk hat 2 counterparty to the ransacbon will not fuffill its
contraciual obligations to the other party, 3s many of the protecions affceded
&0 centraly deared derivative ransactions might not be available for OTC
disfivaive IFasacions. Far dimvatives Traded on an exdhandge o trouh 4
central counterparty, credit nsk resides with the creditworthiness of

the Fund’s deaning broker, or the dearinghoyse itself, rather than o a
counferparty in an OTC derivative transaction. Changes in regulation ralating
&0 3 Fund's use of denvatives and refated instruments could potensially limit
of Fnpact tai Fund's abeliny b ireesl in desivativees, ket the Fund's ability o
EnpRoy CEMAN Srategees that use derivatives andior d-’.?-‘l':rirt','@ﬁtﬂ T walue
or perfommance of denvatives and the Fund A Fund could lode money if the
issuer or guarantor of 3 fixed income seaurity, or the counterparty o 3
inancal defvalive instuments contract, rpurchase Jgyeerment of  lodn of
portfolio seuniies, (s unsble or unwilbng e make Gmefy prinopal andfor
inbenesl payments, o 1o othenwise honor ils oblgations. Secudities and
finandal derivative insiruments are subject 10 vaning degrees of aredit rick,
whidh may be reflected in credit ratings

Sl ar 1o redht fisk, @ Fund may be expoded 10 aountemarty nsk, of e rk
Hhat an nstitulion of atheér entity with which a Fund has unsetted of open
wransacions wll default PIMCO, 5 the Manager, miniredes Counteparty
ek o the Funds through 2 number of ways. Prior to entering inta
wansactions with a new counterparty, the PIMCO Counterparty Risk
Comemitiee conducts an extensive aredt review of sudh counterparty and must
appecive the use of sudh counterparty. Furifiermore, pursiant to te tems of
the underhing contract, to the extent that unpasd amounts osed 1 a Fund
exceed a predetermined threshold, sudh counterparty shall advance collateral
%0 a Fund in the form of cash of securiBies equal in value 10 the unpaid
amoaint owed to 3 Fund, A Fund miy imvest such aoflateral in sequrities of
atfier nstnuments andwill ypically pay intinest 1o the @unterpaty on the
collateral received. B thee unpaid amount owed o a Fund subsequenty
dedreates, 3 Fund would be required ba refurn 1o the counterparty all of a
portion of the collateral previously advanced. PRVCO™ atfernpts to minimize
COUMErpaty risk may, however, be unsucoesshisl
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All frarsactions in listed seauities are setedipaid for upen delivery using
approved counterparies. The nsk of defaust is considersd minimal, a5 delivery
of sequrities sold s only made once & Fund has received payment Fament i
made on a purchase ance the seambes have been delvened by the
counterparty. The trade wil tail if either party fails to meetits abligation

8 MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject o vanous pEting arrangements (T hMaster
Agresments ™) with sslect counterparties. Masker Agresments govern the
terrns of certain Eransactions, and are intended to reduce the counterparty sk
assodated with rebevant ransactions by spedfgng aedit protection
mechanismd and providing wandard zation that is ntended 1o improve legal
certainty Each type of Master Agreement govems certain bypes of
transactions. Different types of ransactions may be Waded out of different
kel erifies or affliates of 2 parficular cogani zaticn, resulting in the need for
rrdlple &Q‘EEmEﬁ‘.‘.-'ﬂ'i'a'i A snghe Counerparty. A the Master Agreements
are specific 1o urigue operatons. of different asset gypes, they allow 3 Fund 1o
dlose out and et LS 1ok expatione 10 & counberparty n the event of a default
with respact 1o all the ransactions governed under a single Master
Agreement with a counserparty. For financal repor ng purposes the
Statements of Assets and Liabilities generally present demvative assets and
Rabeties on a gross bags, which reflects the full rsks and expodures pior 10
netting

Master Agreements can #luo help lirmil counterparty sk by spedying
oollateral pesting amangements 3t pre-aranged exposure levels. Under mast
Master Agresments, collateral is routinely transhermed if the total net exposune
by certain transactions (net of exsting collateral dready in place) governed
uridér the relevant Master Agreement with 4 Counterparty in a given adoount
exceeds 3 spedfied threshobd, which typically ramges fom zerg to §250,000
depending on the counterparty and the type of Master Agreement. United
States Treasury Bills and U S dollar cash are generaily the preferred foms of
collageral, alm-.'ugﬂ ather fonms of AR rated [ s’ OF S0vERER0N SEQURDES
rreay e wsed depending on the termns outlined in the applicable Master
Agréerment. SequnBes and cash pledged a5 collateral ae reflecied &

assets on the Statements of Assets and Liabdides as either 3 component of
Investments at vaue (securiBes) of Deposits with counterparty. Cash collateral
regeded is ot typecaly held in a segregated aooount and a5 such is reflected
a4 3 Rabality on the Statements of Assers and Labilities a5 Depogts fram
counterparty. The market value of ary securifes recerved as ollateral is nol
reflected as a companent of NAY The Fund's gveral exposure fo
counterparty risk can change substantialby withén a short period, as it is
affected by eadh transacuon subgect to ihe relevant Master Agreement

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Masier Repunch jse Agresments
(indvidually and coflectively “Master Repo Agresments™) govem repunchase,
reverse repurchase, and sale-buybadk framsactions between the Funds and
selec] counterparties. Master Repo Agresments main tain prosisions for,
amang other things, initiafion, ingome payments, events of default, and
ramtenance of coflateral. The marked valee of ransecions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collaterd pledged or received, and the nef exposune by
counterparty a5 of period end are dsdosed in e Nobes 1o Schedule of
Investments

Master Secunties Forwand Transaction Agreements. (" Master Forward
Agreerenis”) Qovem cerain fonmard et M) Wansactoes, sich & TBA
securfities, delayed-delrsery o salebuyback tramactans by and

between the Funds and select copnterparties. The Master Formard
Agreements maintain provisions for, among other things, initiation and
confrmation, payment and transfer, events of default, temination, and
rhantenance of collateral The rarke? vale of forwand wentling ansactions,

codlateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by counte
penad end are dodosed in the Notes 1o Schedue of mestments

Customer Acount Agreemments &nd related addends gowvem deaned
derivaltives ransactions such as futures, options on futures, and deared OTC
devatmaes. Sudh Fansacons ragure pasting of inital margn as determined
by each relevant deaning agency which is segregatedin an account at 3
futyres commission merchant (" FOMT) regrstered with (e Commaoding
Futires Trading Commission (CCFTC™), I the Uinited States, counterparty risk
miny b reduced a5 oredinoes of an FOM cannot have 3 daim 10 Fund assetsin
the seqregated acomnt, Porlability of exposure in the event of an FCM
default scemario further reduces sk ko the Funds. Vanlation margin, o
changes inmarkel value, are exchanged dady, but may not be netted

b bwsesien fustures. nd deared OFC dernatives undess the parties hawe agresd
o & separate arrangement in respect of fund mangining The maret value or
acuimulxbed unrealized apgredation (depredatson), enitial margn posted, and
any unsetied vanation mangen 25 of period end are disdosed m the Modes to
schedule of Ivestments

Intermational Swaps and Derivatives Assodation, Inc Master Agreements and
Crichl Support Annvioes (71504 Miter Agreérmients ™) goneérn b aberal OTC
denivative fransactions entered into by the Fundswith sefect counterparties
DA Master Agreements mantain proviaons for general oblvgations,
representations, agreements, collateral posting and events of default or
rermination. Events of berminaton indude condtions that may entite
coungerparties o elect b terminate early and cause settlement of all

ol sRandng rardacions under the applcable 508 Master Agreement Any
election to lerminate early ¢ould be material to the finandal statements. in
limited drasmstances, the E0A Master Agreement may contain add ional
pronsions that add counterparty protection beyond coverage of existing daily
expasure if the COURTErparty hat 4 dedine inaredin quality below & predefined
livwiel Theete amcunits, if amy, may be wgegatedwith & third-party ausstodian
The market walue of OTC finandal derivative instuments, collateral received
or pledged, and net exposure by counterparty as of period end are disdiosed
In the Mobes to Sthedule of Imesments
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES
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The management, advisory and administrasive fees, if appiicable, are paid monthly in amears to PIMCO for providng or arranging for the provision of advisory,
administrative and third-party sendces induding Judit, custodial, rustee, portfalio accounsing, routine begdl, ransfer agent and prinsng senvices. The agency and
distribution fees, if applicable, are paid monthly in Smears 1o remburse fnandal intermediacies that prosdde sendoes and distribution rdatng o the units of the
applicable Fund (of Class theneof, a5 applicable). in exchandge tor such fees, PIMCO will bear Bhe cost of van ows serice provsders nequined by’ the Trust and applicable
Fund PIMCO, and not Unitholders, would benefit from any price decreade in the ool of such third-party services, induding dedreases rewling from a0 indedse in net
assets. in addition, with respect to Funds that are subjedt to an adminkstrative fee, MO0 generally makes a profit on such a fee

A5 noted in the table above, certain Funds and Classes of Funds ate not subject to management, advisory, adminisirative, agency of distibubon fees. PIMCO Japan
Ltd, PINKCO"s affiliate in tapan, is paid & fiee from the Japanese Imvestment Trusts of other mvestment vehides that irvest in such Funds or Classes and a portion of
such fee is then allocated to FIMCO 1o compsmsate it fior its semvices

For the first five years following the launch of each of the B-J 1605 (JFY), B-) 1605 (L50), B-1 1609 (FY), B-] 1609 (U500, Bl 1612 {IPY), and B) 1612 (USD) Classes
o1 the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E an Assel Based Sales Change (T AESCT) of 0.76% wall be impdsed on the average daly net assel value of each Class and
payable monthly ta the Fee Agent Addifonaly, if any units of the 8- 1605 OPY), B-) 1605 (UBDY, B-1 1603 0F), B-0 160% (LS0), B-) 1612 OFY), and B-J 1612 (LSDH
Classes of the PFIMCO Bermusda Income Fund E are redessmsd of exchan Q.‘lj fior ome of more units in another fund within the fime period specfed below, 3 COEC wil
be irnpciied on the amount of widh redémplion at the applicable Percentage CDSC:

Yawrs Since Inception sf Each Class Percantage COSC
1 (enchyding firs1 year anovmisany 300%
2 (e g £ cond yes ammivencang 240%
J ichgey terd e i rehErsany 1.800%
4 (waz] pdeng {oersh wea mnarsangd 1.20%
B (nmchuding filoh yeee anrsersang [
Trtalinr Q00

With respect to the calculation of the CDSC, the value of the redemption amount wall be the then-cument NAV of the wnits being repurchased Furthermore, any
applicable COACs will be daducted from the repurdhase proceeds andwill be payable to the Fee Agent. For the yvear ended October 31, 2018, the B-J 1805 IFY), B
1605 (LS00, B 1600 (0FF), B 1609 (UST, B-) 1612 (FY), and B 1612 (USEY) Classes of the PIMCO Bermisda Income Fund £ paid Y185, 267,132 in ABSC and
¥49, 002,855 i COSC to the Fee Agent

The Funids for Classes thereof, a5 applicabie) may bear other experses related to ther operation that are not covered by the management, advisory, administrative,
agency of dsmibution fees, induding but not limited to: (3) Lo and govermimen Lal tees; () broker 3ge fees and commessins and ofher porthofio rareact on axperses;
iy costs of bomowing money, induding interest expense; (v} extracrdinary expences, indudng costs of liigation and indesmnification expenses: and (v} amy expenses
allocated or ABocable to & spedfic Class of units. PIMCO has paid the crganizational expenses assodiated with the creation of the Trust, excepd for PIMCO Short-Term
Morigage: Income

PIMKCO andior 115 affiliates initially advanced 1o FIMCO Short-Term Mortgage income all costs and expenses, induding legal expenses, inqured in connection with the
initial pubkc offering of the EUR, 3PY and USD Clasess of units of the Fund m Jagan ("Offerng Expenses™) AL o ned the commencement of the Fund's oparations, the
Furd will reimburse PIMCO andior its affiliates for the Offering Expenses advanced and will amortize wuch Offering Expentes cver the first fiscal year of its operations
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However, PIMCO has agreed to wave reimburserment of the Offering Expenses to the extent $at such expenses excesd 0 05% per znnum of she sem of the EUR, JFY
ared LD Classes’ NAY {the "Offering Expense Limitation ™). Any Offering Expenses waived due 10 the Offering Expense Limitation may be recouped by PIMCO andior
s affliates for 2 period not excesdng five years from the commen cement of the Fund's operations; provided, e amount recouped by PIMCO andior its affiliates shall
not éxoeed 0.05% per anrum of the tum of te ELIR, JPY and USD Classes” MAY. [amy of the EUR, 3PY and USD Classes of unes of the Fund ane terminated pof 1o
the full reimbarserment of all Offering Expenses, PIMCO andfor its affiliates shal ot seek reimbursement of amy remaming wnreimbursed amounts from that Class
Furthermaore, if al of the EUR, JFY and USD Classes of unirs of the Fund are termimated pricoe 1o the full reimbursement of all Offering Expenses, PIMCO andéor its
affiliates shall not seek reimbursement of any remaining uneeimbursed amounts from the fund. 45 of Ochober 31, 2018, there were na recoverable Offering Expenses
i PIRACO amcdion it affliates

The Trustee and the Manager have appointed Credit Suisse International a5 the agent for e PIMCO Bemneda income Fund E for pumpeses of finanang placement fees
tobe paid to certan distibutors. Under a fee agent appointmen't agreement entered into amang fhe Trustee, the Manager, and Credit Suisse international {the ™Fes
Agent Appoiniment Agreement”), Credit Suisse intemational has been appointed to: §) effect payment of certain distibution fees to the Japanese disiributors in
acoordance with thee Fee Agent Appomtment Agreement znd the terms of vanious upfront fee letters, and (i) make all calaulations and determinations reguired to b
Made Under the Fee Agent ADfentment Agfesment

PIKKCO andor |15 affillares wall initally advance to the PRSC0O Bermuda income Fund Elegal expenses inarred in connection with exequtng the Fee Agent
Appoentment Agreement and astodiated legd adreements for the B- 1605 (IPY) and B-J 1605 (LSDH Classes of wnits of the PIMCO Beemuda Income Fund E (he "Fee
Agent Legal Expenses”). At the end of these Classes’ initizl offering pericds, the Fundwill be requived toc (i} reimburse to PIMCO andlor its affiliates the greater of: (3}
W10 milion or (b) 0. 20% of the aggregate amounts invested m such Classes during their initial offering pengds (sud amoamt not 1o exceed the Fee Agent Lega
Expenzes advanced), and 1) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the relevant Class over the first fiscal vear of its operations. All or 2 portion of the remaining
Fee Agent Legal Expenses Sdvamoed may e eapended 1o Jitune B share dasses added o and offered by any senes of the Trust, FIMCO Bermuda Trust, FIMCO
Bermipda Tast IV, PIMCO Cayman Trst andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within cne year from the end aof the initial offering perigds of the B-) 1605 (1Y) and B-J
1605 (U500 Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermixda income Fand £ or sudh other perfiod of time that the Imeestment Adviser determines in its disgretion,

In addton, FIMCG andforits affiliates will nigally advance o the PFIMCO Bermuda income Fund E legal expenses incurred in connection with exequting the Fee Agent
Appoentment Agreement and assediated legal agreements for the B-1 1609 (IFY) and B-J 1609 (LS0h Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E (also a
partof the Fee Agent Legal Expenses). Al the end of the B-J 1609 (IFY) and B-J 1609 (USDH Casses” intial offering periods. e PIMCO Bermuda ncome Fund Ewill
bee required toc ) reimburss 0 PIVCO andior its ahlianes the greater of (3) ¥10 millson or (B) 0.20% of the aggregate smounts invested in such Oasses diing their
initial offering periods (such amadnt not to exceed the fotal of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unreimbursed porticn of any Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previoysly advanced in connection with the geation of any B share dass of amy series of te Trect, FMCO Berrmuda Tnest, MMCO Bermipda Trst i, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor FIRACO Cayman SPC Limited within ene year from the respective ends of the inital offering or such other period of Bme that the mvestment Adviser
determines in it descregion), snd (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenises 1o the rélevant Class over the frat fical year of its operations. A o 4 portion of te
remaining Fes Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed to future B shane dasges added to and offered by any senes of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trost,
PIMCO Berrnuda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respective ends of the initial offering periods or suth
other period of time that the investment Adviser detemmines in its discretion

PIMCO andfor [ts affiliates will also initially advance to the PIMCO Bermuda Inceme Fund E legal expenses inaumed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appoentment Agreement and dstociated legal agresments for the B-J 1612 (FY) and B-J 1612 (US0H Classes of units of the PIMCO Bermuda income Fund E (also a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses), Al the end of the B-J 1612 (JFY) and B-J 1612 (LS0H Clastes initidl offering periods, the PIMCO Bermuda indome Fund E will
e reuired oc ) reimiburse o PIVCO andior it atifiaes the greater of: (2) W10 mallson or (B 0 20% of the aggregate amounts imested in such Oasses dming their
initial offering periods (swch amant not to exceed the total of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unreimbursed porticn of any Fee Agent Legal Expenses
previpushy advanced in conmection with the gestion of any B share dass of any series of the Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trest, FIMCO Bermieda Trust i, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor FIMRCO Caymian SPC Lirited wathin one year from the regpectoe ends of the mildl offeing of such other period of Bme hat the investment Adviser
determines in its disoretion), and (i) amoriize sisch Fee Agent Legal Expenses 1o the relevant Class over the s fscal year of its operations. Al or a porton of the
remaning Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced may be expensed to future B share dasses added to and offered by any teries of the Trust, FIMCO Bermuda Trust,
FIMCO Besrnuda Trust IV, FIMCO Cayman Trust andfor PIMCD Cagman SPC Limited within one year from the respecive ends of ihe initial offering periods or sudh
other period of time that e Imvestment Adviser determines in its dsaetion. For the year ended October 31, 2018 there were no more Fee Agent Legal Expernses
Fefmisnng

PIMICO Short-Term Mortgage income {the: ELIR, JPY, and USD Classes) and PIMCO Word Migh Ircome pay on-going expenses related to the public oftering of thelr
units in lapan
10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The imiestmint Achiser 15 a related pany to the Funds and is a majorngowned subsdiany of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees paid 1o thee retated pamy, i sy, ae
disclogsed in Mote 9, and acoued related party fee amounts, if amy, are dsdosed on the Statements of Assats and Liabdfities

Allianz Asset Management AG, a related party of the Trwst, cwned 12 007% of the net assets of the PIMCOO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund, 0.14% of the net
assets of the PIMCO Short-Term Morrgage income and 0.0001% of the net assets of the PIMCO 1S High Yield Strategy Rand B a5 of October 21, 2013

Certain Funds are pemnitted 1o purchase or sell seamities from or to certain refated affliated funds under spedfied conditions cutlined in procedures adopted by the
Inwes rment Adwiser The proceduses hie been designid 1o ensure that any purdhade of e of secunites by 3 fured from ce 1o amother fund tat is o could be
consdered an atfiliate by virtue of hadng a common advicer (or affiliated imestment advisers), i effected at the asrent market price. Duging the péiod ended October
31, 2018, the Fundis) below engaged in punchases and sales of securilses among atfliated funds (amdunts in thousands):
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2019 10
4,287 467,540
1,872 204,160
2,415 263,380
227,752.368
10.61 1,157
2019 10
671 80,721
293 35,248
378 45,473
39,050.492
9.68 1,165
2019 10
4,236,489
1,849,902
2,386,587
242,944 370
9,824
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2020
606,851,577.58 661 8,323
850,000
48,875.82
850,000
250,000

2016 175,840,532.12
2017 176,759,578.09
2018 192,872,867.64
2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
Managing Member
agreement

Ooooooooooooooooooad

150,000

150,000
1,250,000

limited liability company

2020

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Joshua Anderson

Andrew Balls

Jamil Baz

Ryan P. Blute

Philippe Bodereau

Andrew Bosomworth

David L. Braun

Geraldine Brigliadori Walsh

Erin Browne

Elizabeth Cantrill
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Rick Chan

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Joshua Davis

Craig A. Dawson

Ed Devlin

Pramol Dhawan

Chris Dialynas

Jennifer E. Durham

Mohsen Fahmi

Joachim Fels

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

Alessandro Gandolfi

Russell Gannaway

Michael A. Gomez

Stuart T. Graham

(Sachin Gupta)

(Gregory W. Hall)

Brent R. Harris

Jonathan L. Horne

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

Andrew R. Jessop

J
Nicholas J. Johnson

(Alec Kersman)

Mark R. Kiesel

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

Kimberley G. Korinke

Ryan Korinke

Richard R. LeBrun

Matthieu Louanges

(Laurent Luccioni)
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Dirk Manelski

Sudi N. Mariappa

(Rene Martel)

Scott A. Mather

Ravi K. Mattu

Robert Mead

Julie Meggers

Mohit Mittal

Eric J. Mogelof

Alfred T. Murata

John W. Murrary

(Roger 0. Nieves)

Thomas J. Otterbein

Lorenzo Pagani

Stephen A. Rodosky

(Emmanuel Roman)

Jerome M. Schneider

Marc P. Seidner

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Greg E. Sharenow

Adam Shukovsky

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Jason R. Steiner

Christian Stracke

Peter G. Strelow

John J. Studzinski

Sung Hee Suh

Eric M. Sutherland

(Eve Tournier)

Qi Wang

Frank Witt
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Mihir P. Worah

Robert 0. Young
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA
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2020 325
760,468,545,350

114 437,938,843,654
21 13,469,917,455
12 22,058,873,762
66 206,171,329,787

9 10,039,404,184
35 10,084,817,395
34 21,702,919,982
13 23,959,579,696

1 297,122,160

5 2,461,577,516
15 12,284,159,759
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2017 12 31 2018 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2020 31
109.06
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2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017 2017
2(c) 429,220,995 46,810,842 450,700,560 49,153,403 369,212,638 40,266,330
2(d),5 32,459,901 3,540,077 17,499,478 1,908,493 15,079,940 1,644,618
2(e) 552,952,116 60,304,958 594,774,505 64,866,108 528,155,825 57,600,674
2(e) 254,081,349 27,710,112 265,415,118 28,946,173 248,002,787 27,056,999
32,694,941 3,565,710 32,353,593 3,528,483 29,806,504 3,250,697
2(e) 25,166,878 2,744,700 31,706,344 3,457,894 30,734,619 3,351,918
2(9),9(H) 15,657,169 1,707,571 31,943,967 3,483,809 72,809,303 7,940,583
8 7,382,210 805,104 15,679,760 1,710,035 10,599,926 1,156,028
3,6 22,123,467 2,412,785 15,603,998 1,701,772
43,846,429 4,781,892 54,450,745 5,938,398 51,770,261 5,646,065
1,393,461,988 151,970,964 1,516,647,537 165,405,580 1,371,865,801 149,615,684
2018 12 31
292,930,004 2017 12 31
261,275,747 2().7 146,862,606 16,016,836 169,666,751 18,503,856 192,255,385 20,967,372
2(9).9(F) 460,075,450 50,175,829 331,335,997 36,135,504 217,492,628 23,719,746
2(b) 13,463,668 1,468,348 101,758 11,098 103,150 11,250
10 29,821,480 3,252,331 19,752,989 2,154,261 21,293,880 2,322,311
650,223,204 70,913,343 520,857,495 56,804,718 431,145,043 47,020,678
2,043,685,192 222,884,307 2,037,505,032 222,210,299 1,803,010,844 196,636,363
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2018 2017 2017
433,350,570 47,261,213 524,430,033 57,194,339 366,719,665 39,994,447
8 212,000,000 23,120,720 204,000,000 22,248,240 153,000,000 16,686,180
9 155,868,165 16,998,982 133,064,250 14,511,987 284,765,682 31,056,545
6 102,698,345 11,200,282 67,149,872 7,323,365 47,547,207 5,185,498
8 20,488,078 2,234,430 22,191,262 2,420,179 25,837,663 2,817,856
2(0),9(F) 15,657,169 1,707,571 31,943,967 3,483,809 72,809,303 7,940,583
8,230,351 897,602 7,958,614 867,966 11,878,828 1,295,505
948,292,678 103,420,799 990,737,998 108,049,886 962,558,348 104,976,613
2(0),9(F) 460,075,450 50,175,829 331,335,997 36,135,504 217,492,628 23,719,746
9 130,404,396 14,221,903 87,515,282 9,544,417 59,230,194 6,459,645
42,013,112 4,581,950 44,907,555 4,897,618 42,772,551 4,664,774
1,550,631 169,112 999,204 108,973
634,043,589 69,148,794 463,758,834 50,577,538 320,494,577 34,953,139
1,582,336,267 172,569,593 1,454,496,832 158,627,424 1,283,052,925 139,929,752
850,000 (792,957,184) (86,479,910) (721,216, 276) (78,655,847) (806,802, 240) (87,989,852)
150,000 1,267,204,122 138,201,282 1,290, 399,100 140,730,926 1,274,221,216 138,966,566
2018 12 31
2017 12 31 45,705 23,722,086 2,587,131 28,660,677 3,125,733 25,239,087 2,752,575
2018 12 31
143,858 2017 12 31 122,972 9(a) 28,576,118 3,116,511 30,984,305 3,379,148 62,079,071 6,770,343
2(D) (65,196,217) (7,110,299) (45,819, 606) (4,997,086) (34,779,215) (3,793,021)
461,348,925 50,314,714 583,008,200 63,582,874 519,957,919 56,706,611
2,043,685,192 222,884,307 2,037,505,032 222,210,299 1,803,010,844 196,636,363
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2018 2017 12 31

2018 2017
2(e) 3,699,085,263 403,422,239 3,069,733,735 334,785,161
2(e) 897,932,904 97,928,563 894,875,087 97,595,077
2(e) 1,121,459,653 122,306,390 1,010,295,001 110,182,773
2(e) 400,632,761 43,693,009 382,875,278 41,756,378
2(e) 21,116,690 2,302,986 19,056,121 2,078,261
6,140,227,271 669,653,186 5,376,835,222 586,397,649
9 1,921,490,575 209,557,762 1,786,117,811 194,794,008
6 814,837,039 88,866,127 393,884,056 42,956,995
2(p) 625,372,554 68,203,131 627,117,284 68,393,411
246,110,361 26,840,796 212,401,017 23,164,455
7,11 152,147,106 16,593,163 146,505,365 15,977,875
2(K) 116,090,003 12,660,776 97,973,736 10,685,016
54,856,322 5,982,630 54,417,256 5,934,746
3 30,368,244 3,311,961
63,594,897 6,935,659 29,364,266 3,202,467
3,994,498 857 435,640,045 3,378,149,035 368,420,934
2,145,728,414 234,013,141 1,998,686,187 217,976,716
24,051,878 2,623,008 50,067,120 5,460,320
2(b) (1,873,076) (204,278) 125,543 13,692
2,167,907,216 236,431,961 2,048,878,850 223,450,727
10 105,979,276 11,558,100 90,675,758 9,889,098
2,061,927,940 224,873,861 1,958,203,092 213,561,629
2(1) (19,376,611) (2,113,213) (11,040,391) (1,204,065)
2,042,551,329 222,760,648 1,947,162,701 212,357,564
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PIMCO

2017 12 31

IFRS 15

PIMCO

2018 12 31

2018

2017 12 31
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850,000 (806,802, 240) (87,989,852) 150,000 1,274,221,216 138,966,566 45,705 25,239,087 2,752,575
1,444,786,673 157,568,435 429,708,581 46,864,018 83,707,838 9,129,177
(1,407,711,685)  (153,525,036) (413,530,697) (45,099, 658) (80,286,248)  (8,756,018)
48,510,976 5,290,607
850,000 (721,216,276) (78,655,847) 150,000 1,290, 399,100 140,730,926 45,705 28,660,677 3,125,733
(17,852,184) (1,946,959) (3.319,784) (362,056) (959,921) (104, 689)
850,000 (739,068,460) (80,602, 806) 150,000 1,287,079,316 140,368,870 45,705 27,700,756 3,021,044
1,523,328,377 166,134,193 450,997,001 49,185,733 87,602,562 9,553,935
(1,595,853,856)  (174,043,822) (470,872,195) (51,353,322) (91,581,232)  (9,987,849)
18,636,755 2,032,525
850,000 (792,957,184) (86,479,910) 150,000 1,267,204,122 138,201,282 45,705 23,722,086 2,587,131
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2017 12 31
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PIMCO

2018 12 31
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2018 2017 12 31

114,192 62,079,071 6,770,343 (34,779,215) (3,793,021) 519,957,919 56,706,611
1,958,203,092 213,561,629
(1,901,528,630) (207,380,712)
17,416,210 1,899,412 17,416,210 1,899,412

(48,510,976) (5,290,607)
(11,040,391) (1,204,065) (11,040,391) (1,204,065)
122,972 30,984,305 3,379,148 (45,819, 606) (4,997,086) 583,008,200 63,582,874
(22,131,889) (2,413,704)
122,972 30,984,305 3,379,148 (45,819,606) (4,997,086) 560,876,311 61,169,170
2,061,927,940 224,873,861
(2,158,307,283) (235,384,992)
16,228,568 1,769,888 16,228,568 1,769,888

(18,636, 755) (2,032,525)
(19,376,611) (2,113,213) (19,376,611) (2,113,213)
143,858 28,576,118 3,116,511 (65,196,217) (7,110,299) 461,348,925 50,314,714
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2018 2017 12 31
2018 2017

2,061,927,940 224,873,861 1,958,203,092 213,561,629
15,754,902 1,718,230 16,714,824 1,822,919
45,224,698 4,932,206 46,606,978 5,082,957
30,368,244 3,311,961
173,827 18,958 (586) (64)
1,873,076 204,278 (125,543) (13,692)
7,685,839 838,218 2,758,547 300,847

4,011,361 437,479
(19, 366,964) (2,112,161) (2,292,016) (249,967)
(104,148,954) (11,358, 485) (87,635,240) (9,557,499)
(2.258,750) (246,339) (2.,374,634) (258,978)
59,695,625 6,510,405 (84,912,737) (9.260,583)
8,957,270 976,880 (44,952,843) (4,902,557)
116,569,743 12,713,096 143,906,563 15,694,450
(2,775,258) (302,670) (6,430,815) (701,345)
2,193,324,355 239,203,954 1,969,833,834 214,830,078
(30,106,393) (3.283,403) (26,776,891) (2,920,288)

(15,013, 633) (1,637,387)

(45,120,026) (4,920,790) (26,776,891) (2,920,288)
2,211,000,000 241,131,660 2,260,000,000 246,475,600
(2,203,000,000)  (240,259,180)  (2,209,000,000)  (240,913,540)
(2,158,307,283)  (235,384,992)  (1,901,528,630)  (207,380,712)
(2,150,307,283)  (234,512,512)  (1,850,528,630)  (201,818,652)
(19,376,611) (2,113,213) (11,040,391) (1,204,065)
(21,479,565) (2.342,561) 81,487,922 8,887,073
450,700,560 49,153,403 369,212,638 40,266,330
429,220,995 46,810,842 450,700,560 49,153,403
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2018 2017 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2018 12 31 45,705
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO
Pl LLC
FINRA
2018 2017 12 31 PIMCO

0.00181 0.00165
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PIMCO

FINMA

1ASB IFRS
IFRS

2019
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PIMCO

PIMCO

AAM LP

2018 2017 12 31 180.9 143.2
2018 12 31
620 2017 12 31
395

FDIC
FDIC
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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IFRS

PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
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PIMCO PIMCO
30

2018 2017 12 31

IFRS
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IAS 19

2018

AAM LP
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2018 IFRS 15
IFRS 15
2018 IAS 39
IAS 39
FVOCI
1ASB
2016 13 IASB IFRS 16
IAS 17
IAS 17

276.8
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22.1

IFRS 15
2018 12 31
IFRS
IFRS
FVTPL
IFRS 16
IFRS 16 2019
236.1
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IFRS

)

)

)

2018 2017 12 31 32.5 17.5
2018 2017
2018 2017
2018 2017 12 31
PIMCO 0.10 1.00
Pl LLC

Pl LLC 2018 12 31
3,060
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PI LLC 2018 12 31 3.5
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2016 12 31 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
24,467,417 2,309,474 26,776,891
2,653,000) 105,547) 2,758,547)
38,382,925) 8,224,053) 46,606,978)
2017 12 31 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
(7,685,840) 7,685,840)
35,360,085) 9,864,613) 45,224,698)
2018 12 31 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606
2018 2017 12 31 45.2 46.6
PIMCO
AAM LP
2018 2017
50.4 49.3
LP PIMCO
PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31 10.7 13.6
LIBOR 0.5
AAM LP PIMCO 2018 2017
AAM LP
2018 2017 12 31 PIMCO
212.0 204.0
PIMCO 2018 2017 2.3
2.5
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2018 12 31 578.1
2017 626.5
2018 2017 12 31
41.9 40.2
PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31
6.2 9.3
PDG
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
2018
PDG PDG 36.9 2017 11.9
PDG 2018 PDG 30.8 2017 25.0
2018 12 31 6.5 2017 11.9
PDG 9.8 2017 8.6 PDG
AAM LP 2020 11 600.0
LIBOR 20 2018 12 31 2.578

AAM LP PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO

AAM LP EDCP
PIMCO
PIMCO

250,000 2018 2017
12 31 143,858 122,972
45,705
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PIMCO
OPAD
2018 2017
2018 2017
15,528 11,804
3.84 3.84
21.0 25.2
11.8 13.7
2.5 1.9
2018
2017
( )
2016 12 31 114,192 114,192 17,932
49,195 49,195 11,804
33,344 33,344)
33,344) 33,344) 21,810
7,071) 7,071) 16,928
2017 12 31 122,972 122,972 14,486
49,595 49,595 15,528
19,084 19,084)
19,084) 19,084) 23,594
9,625) 9,625) 14,954
2018 12 31 143,858 143,858 13,606

2018 12 31
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2018 12 31 11,319 24,012
3.08
15,487 2018
11,932 2017 2018 19,084
2017 33,344
2018 2017
2018 12 31 45,274 431
AAM LLC
2018 2017 12 31
15.8 16.7
2018 12 31 2023
12 31
26.5
PIMCO
2018 2017 12 31
12
LTIP
2018
2017 12 31 LTIP 52.6
48.6 LTIP
2018 2017 12 31 LTIP 106.4
87.7
SPA SPA 2014
2017
2018 12
31 SPA 2017 12 31
21.2

2017 12 31 SPA

307/388



AAM LP PIMCO

401

21

13.3

AAM LP

401

363.3

250,000

2018 1.3

13.2
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100
2018
1974
2018 12 31
2017
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10
12 31
2018 2017
6,278 2,030,711
856,534 1,127,343
108,644,006 85,232,952
109,506,818 88,391,006
(999,204)
(3,527,542) 3,283,956
(3,527,542) 2,284,752
105,979,276 90,675,758
2018 2017 12 31 39.7 34.0
2018
2017 12 31 17.7 14.4 2018 12
31 21 2017 12 31
11
PINCO
12 31
2019 34,973,549
2020 35,085,091
2021 33,843,209
2022 33,077,475
2023 31,796,216

37,810,486
206,586,026
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2017 12 31 31.1
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2018 12 31

2018 12 31 2018 12
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13

14

15

16

PIMCO

Pl LLC
15

31

50.3

Pl

LLC

2018

45.9

178.2

P1 LLC

1934
2017 12 31

45.
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14
PIMCO
15
Pl LLC 49.7
3.8 4.5
8 2018 2017 12
1.14 1.35
2018 2017 12 31
1.3
2018 2017
289,027,697 184,813,595
131,786 191,510
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2019 15 22,293
2019 29
3,171
PIMCO 2019 14
2019 PIMCO
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2019

PIMCO

14,516

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Assets
As adjusted Asadjusted
Note 2018 2017 1/1/2017
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 429,220,995 450,700,560 369,212,638
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d),5 32,459,901 17,499,478 15,079,940
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 552,952,116 594,774,505 528,155,825
Private accounts 2(e) 254,081,349 265,415,118 248,092,787
Prepaid expenses 32,694,941 32,353,593 29,806,504
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 25,166,878 31,706,344 30,734,619
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(9),9(f) 15,657,169 31,943,967 72,809,303
Receivables from affiliates 8 7,382,210 15,679,760 10,599,926
Deferred sales charges 3,6 22,123,467 15,603,998
Other current assets 43,846,429 54,450,745 51,770,261
Total current assets 1,393,461,988 1,516,647,537 1,371,865,801
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of
$292,930,004 and $261,275,747 at December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively 2(f),7 146,862,606 169,666,751 192,255,385
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(9),9(f) 460,075,450 331,335,997 217,492,628
Investments in associates 2(b) 13,463,668 101,758 103,150
Other noncurrent assets 10 29,821,480 19,752,989 21,293,880
Total noncurrent assets 650,223,204 520,857,495 431,145,043
Total assets $ 2,043,685,192 2,037,505,032 1,803,010,844
Liabilities and Capital
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 433,350,570 524,430,033 366,719,665
Short-term borrowings from &ffiliates 8 212,000,000 204,000,000 153,000,000
Accrued compensation 9 155,868,165 133,064,250 284,765,682
Commissions payable 6 102,698,345 67,149,872 47,547,207
Payables to affiliates 8 20,488,078 22,191,262 25,837,663
Deferred compensation 2(0),9(f) 15,657,169 31,943,967 72,809,303
Other liabilities 8,230,351 7,958,614 11,878,828
Total current liabilities 948,292,678 990,737,998 962,558,348
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(0),9(f) 460,075,450 331,335,997 217,492,628
Other accrued compensation 9 130,404,396 87,515,282 59,230,194
Future lease obligations 42,013,112 44,907,555 42,772,551
Other liabilities 1,550,631 999,204
Total noncurrent liabilities 634,043,589 463,758,834 320,494,577
Tota liabilities 1,582,336,267 1,454,496,832 1,283,052,925
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (792,957,184) (721,216,276) (806,802,240)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,267,204,122 1,290,399,100 1,274,221,216
Class M members (45,705 unitsissued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2018, and as of December 31, 2017) 23,722,086 28,660,677 25,239,087
Class M unit option holders (143,858 options issued as of
December 31, 2018, and 122,972 options issued as of
December 31, 2017) 9(a) 28,576,118 30,984,305 62,079,071
Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments 2(l) (65,196,217) (45,819,606) (34,779,215)
Total capital 461,348,925 583,008,200 519,957,919
Total liabilities and capital $ 2,043,685,192 2,037,505,032 1,803,010,844

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Revenues: Note 2018 2017
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,699,085,263 3,069,733,735
Private accounts 2(e) 897,932,904 894,875,087
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,121,459,653 1,010,295,001
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 400,632,761 382,875,278
Other 2(e) 21,116,690 19,056,121
Total revenues 6,140,227,271 5,376,835,222
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 9 1,921,490,575 1,786,117,811
Commissions 6 814,837,039 393,884,056
Genera and administrative 2(p) 625,372,554 627,117,284
Professional fees 246,110,361 212,401,017
Occupancy and eguipment 7,11 152,147,106 146,505,365
Marketing and promotional 2(k) 116,090,003 97,973,736
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 54,856,322 54,417,256
Deferred charges amortization 3 30,368,244
Other 63,594,897 29,364,266
Total expenses 3,994,498,857 3,378,149,035
Operating income 2,145,728,414 1,998,686,187
Other income 24,051,878 50,067,120
Equity in (loss)/income of associates 2(b) (1,873,076) 125,543
Net income before income taxes 2,167,907,216 2,048,878,850
Income tax expense 10 105,979,276 90,675,758
Net income 2,061,927,940 1,958,203,092

Other comprehensive loss:
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trandation adjustments 2(l) (19,376,611) (11,040,391)
Comprehensive income $ 2,042,551,329 1,947,162,701

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members ClassM unit option holders trandation Total
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2016 850,000 $ (806,802,240) 150,000 $ 1,274,221,216 45,705 $ 25,239,087 114,192 $ 62,079,071 $ (34,779,215) $ 519,957,919
Net income 1,444,786,673 429,708,581 83,707,838 1,958,203,092
Distributions (1,407,711,685) (413,530,697) (80,286,248) (1,901,528,630)
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense 17,416,210 17,416,210

Reallocation of basis 48,510,976 (48,510,976)
Other comprehensive loss (11,040,391) (11,040,391)
Balances at December 31, 2017 850,000 (721,216,276) 150,000 1,290,399,100 45,705 28,660,677 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 583,008,200
Impact relating to adoption of IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers (17,852,184) (3,319,784) (959,921) (22,131,889)
Restated balances at the beginning of the
financial year 850,000 (739,068,460) 150,000 1,287,079,316 45,705 27,700,756 122,972 30,984,305 (45,819,606) 560,876,311
Net income 1,523,328,377 450,997,001 87,602,562 2,061,927,940
Distributions (1,595,853,856) (470,872,195) (91,581,232) (2,158,307,283)
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense 16,228,568 16,228,568

Reallocation of basis 18,636,755 (18,636,755)
Other comprehensive loss (19,376,611) (19,376,611)
Balances at December 31, 2018 850,000 $ (792,957,184) 150,000 $ 1,267,204,122 45,705 $ 23,722,086 143,858 $ 28,576,118 g (65,196,217) $ 461,348,925

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC

AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 2,061,927,940 1,958,203,092
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 15,754,902 16,714,824
Depreciation and amortization 45,224,698 46,606,978
Amortization of deferred sales charges 30,368,244
Unrealized and realized loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value through
profit and loss 173,827 (586)
Equity in loss/(income) of associates 1,873,076 (125,543)
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 7,685,839 2,758,547
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through income 4,011,361
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through income (19,366,964) (2,292,016)
Income taxes paid (104,148,954) (87,635,240)
Interest paid (2,258,750) (2,374,634)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable 59,695,625 (84,912,737)
Receivables from &ffiliates, deferred sales charges, prepaid expenses, and other
assets 8,957,270 (44,952,843)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 116,569,743 143,906,563
Other liabilities, future lease obligations, and payables to affiliates (2,775,258) (6,430,815)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,193,324,355 1,969,833,834
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (30,106,393) (26,776,891)
Purchases from redemptions in associates (15,013,633)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,120,026) (26,776,891)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 2,211,000,000 2,260,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (2,203,000,000) (2,209,000,000)
Cash distributions (2,158,307,283) (1,901,528,630)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,150,307,283) (1,850,528,630)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (19,376,611) (11,040,391)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (21,479,565) 81,487,922
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 450,700,560 369,212,638
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 429,220,995 450,700,560

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notesto Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(1) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns all 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding Il). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2018, 45,705
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany items have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC isabroker/dedler that is the primary distributor and provides shareholder services to institutional and
retail mutual funds (collectively, PIMCO Funds) and exchange traded funds that are managed and advised by
PIMCO. PI LLC isaregistered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission and is a member
of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).
StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS), awholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO, owned approximately
0.00181% interest and 0.00165% interest in StocksPLUS LP. as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is a registered investment adviser in the United Kingdom, with a
branchin Italy.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.
PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO Asia Limited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) Limited (PIMCO Resources) is a company that provides global payroll
services to PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.
PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Services LLC isaholding company, with branchesin the United Kingdom and Hong Kong.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages an investment fund under the laws of
Luxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is in the process of registering as an investment advisor
in Tailwan.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(2) Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors.
The accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements. These consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financia statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.

After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeabl e future.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on May 7,
2019.

(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financia and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to
determine whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under
the equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’ s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or
loss primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses
from changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement
asto whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the
Company from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities,
including the power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the
structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks
only, and key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities
and anarrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considersal liquid financial instruments with an original maturity of less than three monthsto be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions,
nonaffiliated money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by
Allianz SE. There was $180.9 million and $143.2 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, cash equivalents deposited in the cash
pool with Allianz SE totaled $620 thousand, and $395 thousand was deposited in the cash pool at December 31,
2017. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash equivalents for purposes of the
consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair
value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various federally insured banking
ingtitutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage, and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to
amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.

(Continued)

320/388



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading
business model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a
short-to-moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized directly in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on atrade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects
to be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned
in exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative
services for the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing
costs. The performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are
substantially the same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under
management and recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided
in other periods. As the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of
assets under management, the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the
dependence on unpredictable asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is
generaly once these values can be determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company
may also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles.
Such fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal, which is usually
at the end of the respective measurement period if the prescribed performance hurdles have been achieved and
the fees are no longer subject to claw back.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are an ongoing fee that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutua Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the
performance obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue
amounts are based on percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the
consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset
vaues. The constraint is removed once these values can be determined.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Contract assets and liabilities

Revenues related to investment advisory and administration is included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Revenues
related to distribution and servicing fees are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. The impairment of any receivables recognized
during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers was inconsequential. There are no contract
liabilities related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, fixtures, and software are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
generaly threeto five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining
terms of the related leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financia period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year theitem is sold or retired.

(g) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(h) Income Taxes

PIMCO is not subject to United States (U.S.) federal income tax asit is organized as alimited liability company
and is taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their
proportionate share of PIMCO's taxable income. PIMCO is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the
u.s.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generaly
recognized for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(i) Distributions

Although there is no contractua requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined
within the PIMCO limited liability company agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the
end of such quarter.

(i) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital,
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As
the Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the
Company’s management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public
entities, discounted cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the
Company’s historical and forecasted financial performance.

(K Marketing and Promotional

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

() Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are trandated primarily at the exchange rate on the date
on which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with
a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive loss. The cumulative
translation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017.

(m) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statementsin conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liabilities, reported amounts
of revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These
estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current
economic environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management
adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects
cannot be determined with precision, actua results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in
those estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the
financial statements in future periods. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the
Company’s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to
the Company’s future earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation
of such entities.

(n) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The
amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future
events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision
where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or all of the expenditure is
expected to be reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is
recoghized as a separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded
in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(0) Deferred Compensation
The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the
carrying value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred
compensation trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(p) General and administrative
General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under

the administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The
Company is considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

() Change in Accounting Policy

During 2018, the Company evaluated its accounting policy with respect to the deferred compensation plan and
determined to change its accounting policy to a more preferable method. Previoudly, the interest in the deferred
compensation plan and the deferred compensation liabilities were not reflected in the consolidated financial
statements as the plan was accounted for by the Sponsoring Entity, AAM LP. Management determined a more
preferable treatment would be to reflect the interest in the deferred compensation trust and the deferred
compensation liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, prior year comparatives have
been adjusted to reflect this preferable accounting treatment. There was no impact to net income or capital as a
result of the retrospective application.

(3 Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Revenue

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted |FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized on the date of initia application. Upon
adoption, the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings was $22.1 million. This adjustment relates to sales
commissions paid to third party intermediaries in connection with the sale of shares of affiliated mutual funds sold
without a front-end sales charge which were previously capitalized. These commission costs do not meet the
criteria of incremental costs of obtaining a contract and are, therefore, expensed as incurred under IFRS 15. Any
sales commissions that are recaptured through contingent deferred sales charges are recorded as other revenue.

The most significant impact of the adoption to the Company relates to the presentation of certain distribution costs
gross within commission expense that were previously netted within investment advisory fees - pooled funds
revenue.

There was no other impact to revenue for the year ended December 31, 2018, as revenue recognition and timing
of revenue did not change as aresult of implementing IFRS 15.

Financial Instruments

On January 1, 2018, the Company adopted IFRS 9 Financial instruments, which fully replaces IAS 39 and
provides a new approach on how to classify financial instruments based on their cash flow characteristics and the
business model under which they are managed. Furthermore, the standard introduces a new forward-looking
impairment model for debt instruments and provides new rules for hedge accounting.

Financial assets such as the following categories included in IAS 39 are no longer available: held to maturity,
loans and receivables and available for sale. Rather, under IFRS 9, afinancial asset is classified as measured at:

amortized cogt, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL") oninitial recognition based on the business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics.
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This standard did not have a significant impact to the Company’s financial statements. There was no impact to
opening retained earnings aresult of applying this standard.

(4) Future Changein Accounting Policies

A number of accounting standards, interpretations, and amendments have been issued by the IASB, which are not
yet effective for the Company’s financial statements. Those that are most relevant to the Company’s financial
statements in future years are discussed below.

Leases

IFRS 16, Leases, was issued by the IASB on January 13, 2016. IFRS 16 results in lessees accounting for most
leases within the scope of the standard in a manner similar to the way in which finance leases are currently
accounted for under 1AS 17, Leases. Lessees will recognize a right of use asset and a corresponding financial
liahility on the statements of financial position. The asset will be amortized over the length of the lease and the
financial liability measured at amortized cost. Lessor accounting remains substantially the same as under |1AS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

The Company has completed its assessment of the impact on its consolidated financial statements. The Company
estimates that it will recognize approximately $236.1 million in new assets, which also reflect deferred rent and
other incentives accrued as of the transition date, and $276.8 million in new liabilities for its operating leases of
offices space.

(5) Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financia instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $32.5 million and
$17.5 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted

quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments for 2018 and 2017.
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The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust primarily consist of mutual funds
and equity securities, which are classified as Level 1 instruments for 2018 and 2017.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2018 or
2017.

The fair value of investment advisory fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees receivable, deferred sales
charges, receivables from affiliates, and payables to &ffiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(6) Commissions and Deferred Sales Charges

Trail commissions consist of distribution and servicing payments to participating brokers for the distribution of
shares, providing personal services to shareholders, and maintaining shareholder accounts. Such trail
commissions, in total, can range from 0.10% to 1.00% of the average daily net assets for PIMCO Mutual Funds.

In connection with the distribution of certain Class A and Class C shares, Pl LLC advances commissions to third
party intermediaries, which are expensed asincurred. Initial commissions are generally paid at a rate of up to 1%
for Class A shares (on sales of $1 million or more) and for Class C shares. The contingent deferred sales charges
are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares, unless an applicable exemption applies such as if the
redemption relates to balances accumulated through reinvested dividends or capital gain distributions or
appreciation on the account over the amount that was invested. Pl LLC incurred $30.6 million in commissions to
third party intermediaries for the year ended December 31, 2018, and is included in commissions in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

The contingent deferred sales charges are collected on certain early redemptions of the shares. The contingent
deferred sales charge rate on Class C shares is generally 1% if redeemed during the first year following purchase
for applicable PIMCO Funds. Contingent deferred sales charges may aso be received on the redemption of
certain PIMCO Funds Class A shares at a rate of 1% of the net asset value of the redeemed shares, if the initia
purchase of such Class A shares exceeded certain thresholds. PI LLC received $3.5 million in contingent deferred
sales charges for the year ended December 31, 2018 and is included in other revenue in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(7) Property and Equipment

The mgjor classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture,
fixtures, and Leasehold
software improvements Art Totd
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2016 $ 93,780,071 97,460,778 1,014,536 192,255,385
Additions 24,467,417 2,309,474 26,776,891
Disposals (2,653,000) (105,547) (2,758,547)
Depreciation and amortization (38,382,925) (8,224,053) (46,606,978)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2017 77,211,563 91,440,652 1,014,536 169,666,751
Additions 28,017,364 2,082,129 6,900 30,106,393
Disposals (7,685,840) (7,685,840)
Depreciation and amortization (35,360,085) (9,864,613) (45,224,698)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2018 $ 62,183,002 83,658,168 1,021,436 146,862,606

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $45.2 million and $46.6 million for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(8) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP for certain overhead, administrative services, and occupancy
costs that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These expenses generaly consist of rental costs and
salaries and related benefits for finance, information technology, and other general and administrative services.
The amount charged for such services totaled $50.4 million and $49.3 million during 2018 and 2017, respectively,
which is a component of general and administrative in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. The payable to affiliates includes a liability to be paid to AAM LP in connection with these services and
payables to other affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have
been paid on behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $10.7 million as of December 31,
2018 and $13.6 million as of December 31, 2017.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at arate of 3-month LIBOR plus 0.5% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2018
and 2017, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, PIMCO had outstanding short-term loans totaling
$212.0 million and $204.0 million, respectively, which is shown as short-term borrowings from affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2018 and 2017, PIMCO incurred $2.3
million and $2.5 million, respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially al of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, the Company had $578.1
million (2017: $626.5 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $41.9 million and $40.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, which are primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of New York, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $6.2 million and $9.3 million for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PIMCO Deutschland GmbH and its branches (collectively PDG), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH, who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE,
together with al of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are subject to PIMCO’s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer
Pricing Policy) for shared management services that are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management
services provided include portfolio management, account management and business management and
administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared management services are alocated in accordance
with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2018, the revenue earned from third parties for shared management services
alocated to PDG was $36.9 million (2017: $11.9 million) greater than the revenue alocated from PDG and is
presented as a reduction of investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PDG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2018, costs allocated to PDG
were $30.8 million (2017: $25.0 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2018, the Company had a $6.5 million (2017: $11.9 million) receivable from and a $9.8
million (2017: $8.6 million) payable to PDG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and payables
to ffiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE, which expires in November 2020. The
facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of LIBOR plus 20bps (rate of 2.578% as of
December 31, 2018). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf of
its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2018 and 2017.
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Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in each of the benefit plans that are discussed in
note 9. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation and benefits
included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(9) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one-third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option
grant date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over
the related vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless
transaction unless the participant has elected to defer their M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As
disclosed in note 9(f), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation
Plan (the EDCP). If, at the time of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the
exercise price of the option award, no Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of
PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt
of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units are authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, 143,858 and 122,972 options, respectively, were outstanding for M units and 45,705 M units have
been issued from the exercise of options.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model. The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third party
valuation was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend
yield was estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution (OPAD) distributed
to PIMCO M unit holders. Expected volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a
select group of peers. The expected life was cal culated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one-third
inyears 3, 4, and 5) as separate options.
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The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the M unit options granted
during 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 15,528 11,804
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84 384
Expected volatility 21.0% 25.2%
Expected dividends 11.8% 13.7%
Risk-free rate of return 2.5% 1.9%

A summary of the activity in 2018 and 2017 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the
M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

Weighted
average
Number of options exercise
Vested Nonvested Total price

Outstanding at

December 31, 2016 114,192 114,192 $ 17,932
Changes during the year:

Granted 49,195 49,195 11,804

Vested 33,344 (33,344)

Exercised (33,344) (33,344) 21,810

Forfeited (7,071) (7,071 16,928
Outstanding at

December 31, 2017 122,972 122972 $ 14,486
Changes during the year:

Granted 49,595 49,595 15,528

Vested 19,084 (19,084)

Exercised (19,084) (19,084) 23,594

Forfeited (9,625) (9,625) 14,954
Outstanding at

December 31, 2018 143,858 143,858 $ 13,606
Exercisable as of

December 31, 2018

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2018 have an exercise price between $11,319 and $24,012
and aweighted average remaining contractual life of 3.08 years.
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The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $15,487 for 2018 and
$11,932 for 2017. M unit options totaling 19,084 vested during 2018 and 33,344 options vested during 2017.
The M unit estimated fair values as of the vesting dates were less than the exercise price of each of these option
awards. Therefore, as a result of the automatic cashless exercise feature, no M units were issued in 2018 or
2017 and the entire Black-Scholes amount was reallocated from the Class M unit option capital account to the
Class A member capital account in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in capital. No other
M unit activity occurred during the year. As of December 31, 2018, 45,274 M units are owned by current
employees and former employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $15.8 million and $16.7 million, respectively, and is
included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income. As of December 31, 2018, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested
M unit option awards, net of estimated forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through
December 31, 2023 is $26.5 million.

(b) Profit Sharing and Incentive Plans

PIMCO and its subsidiaries have various profit sharing and incentive plans that compensate participants on the
basis of profitability and discretionary bonuses. Compensation under these programs was $1.2 billion for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(©) Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Company has a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for certain key employees. Awards are primarily based
upon achieving specified operating earnings targets and vest over three years. This plan is accounted for as a
liability award and expensed as compensation over the related vesting period. The Company had recognized
expense under the LTIP of $52.6 million and $48.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. LTIP compensation expense is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The total accrued LTIP liability was $106.4
million and $87.7 million at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included within current accrued
compensation and noncurrent other accrued compensation in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition.
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(d) Special Performance Award

The Special Performance Award (SPA) was an enhancement to compensation. The SPA consists of deferred

cash awards granted during the 4th quarter of 2014, which were earned and payable at various dates through
mid-2017. The purpose of the program was to secure performance and to retain talent. There were no expenses
recorded by the Company related to the SPA during the year ended December 31, 2018, and $21.2 million
during the year ended December 31, 2017, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The SPA liability was fully paid as of
December 31, 2017.

(e Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP is the sponsor of a defined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering PIMCO
employees. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and allows eligible
employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is subject to a maximum
dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are generally eligible
following the later of attainment of age 21 or on the first day of the month following the start date. After the
completion of one year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to
the Internal Revenue Code limits, contributed by the employees. The amount expensed by the Company related
to this plan during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $13.3 million and $13.2 million,
respectively, and is included in compensation and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

() Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has a nonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation
otherwise payable to certain eligible employees of the Company will be mandatorily deferred and pursuant to
which such eligible employees may elect to defer additional amounts of compensation. The plan is maintained
primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly
compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred under the plan are invested in
marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by the employees and are held in
agrantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing activities of the Company and
only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency. Total investments and
restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability as of December 31, 2018 and as
December 31, 2017 was $475.7 million and $363.3 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition.

(9) Employee Sock Purchase Plan

Allianz SE has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan that is designed to provide eligible employees with an
opportunity to purchase American Depository Shares of Allianz SE annually at a discounted price on a
predetermined date. An aggregate of 250,000 American Depository Shares are reserved for this plan. Allianz
SE determines the gross purchase price of the shares, and a committee appointed by the Company determines
the discount price. Employees are not allowed to sell or transfer the shares for an one-year period following the
purchase date. The difference between the market price and the discount price, or the discount, was paid by the
Company and amounted to $1.1 million in 2018 and $1.3 million in 2017 and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(10) Income Tax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2018 2017
Current:

Federal $ 6,278 2,030,711
State 856,534 1,127,343
Foreign 108,644,006 85,232,952
Total current 109,506,818 88,391,006

Deferred:
Federal (999,204)
Foreign (3,527,542) 3,283,956
Total deferred (3,527,542) 2,284,752
Total provision $ 105,979,276 90,675,758

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, income taxes payable amounted to $39.7 million and $34.0 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, deferred tax assets amounted
to $17.7 million and $14.4 million, respectively. The deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2018 amounted to
$21 thousand. There were no deferred tax liabilities as of December 31, 2017. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.
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(11) Lease Commitments

PIMCO leases office space under noncancelable operating leases with terms in excess of one year and future
minimum payments are as follows:

Year ending December 31

2019 $ 34,973,549
2020 35,085,091
2021 33,843,209
2022 33,077,475
2023 31,796,216
Thereafter 37,810,486

Total $ 206,586,026

Rent expense under these leases was $31.1 million and $29.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. Certain lease agreements provide for rental escalations over the
term of the operating lease. The Company recognizes the rental increases over the terms of the leases on a
straight-line basis.

(12) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers,
bank deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the
default risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually
material to the Company’s operations.
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The creditworthiness of customers is assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does
not require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for
each customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of
collection on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual
customer has been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such ingtitutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financia obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will aways have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both norma and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The majority of non-derivative financia
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2018.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial
obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters. In addition, the Company has access to AAM LFP's line of credit with Allianz SE as
discussed in note 8.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk istherisk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The mgjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions aso occur on a more limited basis primarily in Euros, British
Pounds Sterling, and Japanese Yen.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.
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Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, all of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds
the Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material
investments in such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in
accordance with client guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2018, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material
differences to members capital as of December 31, 2018 or the reported comprehensive income for the year
then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl LLC (see note 14) and certain foreign
subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(13) Provisions

PIMCO is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which arise in
the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position or results of operations. Management
believes that they have made appropriate estimates for provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial condition and in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The
Company expenses related legal fees asincurred.

(14) Net Capital

Pl LLC is subject to the Uniform Net Capita Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net
capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15-to-1. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, Pl LLC had net capital of
$49.7 million and $50.3 million, respectively, for regulatory purposes, which was $45.9 million and $45.8
million, respectively, in excess of its required net capital of $3.8 million and $4.5 million, respectively. Pl LLC's
aggregate indebtedness to net capital ratio was 1.14-to-1 and 1.35-to-1 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

(15) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $178.2
thousand and $1.3 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds in the
accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

2018 2017
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 289,027,697 184,813,595
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds 131,786 191,510

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(16) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through May 7, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 22,293 vested on January 15, 2019. On March 29, 2019, these vested awards were
exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 3,171 M units.

On March 14, 2019, PIMCO granted 39,684 M unit options that have an exercise price of $14,516 per unit.

On January 2, 2019, PIMCO fully acquired the equity interest in Gurtin Municipal Bond Management, a
municipal bond manager.
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2019 30
526,417,908 57,411,137

18,904,554 2,061,731

509,900,465 55,609,745

302,071,688 32,943,938

36,867,533 4,020,773

23,150,697 2,524,815

17,604,135 1,919,907

10,852,543 1,183,578

56,079,480 6,116,028

1,501,849,003 163,791,652

150,530,886 16,416,898

221,565,313 24,163,913

565,976,329 61,725,378

12,618,124 1,376,133

30,864,520 3,366,085

58,362,220 6,364,984

1,039,917,392 113,413,391

2,541,766,395 277,205,043

400,371,911 43,664,561

486,538,567 53,061,896

109,347,421 11,925,430

30,035,601 3,275,683

18,364,844 2,002,870

17,604,135 1,919,907

13,136,414 1,432,657

1,075,398,893 117,283,003

565,976,329 61,725,378

232,900,862 25,400,168

113,717,301 12,402,009

2,782,918 303,505

915,377,410 99,831,060

1,990,776,303 217,114,064

850,000 (718,894,499) (78,402,634)
150,000 1,278,465,927 139,429,494
48,876 27,621,882 3,012,442
156,330 25,867,868 2,821,150
(62,071,086) (6,769,473)

550,990,092 60,090,979

2,541,766,395 277,205,043
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2019

30

341/388

1,754,941,154

191,393,882

492,969,941 53,763,302
554,379,338 60,460,611
185,124,457 20,189,673

11,784,089 1,285,173

2,999,198,979

327,092,641

936,982,110 102,187,269
425,097,429 46,361,126
320,280,419 34,929,782
101,131,473 11,029,398
71,616,472 7,810,492
57,082,620 6,225,431
23,308,735 2,542,051
12,711,464 1,386,312

1,948,210,722

212,471,861

1,050,988,257

114,620,779

7,107,693 775,165
(6,783,645) (739,824)
(760,018) (82,888)

1,050,552,287

47,186,828

114,573,232

5,146,195

1,003,365,459

3,125,131

109,427,037

340,827

1,006,490,590

109,767,864
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2019 30

850,000 (792,957,184) (86,479,910) 150,000 1,267,204,122 138,201,282 45,705 23,722,086 2,587,131
732,721,403 79,910,596 224,610,692 24,496,042 46,033,364 5,020,399
(668,394, 234) (72,895,075) (213,348,887) (23,267,830) (42,436,427)  (4,628,117)
9,735,516 1,061,755 302,859 33,030
850,000 (718,894, 499) (78,402,634) 150,000 1,278,465,927 139,429,494 48,876 27,621,882 3,012,442
143,858 28,576,118 3,116,511 (65,196,217) (7,110,299) 461,348,925 50,314,714
1,003,365, 459 109,427,037
(924,179,548) (100,791,022)
7,330,125 799,423 7,330,125 799,423

(10,038,375) (1,094,785)
3,125,131 340,827 3,125,131 340,827
156,330 25,867,868 2,821,150 (62,071,086) (6,769,473) 550,990,092 60,090,979
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2019 30

1,003, 365,459
7,117,776
33,336,196
6,783,645
760,018
68,401
(72,616)
14,132,707
(401,218)
(86,028, 269)
(6,821,123)
2,776,915
(20,273,676)

359,744,365
1,352,133

109,427,037
776,265
3,635,646
739,824
82,888
7,460
(7,920)
1,541,313
(43,757)
(9,382,243)
(743,912)
302,850
(2,211,047)

39,233,720
147,464

1,315,840,713

143,505,588

(51,884,452) (5.658,518)
(19,717,309) (2,150,370)

(18,000) (1,963)
(71,619,761) (7,810,851)

1,318,000,000
(1,530,000,000)
(924,179,548)
(13,969,622)

143,741,080

(166,861,800)

(100,791,022)
(1,523,527)

(1,150,149,170)

(125,435,268)

3,125,131 340,827

97,196,913 10,600,295
429,220,995 46,810,842
526,417,908 57,411,137
233,386,374 25,453,118
(272,699, 025) (29,740,556)

39,312,651 4,287,438
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Pacific Investment Management Campany LLC

2020 606,851,577.58 661 8,323

1971
1940 PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2020 25 2,727

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2020 10 1,000 1,101 5,060

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2020 1,209 13 1,854
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2018 12
513
2018 12
1,572.4
BMA
2008 12 | 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 12 | 2014 12 2015 12 |2016 12 |2017 12 | 2018 12
819 697 661 613 529 478 457 429 392
76 72 64 47 44 42 40 38 68
220 203 172 119
83 86 79 68 62 72 65 69 35
336 343 229 209
1,534 1,401 1,205 1,056 635 592 562 536 495
71 53 39 39 58 57 52 52 28
84 108 101 95 83 60 47 36 44
198 201 175 155
353 362 315 289 141 117 99 88 72
1,887 1,763 1,520 1,345
1,133 1,016 1,205 1,056 776 709 661 624 567 543 525
1,711.9 1,544.5 1,812.4 1,604.4 1,842.6 1,758.0 1,750.2 1,442.2 1,371.5 1,615.4 1,650.4
( 18 ( 16 ( 19 ( 17 ( 20 ( 19 ( 19 ( 15 ( 14 ( 17 ( 17
6,700 ) [8,443 ) |7.660 ) |4.976 ) |osa ) 1,727 ) |87 ) 7,286 ) |9.57%6 ) [6.,176 ) [9,993 )
BMA 2012
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the Funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2019 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO
Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund the statement of cash flows, and the financial highlights for the periods indicated
in the table below. These financial statements and financial highlights are heresfter collectively referred to as "financia

statements".

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A ¢

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D &

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M)
(€

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |11 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermudalncome Fund D @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO World High Income @)

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @

31, 2019

ended October 31, 2019

@) Statements of operations and of changesin net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended October
@ Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year

& Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2019, and the
financia highlights for each of the periods indicated therein
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@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the period from

July 9, 2019 (inception date) to October 31, 2019

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsihility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2019, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund its cash flows, and each of
their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 16, 2020
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

We have audited the accompanying 2018 consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management
Company LLC and its subsidiaries the “Company” , which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
condition as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income,
changes in capital, and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financia Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the
financial position of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018, and
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Note 2(q) to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it
accounts for deferred compensation in 2018. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2017 and for the year then ended, prior to the
retrospective change in accounting for deferred compensation as discussed in Note 2(q), were audited by other auditors
whose report, dated March 22, 2018, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

We also have audited the adjustments to retrospectively apply the change in accounting for deferred compensation as
discussed in Note 2(q). In our opinion, such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. We were not
engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2017 financial statements of the Company other than with
respect to the adjustments and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2017
financial statements taken asawhole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Los Angeles, California
May 7, 2019
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (thirty funds
congtituting the PIMCO Bermuda Trust I, hereafter collectively referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the
statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of October 31, 2018 and the related
statements of operations and of changes in net assets, and the financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table
below. These financia statements and financial highlights are hereafter collectively referred to as"financial statements'.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A @

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund ¢

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @)

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M)
D

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 11 @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D &)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E )

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @

PIMCO World High Income @

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2018

October 31, 2018

@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the period from March 9, 2018 (inception date) to

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
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maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2018, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 16, 2019
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